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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(BRHFBYEEBES) - LA B BB T 43 E )

(In HK$ million unless otherwise specified)
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FEH=E
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EBITDA(/f:#3Kk4)

EBITDAG I (f1:#3 % 4)

RAEIRR R FEML =7 (E518) (BT a3k 4)
SHERIIRE (A3 %4)

A ERELRE(ME3Kk4)
FHRNTRREG R B RE (M iF3Kk4)

Sales

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (loss) (Note 3 and 4)

Operating margin (Note 3 and 4)

EBITDA (Note 3 and 4)

EBITDA margin (Note 3 and 4)

Profit (loss) attributable to shareholders of the Company (Note 3 and 4)

Return on sales (Note 3 and 4)

Return on average total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Return on average equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company (Note 3 and 4)

R MIRTTEFRIRTTER
LEE® (HaE3k4)
BEMB(NE3L4)
BERE(FE3L4)
FEHKAREEH(RA)(HaE1)
MmN R (158 (i3 5%4)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (Note 3 and 4)

Total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Total liabilities (Note 3 and 4)

Inventory turnover on costs (days) (Note 1)
Current ratio (times) (Note 3 and 4)

SREMN(EBR) — EXRCEM)
SRS CEML)

Earnings (loss) per share — Basic (HK cents)
Dividend per share (HK cents)

PNz Dividend payout ratio
migRBROEE (FAR) Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
EERCE Market capitalization
FARMAMEE Stores as at year end
BEEE Direct-operated stores
INERJE (KfaE2) Franchised stores (Note 2)
2IRPITAREL Total stores worldwide
izt - Notes:
1. FREAZEER2FHERATUENEH 1. Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by number of days in
the year
2. H—EERAEE AT BB L RER(2015F RUAIFE 2. Stores in markets operated by a joint venture in South Korea, Kuwait and Qatar (prior

E) - M 07TFRARIFE) REZENBEMEEL

miHrm

3. 2013 F RUARIFE 2 BT W REARMNE B ER19EE

@A R

4. 2018 R Z AT FE 2 BT I RRRNEBY B RELAE

1658 M E M F I %

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

to year 2015), Vietnam (prior to year 2017), and third-party franchisees

3. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Accounting Standards 19 Employee benefits are
not reflected in the years and prior to 2013

4. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16 Leases are not
reflected in the years in and prior to 2018
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THEHBREZBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
3,380 3,122 4,852 5,509 5,412 5,145 5,381 5,545 5,848 5,673
1,930 1,736 2,846 3,250 3,221 3,055 3,097 3,214 3,551 3,331
57.1% 55.6% 58.7% 59.0% 59.5% 59.4% 57.6% 58.0% 60.7% 58.7%
263 (105) 397 625 689 568 556 542 828 1,005
7.8% -3.4% 8.2% 11.3% 12.7% 11.0% 10.3% 9.8% 14.2% 17.7%
811 555 1,183 821 874 748 743 760 1,066 1,247
24.0% 17.8% 24.4% 14.9% 16.1% 14.5% 13.8% 13.7% 18.2% 22.0%
190 (112) 230 480 500 434 426 408 663 826
5.6% -3.6% 4.7% 8.7% 9.2% 8.4% 7.9% 7.4% 11.3% 14.6%
5.2% -2.3% 6.2% 12.8% 13.5% 12.2% 11.5% 11.0% 16.1% 21.1%
7.8% -4.4% 8.5% 16.8% 17.5% 15.2% 14.5% 13.8% 21.8% 28.8%
875 1,104 994 1,017 1,167 1,095 1,076 915 1,105 1,173
960 916 714 1,465 1,526 1,410 1,405 1,401 1,616 1,665
4,208 4,383 5,196 4,124 4,322 4,114 3,847 3,857 4,469 4,605
1,645 1,752 2,349 1,115 1,181 1,147 881 773 1,220 1,452
153 115 100 89 87 78 78 80 82 74
1.9 1.8 1.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.9 3.1 2.6 2.3
12.00 (7.10) 14.60 30.50 31.80 27.70 27.10 26.00 42.60 53.80
16.50 10.00 14.60 33.50 35.00 27.50 27.00 25.00 40.00 40.00
137.5% TEANA 100.0% 109.8% 110.1% 99.3% 99.6% 96.2% 93.9% 74.3%
1,578,937 1,577,631 1,578,501 1,678,501 1,570,631 1,570,953 1,570,395 1,569,913 1,566,837 1,543,709
2,353 1,798 3,709 5,840 6,534 6,582 5,701 5,400 10,858 11,501
1,134 1,209 1,274 1,323 1,349 1,364 1,385 1,451 1,499 1,449
922 976 1,101 1,103 1,065 1,033 986 1,001 1,143 1,199
2,056 2,185 2,375 2,426 2,414 2,397 2,371 2,452 2,642 2,648

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers

LAWYERS

Hong Kong lawyer
Reed Smith Richards Butler

PRC lawyer
GaoXinDe Law Firm

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

BNP Paribas

Hang Seng Bank Limited

MUFG Bank Ltd.

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

www.giordano.com

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF



TREH/ESE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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I am happy to report that the Group’s sales and net profits rebounded
in 2021 as social distancing relaxed in most of the Group’s markets.
The Group registered a net profit of HK$190 million, and the Board of
directors recommends a final dividend of 10 HK cents per share. The
total dividend per share for 2021 will be 16.5 HK cents per share.

The protracted Covid-19 endemic devastated the global economy,
disrupted the global supply chain, and dampened consumer sentiments.
The Omicron variant, first discovered in late 2021, is spreading across
the globe as of writing. While we cannot predict when and how it will
dissipate, we have developed viable strategies and plans to mitigate its
adversity on our business.

Persisting on our franchising strategy, we have made strides partnering
with new franchisees whose business had grown satisfactorily in 2021.
Not only is it an excellent collaboration to leverage local knowledge and
skills, but the Group will also be in a position to balance geo-economical
risks which might affect the Group’s business. The initiative will expedite
in 2022.

Investing in branding and marketing, we have also increased our prices
on new products with higher gross margins. The Group’s retail gross
margins have grown from 55.6% to 57.1% during the year.

The sudden emergence of variants of Covid-19 and the resulting
supply chain disruption had made merchandising budgets extremely
problematic. We are accepting higher inventory levels than the usual
times. As we reduce the new purchases in 2022, we can systematically
use the mostly fashion-proof inventory to support the business, even if
the supply chain disruption prolongs.

The past two years were testing for most businesses, especially apparel
retailers. | must commend our business partners and staff for their
steadfastness. There is no telling what lies ahead in 2022 and beyond.
Still, I am confident that our strategic plans are correct, our financial
health sound, our people vigilant, and our business and profitability will
continue to improve.

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 10, 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
GROUP RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
POSITION

The following commentaries refer to the year-on-year (“YOY”)
comparison for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, unless
otherwise stated.

OVERVIEW

u The Group is an international apparel retailer with owned,
franchised, and licensed brands. We offer high-quality, value-
for-money, and easy-to-wear apparel and accessories through a
network of approximately 2,056 points of sales, or 1,964,000 sq.
ft. of retail floor space.

u Group sales rose by 8.3% to HK$3,380 million (2020: HK$3,122
million), with gross profit advancing by 11.2% due to a 1.5
percentage point rise in gross margin and Group-wide sales
increases. The Group’s online sales surged by 25.5%, contributing
12.1% (2020: 10.5%) to total sales.

u Operating expenses contracted by 8.8%, representing 52.7%
(2020: 62.6%) of total sales. We expect further operating expense
leveraging in 2022, as the Group further broadens the use of
information and communication technologies throughout its
operations.

u Net profit for the year was HK$190 million (2020: net loss of
HK$112 million, inclusive of a net charge of HK$70 million
impairment provision for the right-of-use assets and property,
plant, and equipment). Basic earnings per share were 12.0 HK
cents (2020: Basic losses per share of 7.1 HK cents). Net profit for
the second half of the year was HK$130 million as compared with
HK$60 million reported for the first half, reflecting relaxed social
distancing, fewer discounts, and the result of effective operating
expense controls.

u The Company’s Board of Directors recommended a final dividend
of 10.0 HK cents per share (2020: 6.9 HK cents per share) to reach
a total dividend of 16.5 HK cents per share for the year (2020: 10.0
HK cents). The final dividend payable, if approved, will amount to
approximately HK$158 million.

u The Group’s inventories, mostly evergreen or in-season styles,
increased by HK$172 million to HK$606 million, primarily due to
early merchandise receipts as a precautionary tactic against global
supply chain disruptions, an early Lunar New Year, and a warmer
than usual fourth quarter in 2021. The inventory turnover days
were higher by 38 days to 153 days (2020: 115 days).

u The cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, were HK$875
million on December 31, 2021 (December 31, 2020: HK$1,104
million). The abovementioned, temporary surplus inventories will
convert to cash during the first half of 2022.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REXE

®1:AEEEEXRE

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Table 1: Group results of operations

LEHER hiHEE
Batk Antk 2E
(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 % to sales 2020 % to sales Change
SR BRI Southeast Asia and Australia 1,044 30.9% 954 30.6% 9.4%
B K BE Mainland China 766 22.7% 701 22.4% 9.3%
EEMAIARKRAE Gulf Cooperation
Z5g Council 525 15.5% 387 12.4% 35.7%
ag Taiwan 496 14.7% 534 17.1% (7.1%)
BEABFRM Hong Kong and Macau 355 10.5% 362 11.6% (1.9%)
HIGIMNER < # 3% Wholesale to overseas franchisees 194 5.7% 184 5.9% 5.4%
AEEHER Group sales’ 3,380 100.0% 3,122 100.0% 8.3%
EF Gross profit 1,930 57.1% 1,736 55.6% 11.2%
H AU A e EAl e as Other income and
SFE other gains, net 118 3.5% 183 5.9% (35.5%)
KEER Operating expense (1,782) (52.7%) (1,954) (62.6%) 8.8%
GRAEEEAYE - Impairment loss on right-of-use
B RS ERE assets and property, plant and
equipment (14) (0.4%) 87) (2.8%) 83.9%
TREEERNE #28  Reversal of impairment loss
NafE 2 RERD on right-of use assets and
property, plant and equipment 11 0.3% 17 0.5% (35.3%)
EEETI(E1E) Operating profit (loss) 263 7.8% (105) (3.4%) 350.5%
FE(RE 2N ENER Share of profit of joint ventures 41 1.2% 39 1.2% 5.1%
MEER Finance expense (29) (0.9%) (41) (1.3%) 29.3%
e Income taxes (52) (1.5%) (1) (0.0%)  (5,100.0%)
FEFE IR RS A Profit after income tax
B P15 15 12 )5 7 attributable to
non-controlling interests (33) (1.0%) (4) (0.1%) (725.0%)
IR FERBR TSR 12 Profit (loss) after income tax
() attributable to shareholders 190 5.6% (112) (3.6%) 269.6%
IR E R Global brand sales? 4,482 4,276 4.8%
2IRMEER? Global brand gross profit? 2,781 2,616 6.3%
FRBE RIRITEF Net cash and bank balances
FE at year-end 875 1,104 (20.7%)
FREFE Inventories at year-end 606 434 39.6%
FEHRAREBRHS Inventory turnover on cost, days® 153 115 38
FRMATHAE Stores at year-end 2,056 2,185 (129)

1 FEBHEFIEAMHHEER  REEEEELEZTEEN

-

850, FEE D NERRE Z L3 -

2 2IRBEHERE EAREEARRELE  MBEME 2
BARZPTZMATEHER T REEERFH

3 FEURATEAEIEFRH A2 FERAHERATIA 3

ZEERY -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

T W E B AR

=

“Group sales” refer to consolidated sales and include retail sales from direct-operated
stores and wholesale to overseas/non-consolidated franchisees.

“Global brand sales/gross profit”, comprising all Giordano retail sales/gross profit from
direct-operated stores, franchised stores, and stores operated by a joint venture, are
at constant exchange rates.

“Inventory turnover on cost” is calculated by dividing inventories held at year-end by

the cost of sales and multiplied by the number of days in the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 #

#
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R2: RREBIZHEHER

Table 2: Sales by channel

it R b=
(U B EETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 Contribution 2020 Contribution Change
STER Offline sales 2,526 74.7% 2,389 76.5% 5.7%
R APER EER Mainland China online sales 303 9.0% 250 8.0% 21.2%
Fh B K B LA [

B EER Ex-Mainland China online sales 106 3.1% 76 2.5% 39.5%
;R Online sales 409 12.1% 326 10.5% 25.5%
TEHETE Retail sales 2,935 86.8% 2,715 87.0% 8.1%
AR 2 #hE# Wholesale to franchisees 445 13.2% 407 13.0% 9.3%
FTEBHER Group sales 3,380 100.0% 3,122 100.0% 8.3%

BEMMREHRL5.9%  EEBEHEERRFIER
8.3% ° RETEE R EEE RSB MEALIED
19 EMMBEARTHE T RMNEEEE =
ZE o EEBRRHIETSENERE  FHEERN
HEBRMIERE -

FTBXBREHBBHEHERE EEL—FNE
BOREREMNERENET - B LEBHEER
HEIER25.5%  (HAEHEEMN12.1% (20204 :
10.5%) °

®R3I:EFNEBDMN

Group sales increased by 8.3% YQY, despite a 5.9% reduction in the
total number of stores. The sudden re-emergence of Covid-19 cases
in May hampered our Taiwan and Southeast Asia sales until Q3. Sales
growth rebounded in Q4 after the alleviation of the restrictive movement
control measures.

All business channels recorded sales improvements. Following the prior
year’s trend, the growth of the online channel outperformed that of
offline. Online sales were up by 25.5% YOY and contributed 12.1% to
total sales (2020:10.5%).

Table 3: Gross profit variance analysis

ERHE

2020% Fe 2021F

ES| ERAK £E Translational Ei|

2020 Product Selling 8  exchange Hit 2021

(UEEATEEN) (In HK$ million) gross profit costs price Volume impact Miscellaneous ~ gross profit

REEREN Southeast Asia and Australia 532 (18) 63 7 8 7 509

mEAE Mainland China 323 18 3 5 25 4 378

BEMURERAFZES Gulf Cooperation Council 244 (1) 4 83 1 @) 329

aiE Taiwan 330 (6) 18 (52) 17 (1) 306

BAREM Hong Kong and Macau 247 8 2 (21) - (1) 240

msEa Market mix . ) ] 9 - (" .

BERSH Retail and distribution 1,676 (17) 112 24 51 6 1,852
EOMIERE/MBATZHEE  Wholesale to overseas franchisees/

subsidiaries 60 78

XEE Group 1,736 1,930

EMEZRASBEANH - THFERIERMS
TEEHNMEXBNERES - REFNXERE
REMRE - BEME  ENXOLEARHRTFH
EERSRTNRDME - Bt - BEEMIZFIE
£11.2% °

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #

Gross margin grew by 1.5 percentage points. The growth momentum
abated in 2H, primarily due to a higher contribution of the wholesale
business, the gross margin of which is generally lower than other
channels. Overall, the rise in gross margin was attributable to improved
average selling prices with fewer discount. As a result, the overall gross
profit grew by 11.2% YOY.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HW AR s - FHE

Ha WA REME - BRESFEEA - BiEK
A FIBRA - BUSHERES R BB WA
BA6,5008ETE1ISEART - TERANBF
HHEE20190F AT MR B EZ R RITM 4 T 8B BUER
BV A FTE - 5E1.18(88 T © E£FR3,8008 8 T2
E12019%7 2 AR 8 5 A7 17 A8 B8 /9 BR S B R IR B)
(2020%F : 1.02f8#7T) °

ReBRARKEEN(EHE)

R B RIRE T 28.8% @ 1EHERER52.7% (2020
F 162.6%) c REHEHM - ERANEFAD A
B TERAFBMLOMESMBERARBNEZAT -
ANE B SRE L% 2 63188 7T (20204 : KREE
B1.05B L) - TEFLERFAB1.69EET
FESR E¥F (2021 EFF 19,4008 7T) °

ERAEREERYE  BERKRBZFR
]

RIBEFBSTERFICHAMRTE - NEEEHERE
BENYE WS NRMEFHET 0088 T2/ NE
F R (2020%F : 7,0008 8 7T) ° ANEE A D 3E
BNNEREEECIMAC RBRTIERNNER
REEREBE - KIERAD THFHREERS - K
SESeRRMERECREESE  FhISEMg
EARERRBICNERL -

BERBE-EIFREXE - BROERREER
WE - HERLREHREEE - MRS RSBEE
HAWEER -

MmEEH

FhE B 52,9008 57T (20204 : 4,1008787T)
FTERFHEABHEERSE2, 70088 L (20204 :
3,9008 80 ) MERTTH BRI -
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Other income and other gains, net

Other income and other gains, representing revenues from royalty,
licensing, interest, government grants, and rental and sub-lease rental
income, decreased by HK$65 million to HK$118 million. The drop was
due to the reduction in government financial relief for the Covid-19
pandemic. Of this HK$118 million, HK$38 million was Covid-19 related
government financial relief (2020: HK$102 million).

Operating expense and operating profit (loss)

Operating expense was down by 8.8% YQY, representing 52.7% of
sales (2020: 62.6%). The cost rationalization continued, despite sales
increase, mainly through rental reduction and closure of non-performing
stores. The Group recorded an operating profit of HK$263 million
(2020: operating loss of HK$105 million). In 2H, the operating profit
was HK$169 million, significantly higher than the first half of the year
(1H2021: HK$94 million).

Net impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment

Based on the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 requirements, the
Group made a minor net impairment provision of HK$3 million (2020:
HK$70 million) for the right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and property, plant,
and equipment. The Group had exited most non-productive ROU assets
or had already made provision for the remainder of the non-productive
ROU assets, substantially reducing the required impairment provisions.
The Group will only renew its ROU assets conservatively, especially in
Hong Kong, where the operating environment has worsened in recent
months.

The impairment provision, a non-cash charge to income, will reduce
the net carrying amount of the ROU assets and property, plant and
equipment, and the depreciation expense over their remaining lease
terms.

Finance expense

The finance expense of HK$29 million (2020: HK$41 million) comprises
imputed interest on lease liabilities of HK$27 million (2020: HK$39
million) and bank interest expense.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 § #



EERB WAL R DM

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FARRREEBRAEHRERN(FR)

ARRBRREBBRAEHREEN (TBRREEDN])
R1.90(88 7T - E2020F IR (LR ATIS B BT 1R
(TREIEERE ) R A2EB TR L - %
MBEF5.6%  MEFHNFEIRER-3.6%° 77
TARBTEBEBERBZEI

R4 RREGEN(RRELGER)EH
BE

Profit (loss) after income taxes attributable to
shareholders of the Company

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of the Company
(“PATS”) was HK$190 million, in stark contrast to the loss after income
taxes attributable to shareholders (“‘LATS”) of HK$112 million of 2020.
The net margin was 5.6% versus the net loss margin of -3.6% in the prior
year. Table 4 below explains the swing from net loss to net profit.

Table 4: Summary of changes in PATS (LATS)

(KX BFEETAEN) (In HK$ million)
2R E2020F R RELEE Reported 2020 LATS (112)
BREa RN (—THEHRMERIEERT) Southeast Asia and Australia (— Sales rebound after the
alleviation of movement controls) 110
BB KR (—FEREEMTmIROES) Hong Kong and Macau (— Closure of loss-making stores
and rental reductions) 105
HEMNEEREEZES(—1TRERINER Gulf Cooperation Council (— Sales rebound after the
SHEBFA) alleviation of movement controls) 74
AR E KR (—RARAEIBPTT - LN AR Z4t8)  Mainland China (— Closure of loss-making stores and
increase in wholesale to franchisees) 51
e nEEmE, B A R Z i3 (G N FERE Wholesale to overseas franchisees/subsidiaries
INEER 2 #EEE) (— Increase in wholesale to the Philippines) 43
[FAE South Korea 1
BE(—ARIT—E2019M A EARRE - F=FFH Taiwan (— Sales drop in Q3 due the new wave of
HE T ) Covid-19) (13)
FIfSHi ~ RIS - BMEBRANETEA Income taxes, non-controlling interests, finance expense
and headquarter expenses (73)
2021F R R BRI 2021 PATS 186
HEBE =5 Currency translation difference 4
B 52021 F RRELEF Reported 2021 PATS 190
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ANALYSIS BY MARKET

UTZEEMSERNEMER BB - B  The following market-specific comments are in local currencies or, if in
AR EEFER - UMK ABEER R  HK dollars (“HK$”), are at constant exchange rates to remove distortions

BILARELL -

WARFTEL 2 H

from the translation of financial statements.

R Greater China
R KRPEZRIABHAER(EFE) Table 5: Greater China profit (loss) before income
taxes
GesesE HHERE
(U BEETBEN - (In HK$ million, translated at Bkt BoLt B
W FIEERHE constant exchange rates) 2021 % to sales 2020 % to sales Change
HIHE Total sales 1,539 100.0% 1,597 100.0% (3.6%)
E7 Gross profit 882 57.3% 900 56.4% (2.0%)
HAb AR Other income and
At - B other gains, net 21 1.4% 69 4.3% (69.6%)
KEER Operating expense (894) (58.1%) (1,048) (65.7%) 14.7%
EREEERYE Impairment loss on right-of-use

Was MR 2 RE

EREBERYR  #as

assets and property,

plant, and equipment (5) (0.3%) (63) (3.9%) 92.1%
Reversal of impairment loss

R&ff 2 AERE on right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment 7 0.4% 10 0.6% (30.0%)
EFIE(ER) Operating profit (loss) 1 0.7% (132) (8.3%) 108.3%
HEER Finance expense (6) (0.4%) (12) (0.7%) 50.0%
FRETEEATAIE(E1E)  Profit (loss) before income tax 5 0.3% (144) (9.0%) 103.5%
FARFMTNEA Stores at year-end 975 - 1,030 - (55)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

T W E B

AR

n

A

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 § #



EERB WAL R DM

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

&8 FEFT

AL ERRIE R A8.7% » BB T R/E#HIRF
WEe2F M AP =51 - MEBAHERN TR - B
MRFISRSE L EE - BRBINESF - ZENXK
ZRAFERBXNERBERMAMMRSEE - BE
mE - FEMRFNHEHSERYN B EKENE
BRBRBRIDAR S

SERHHREBRT - KRR CEEBREER
20%  TEFBERE=HFABEOHE -

H B K BER & E

BEFMHERD » AEKEDEE M EIG
R-FIZAZENERSE-—HESTE  HIFENE
EHRBAERIBH —REE - FER AR EH
ERIER12.8% LGB HETERN40%(2020F -
36%) °

BEHEREF TREUHT - BENITREHRN
S5ATAMRG  —EREINFHFE - EEMS
2O ERAEARITSHEERERRENE
B femPERMNHEE -

®6: KRR FECHEBERFIMAE

Hong Kong and Macau

Comparable stores’ sales grew by 8.7%, which mitigated the drop in
total sales owing to the YQY store reduction from 62 to 51. Hong Kong
and Macau recorded an operating loss, albeit significantly less than
the previous year. The improved performance was primarily due to the
closure of loss-making shops and some rental reductions. Overall, rental
expenses in Hong Kong and Macau remain too high for the current
challenging operating environment.

Online business out-grew offline, with online sales up 29% YQY, primarily
through the growth of third-party platform sales.

Mainland China & Taiwan

Mainland China recorded mild sales growth despite a reduction in store
numbers. The growth momentum had been steady in the first three
quarters until the new wave of the pandemic in Mainland China during
Q4. Mainland China’s online sales grew by 12.8%, contributing around
40% to total sales (2020: 36%).

Taiwan reported a YOY double-digit sales drop. Strict movement
controls commenced in mid-May and continued until Q4. Generally,
the Covid-19 pandemic continues to hinder our sales by advancing
conservative buying sentiment.

Table 6: Greater China sales and store counts

EXMAEHE FEREEREHE ERMMYE
HEE Franchised stores Direct-operated Stores at
Sales at year-end stores at year-end year-end
(UEEETAESN (In HKS million, translated at 25
KEFEXHE) constant exchange rates) 2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
PEAE Mainland China 715 701 2.0% 550 559 189 225 739 784
= Taiwan 469 534 (12.2%) - - 185 184 185 184
BE LR Hong Kong and Macau 355 362 (1.9%) - - 51 62 51 62
agy Total 1,539 1,597 (3.6%) 550 559 425 471 975 1,030
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BRFg a2 I RN
R7C REERBRNZERES AR
(B|)

Southeast Asia and Australia

Table 7: Southeast Asia and Australia profit (loss)
before income taxes

1HHER hIHEE

(U BEEETAEN (In HK$ million, translated at Bkt BAL, B E)

BEEEEBRE constant exchange rates) 2021 % to sales 2020 % to sales Change
HBIHETE Total sales 1,030 100.0% 954 100.0% 8.0%
£ Gross profit 591 57.4% 532 55.8% 11.1%
Hip A K Al Other income and

Wz o F58 other gains, net 37 3.6% 51 5.3% (27.5%)
HERM Operating expense (491) (47.7%) (549) (57.5%) 10.6%
FRESEREYE Impairment loss on right-of-use

HEREH assets and property, plant and

RIE equipment 9) (0.9%) (20) (2.1%) 55.0%
FREEEERDE Reversal of impairment loss

e MR on right-of-use assets and

BER property, plant and equipment 3 0.3% 7 0.7% (57.1%)
RN Operating profit 131 12.7% 21 2.2% 523.8%
MEAER Finance expense (17) (1.6%) 21) (2.2%) 19.0%
R P 15750 Al v ) Profit before income tax 114 11.1% - - TEAN/A
FARMTEE Stores at year-end 570 599 (29)

REBD R RIEMNEFREET SBHHE
M BRREE=FE  -@EEML ARE_FE
MEOFENRERBNES T - RARFERES
B BNHERILR - HIERBPERMEEZADN
Mg ERBAFEHE - RAIEZBROALD =
EMHRFRGEFELEH) -

®8: REuRAMNHERRFMIMAS

Most Southeast Asia regions and Australia experienced various
lockdown measures in the middle of the year, particularly in Q3.
Nevertheless, we recorded a high single-digit sales growth YOY, driven
by solid performances in Q2 and Q4. Indonesia was our largest market
in Southeast Asia, and its performance was remarkable. Most of our key
markets in this region recorded operating profits for the year.

Table 8: Southeast Asia and Australia sales and store
counts

HER FRMHEE

Sales Stores at year-end
(UBEETAREN (In HK$ million, translated at HE

B EIEFIRE) constant exchange rates) 2021 2020 Change 2021 2020

e Indonesia 506 380 33.2% 231 239
el Thailand 185 219 (15.5%) 156 168
#rhnik Singapore 170 164 3.7% 36 40
kg s Malaysia 99 99 ¥ FFlat 87 90
i Vietnam 48 65 (26.2%) 51 53
B Australia 14 19 (26.3%) 7 7
R Cambodia 8 8 $FFlat 2 2
e Total 1,030 954 8.0% 570 599

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BEMABEXREEZES The Gulf Cooperation Council
RO BEMNABXREEZES 2K Table 9: The Gulf Cooperation Council profit (loss)
#HaEAN(EE) before income taxes
HEER hiHEE
(KB BB TREN - (In HK$ million, translated at BAH Elad BE
R EEELE constant exchange rates) 2021 % to sales 2020 % to sales Change
HIHETE Total sales 524 100.0% 387 100.0% 35.4%
EF Gross profit 328 62.6% 244 63.0% 34.4%
HARA R Other income and
Hithzs - F58 other gains, net 7 1.3% 1 0.3% 600.0%
KB R Operating expense (259) (49.4%) (238) (61.5%) (8.8%)
FRAEEERDE Impairment loss on right-of-use
HEREEL assets and property,
A plant, and equipment - - (4) (1.0%) 100.0%
FREEERDE - Reversal of impairment loss
HEREE L on right-of-use assets
REEE and property, plant and
equipment 1 0.2% - - FEAN/A
Sy Operating profit 77 14.7% 3 0.8% 2,466.7%
MEEMA Finance expense (4) (0.8%) @) (1.8%) 42.9%
BRETSBIATE A (BI8)  Profit (loss) before income tax 73 13.9% (4) (1.0%)  1,925.0%
B E Franchised stores 35 34
BE Direct-operated stores 139 139
FRMAMHE Stores at year-end 174 173 1

BEWAARRAEREGNEENE AREUEL
BSRBALEETN - HENREOD R AN A
fEEmMMIGRE - RIATHEENBERRK -
BEE RIEBHTHIERMNE - BREREEEX
HIPEZ R ER o

FRE(-HMEBVEEEREECES
48.5% EHEMNEE N T])

®10: MR ZEMEFER

The Gulf Cooperation Council (“GCC”) sales rebounded after Ramadan
and registered a substantial operating profit. The rapid sales recovery
was attributable to the localized merchandise and marketing programs,
which stimulated consumer buying desire. Management will continue to
expand our footprint in the area with the onset of the alleviation of social
distancing control measures.

South Korea (a 48.5% joint venture under an
independent management team)

Table 10: South Korea share of net profit

e IHIHESE

Batk Ekad )]
(UBEEEEAE W) (In Korean Won million) 2021 % to sales 2020 % to sales Change
AR Total sales 182,040 100.0% 175,134 100.0% 3.9%
ES Gross profit 98,839 54.3% 96,782 55.3% 2.1%
Fom T Net profit 12,534 6.9% 12,146 6.9% 3.2%
J A 2 A Share of net profit 6,079 5,891 3.2%
FRMMEE Stores at year-end 150 172 (22)
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BELRTEKEHRNRITRE - EEEAF 5T
BET32% R EMBTEBHYRREBET @ HE
RERMEE - R ERBEREGER  HREEEN
35% o BEME @ BE2019H A BRBES ARTTE
FRREIERIE /B - BAREEERBEAMEBRARS -

Despite the intermittent pandemic waves, South Korea reported a 3.2%
increase in net profit. Both online and offline businesses performed
stably with mild sales growth YQOY. Online performance remained solid,
contributing 35% to total sales. Overall, our South Korea business is
robust despite intermittent disruption from the Covid-19 pandemic.

®11: BHAMBEZ2MTEAE Table 11: Overseas franchised stores
EHIEE S By market 2021 2020
EyEa ] Southeast Asia 167 192
[ South Korea 150 172
Efbmiis Other markets 20 19
P8 T 42 & Total stores 337 383

$E M BE 2 HE B HE N5.4% 2 1.9418 78 7T (2020
FA184EBT) c BEE2019H AT RENFE
FETHFHREEREE  RMOMBEINHEEEDS R
1B BMEFFIRMENMBEEEELR - BER
IR E IR IS M PI TR E I D T 46K » 1B
FEMEFEMERE -

B 7 AR R
RBEERUBER

R2021F 12318 » e RBITETF(HKRRTE
&) B8 7T5EBT(20204  11.04E8T) * BHA
ARENEEKTE - BAINEE S8R 2022F
FHFHE  UBRERETER -

IRITERAE1.681E8 7T (20204 + 1.5218E L) °
TEFT2022F ME R B EMAT) - NEBFEEHSH
RITERUBOFE T L - NEB o EREE(R
BEARERER S MIBITABEZEARQ SR EEN
B 2 bR E) 5-0.4(20204F : -0.4) © 722021
F12H318 * XEEMNRBLEER1.9  UREE
EE20.82(8 8 L MmN B E11.2218 78 7T (20204 -
1.8)5T8 -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Wholesales to overseas franchisees increased by 5.4% to HK$194
million (2020: HK$184 million). The impact from Covid-19 gradually
subsided in 2H, and the sales of our franchisees steadily recovered.
The franchise businesses in our newest markets continued to expand.
Despite the total number of stores in all our franchise markets
temporarily dropping by 46, growth returned during the Q4.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and financial resources

On December 31, 2021, the cash and bank balance, net of bank loans,
was HK$875 million (2020: HK$1,104 million), caused by a higher
inventory level. The current inventory will deplete according to plan in the
first half of 2022 to return cash to the Group.

The bank borrowings amounted to HK$168 million (2020: HK$152
million). Anticipating a more robust cash flow in 2022, the Group will
repay some bank loans to reduce interest expenses. The Group’s
gearing ratio, defined as the ratio of total borrowings less cash and bank
balances to equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders, was -0.4
(2020: -0.4). On December 31, 2021, the Group’s current ratio was 1.9
based on current assets of HK$2,082 million and current liabilities of
HK$1,122 million (2020: 1.8).
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M HBERRE

BARRY B4,2008 78 7T(20204 : 3,0008/E7T)
FTERARFATHE - ISPELERBIRATEE -
I E R EPIHIRE -

AERBRHEALHEAE

HELEHRLBEEERB2012F K2015F Uk
BEEMNARRAEZESER - RMBETF
SR RN B 0 3R 5 T R 0 2021 F B 1B 4 T P 4 R
g o

REELRZER

REBRRZERIIIEI8 %N EESENFZE
73 o IMEEHRBL6.6%E5.13EET - TERARN
AP RFERENEEREREMR o LFRARFHM

EHKHX/D\%;E ©
FE
AEEFEAGC.06EBIT © B2020F 1 11,7288

TC o FEH AR E B HUE 38K ZE 153K (2020
F i 115K) o

TFEKFHIFATTZ R EREREE R 12 17 B A TR R 1t
EREENER AFNBRHBEEFTNEEFTRK
= o

BEEAHEHMNBER 2 FEYIFRMOERE
T EAEEaETREMRERINBERZEFE
KF - UHERBEEABRIMFETEBS - HIW

Property, plant, and equipment

Capital expenditure was HK$42 million (2020: HK$30 million), mainly for
store upgrades. The external business environment is still volatile, and
we will continue to be prudent in our store investment.

Goodwill and put option liabilities

The goodwill and put option liability arose from the acquisition of our
GCC operations in 2012 and 2015. We carried out annual impairment
tests and concluded that no impairment on goodwill was necessary for
the 2021 financial year.

Interest in a joint venture

Interest in a joint venture represents a 48.5% interest in the South Korea
joint venture. The YOY balance decreased by 6.6% to HK$513 million,
mainly due to the currency translation adjustment during the financial
year. The share of profit and dividend received were stable YOY.

Inventories

Group inventories were HK$606 million, up by HK$172 million as
compared with 2020. Inventory turnover on cost increased by 38 days to
153 days (2020:115 days).

The surge in inventory level was due to early merchandise receipts
as a tactical precaution against supply chain disruptions. Most of the
merchandise is evergreen and in-season styles.

Although inventory at suppliers and franchisees is not our legal liabilities,
the Group responsibly tracks their levels to ensure that they are not
excessive off-balance-sheet inventories. Our system inventories

ARG EEFERE  KR12FTR © remained healthy, as shown in Table 12.
R®12 AZEFE Table 12: System inventories
(A EEFETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
rEBBEZFE Inventories owned by the Group 606 434
HEISSWERNEBRAL N NAFAEZFE Inventories held by 48.5% South Korea
joint venture 214 232
PRIAREMBEBEZFE Inventories held by franchisees
in Mainland China 53 50
HERNZEKE M Finished goods at suppliers 11 6
FAEBERBELEE Inventories not owned by Group 278 288
RITFEMHEE Total system inventories 884 722
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FE& 4R B 7% A BB A AR K
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KERLERN S« AEEHBMRR - ERKER
FEIREMERE  EFEFEZEHE2021F12H
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it 2 B BIRSS ©
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Trade receivables and payables

The YQY turnover days for trade receivables were up by 7 days. The
increase reflected the early shipments of Chinese New Year goods to
our franchisees that did not concern the Group’s bad debt risks. The
turnover days for trade payables were down by 3 days due to a faster
payment schedule to our vendors to relieve their financial stress from the
Covid-19 pandemic.

Dividends

The Company adopted a dividend policy on November 8, 2018 (the
“Dividend Policy”). The Dividend Policy aims to return surplus cash to its
shareholders through the payment of dividends and share repurchases.
In line with the Dividend Policy, the Company has been paying a
substantial portion of its earnings as an ordinary dividend, the amount
of which may vary depending on cash on hand, future investment
requirements and working capital considerations.

Having considered the economic outlook, the Group’s financial position,
its future expansion plans and other factors, the Board has thus
recommended a final dividend of 10.0 HK cents per share (2020: 6.9
HK cents per share) for the year ended December 31, 2021. Together
with the interim dividend of HK6.5 cents per share (2020: 3.1 HK cents
per share) paid on September 17, 2021, the total 2021 dividend would
amount to 16.5 HK cents per share (2020: 10.0 HK cents per share).
Subject to the approval of our shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be payable on
Friday, June 17, 2022, to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, June 2, 2022.
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OUTLOOK

The business environment in 2022 will remain volatile, especially in
Greater China. At the time of writing, the Omicron variant outbreak
severely hurt sales in Hong Kong, and we do not expect the situation
to improve for the most part of the year. The Group will temporarily
downsize the Hong Kong operations until there are clear and positive
signs of economic recovery.

The global supply chain disruption presents another challenge. The
Group has taken measures to address the difficulties, quickly moving to
regional sourcing. We are well poised to resolve the problem leveraging
our regional management and connections.

The Group will continue its franchise expansion in developing countries,
mainly in Africa.

On e-commerce, the Group is successfully partnering with locally robust
third-party platforms. For Mainland China and South Korea where our
e-commerce has been long-established, online sales contribution has
increased to nearly 40% of total sales with decent profitability. Newly
developed online businesses elsewhere in the Group’s markets are
growing at a steady pace.

The Group’s international presence is a natural hedging against regional
ebbs. Our business in the GCC and Southeast Asia is robust and
growing.

Our efforts towards upgrading the Giordano brands are continuing
with encouraging results, evidenced by higher selling prices and gross
margins. The Group is determined to move away from the budget brand
perception.

OTHER INFORMATION
Human Resources

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had approximately 5,900
employees (December 31, 2020: 6,400). The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages and generous, goal-oriented incentives
targeted to different levels of staff. We provide senior managers with
performance-based/discretionary bonus schemes and share options to
reward and retain a high-calibre leadership team. We also invest heavily
in training in sales and customer service, management, planning, and
leadership development to maintain a skilled and motivated workforce.
The Group facilitates the younger executives to take up management
roles. On December 31, 2021, the average age of the Group’s
management team was 47 (2020: 46).
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive), aged 69,
is the Group’s Chairman and Chief Executive. He is also chairman of the
Management Committee and Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He joined the Group in
1987, became the Chief Executive on February 8, 1994, and was elected
Chairman of the Board of the Company on August 10 in the same year.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAU is also an independent non-executive director of Fairwood
Holdings Limited, which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. LAU was previously an adjunct
professor of the College of Business at City University of Hong Kong
(“CityU”), an external member of the School of Business Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Baptist University (“HKBU”), the chairman of
the Advisory Committee on Management and marketing at the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”).

Dr. LAU holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from
PolyU, a MBA degree from the University of Calgary in Canada and a
Master of Buddhist Studies from The University of Hong Kong.

Dr. LAU had over 12 years of management and accounting experience in
both the private and public sectors in Canada before joining the Group.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director), aged 45, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director and the Chief
Operating Officer of the Company on June 20, 2014 and April 1, 2015,
respectively. He is a member of the Management Committee of the
Company and also a director of various subsidiaries and a joint venture
of the Group. Dr. CHAN is responsible for the Group’s operations to
meet budget and other financial goals, as well as establishing goals,
allocating resources and assessing policies to drive the Group’s
performance. Dr. CHAN has over 20 years of experience in the apparel
retailing and marketing business.

Dr. CHAN is a fellow member of Certified Practicing Accountant Australia
and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London. He
holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration and Bachelor of
Science in Textile from PolyU and a Master of Arts in Global Business
Management and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and Dispute Resolution
from CityU and a Master of Accountancy from HKBU.
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Mr. Mark Alan LOYND (Executive Director), aged 43, has been with
the Group since September 2013 and was appointed as an Executive
Director on March 9, 2017. Mr. LOYND is currently the General
Counsel, Company Secretary and Group Human Resources Director
of the Company. He oversees legal, regulatory, compliance, corporate
governance, human resources and talent development affairs of the
Group. Mr. LOYND is also chairman of the Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Management Committee of the Company as well
as director and company secretary of various subsidiaries and a joint
venture of the Group. Currently, Mr. LOYND is also responsible for the
development of new overseas markets as well as brand and product
development.

Mr. LOYND was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2007 and is a Member
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London, the United Kingdom.
He is a professional member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human
Resources Management, where he also sits on the Employment-Related
Hong Kong Legislation and Issues Committee, and a member of the
Chartered Professionals in Human Resources of British Columbia and
Yukon.

He holds a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from Aberystwyth University in the
United Kingdom as well as a Master of Arts in Arbitration and Alternative
Dispute Resolution (with distinction) and a Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws, both from CityU. He possesses over 20 years of experience
in handling regulatory and compliance matters for listed companies,
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and other commercial law
affairs, as well as labour and maritime law issues.

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong Jr (Non-executive Director), aged 42, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012. Dr. CHENG
is the executive vice-chairman and chief executive officer of New World
Development Company Limited (“NWD”), the chairman and a non-
executive director of New World Department Store China Limited, a non-
executive director and the chairman of Arta TechFin Corporation Limited.
He is also an executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
Limited and NWS Holdings Limited, and a non-executive director of New
Century Healthcare Holding Co. Limited, all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Dr. CHENG was a non-executive director of i-CABLE
Communications Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong, up to
his resignation on July 2, 2019. Dr. CHENG is a director of a substantial
shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its
subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. He is also a director and
executive chairman of New World China Land Limited.
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Dr. CHENG is a member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of The People’s
Republic of China, the chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation
Limited, the chairman of China Young Leaders Foundation and the
honorary chairman of K11 Art Foundation. He was the vice-chairman of
the 11th and 12th committee of the All-China Youth Federation. He was
acknowledged by Fortune as one of “40 Under 40” global business stars
and a “Young Global Leader” by the World Economic Forum in 2012.
Dr. CHENG is a Justice of Peace appointed by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region since 2016 and was made an
Officier in the Ordre des Arts et des Lettres by the French Government
in 2017. Dr. CHENG holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude)
from Harvard University, and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate
of Humanities by the Savannah College of Art and Design in 2014. Dr.
CHENG worked in a major international bank prior to joining NWD in
September 2006 and has substantial experience in corporate finance.

Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong (Non-executive Director), aged 59, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012. He is an
executive director, and also the managing director, Mainland China of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chan has extensive knowledge and experience of the market in
Mainland China and has been in the jewellery industry for 40 years. He
is a senior adviser of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China, a
member of National Technical Committee 256 on Jewelry and National
Technical Committee 298 on Jewelry and Jade of Standardization
Administration of China, a member of the standing council of China
Gold Association, an executive vice-chairman of the Guangdong Gold
and Silver Jewellery Chamber of Commerce, a vice-chairman of the
Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, a general vice-chairman of Gold
Association of Guangdong Province, a vice-chairman of the Guangdong
Golden Jewellery and Jade Industry’s Association, and a director and
visiting professor of the China University of Geosciences (Wuhan). He
is also a member of the Liaoning Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference.
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Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 77, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on March 3, 1995. He is also chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Dr. BUTTIFANT was re-appointed as a
managing director of KLC Transactions Limited in January 2017, and
was also appointed as a managing director of KLC Corporate Advisory
and Recovery Limited from the same date.

Dr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Chartered Management Institute, the Hong Kong
Management Association and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He
has been awarded an Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration
(Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University, United Kingdom in
February 2018.

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, Jr (Independent Non-executive Director), aged
70, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on April
26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. KWONG is also an independent non-executive director of another
listed company, AMS Public Transport Holdings Limited. Mr. KWONG
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Physics and Mathematics and was awarded a Master of
Philosophy degree in Economics and Politics of Development by the
University of Cambridge, England. He has served in the Government of
Hong Kong for 27 years and held positions principally in the economic
and financial fields. He was the Secretary for the Treasury from 1995
to 1998, with responsibility for public finances, and Secretary for
Information Technology and Broadcasting from 1998 to March 2000,
with responsibility for information technology, telecommunications
and broadcasting. He left the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in March 2000 to join The Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited as executive director and first Chief Executive,
following the demutualization and merger of the Stock Exchange, The
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and their associated clearing
houses and retired in April 2003. Since then, Mr. KWONG had served
as the managing director/executive director/non-executive director
of various companies, including Hsin Chong International Holdings
Ltd, Hongkong Sales (Int’l) Ltd, Macau Legend Development Ltd and
Chenavari Investment Managers (HK) Limited (now known as W2 Asset
Management (HK) Limited).

Mr. KWONG is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and has
been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region.
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Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (/Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
Non- executive Director on November 11, 2015. He is also chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Professor
HUANG received his PhD from the University of Groningen (The
Netherlands), Master of Arts from Lancaster University (England), and
Honours Diploma from Lingnan University (Hong Kong). He is the
Chair Professor and the former Head of Department of Management
of HKBU. Currently, he also serves as the Dean of the School of
Business (Research & Postgraduate Studies), the Programme Director
of Master of Business Administration and Master of Science in Business
Management and the Director of Centre for Human Resources Strategy
and Development of HKBU.

Since 2010, he has served as an Adjunct Professor in the Centre for
Work, Organization and Wellbeing, Griffith University. He has also been
appointed as a Visiting Chair Professor in Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics since 2012. He is Deputy Editor of the Management
and Organization Review, and a member of editorial board for Academy
of Management Journal and Human Relations. Professor HUANG's
research interests include leadership, power, proactive and abnormal
work behaviors, employees’ well-being; cross-cultural psychology and
management issues in China. He has published more than 60 papers
in international journals including Academy of Management Journal,
Journal of Applied Psychology, Journal of International Business Studies,
Journal of Management, Leadership Quarterly, Journal of Organizational
Behavior, Human Relations and so forth.
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Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 46, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
March 7, 2019. She is also a member of both the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company.

She is the associate vice-president (Institutional Research and Strategic
Planning) of HKBU since May 13, 2020. As Associate Vice-President
(Institutional Research and Strategic Planning), Dr. LLOYD plays an
instrumental role in supporting the advancement of HKBU, particularly in
the implementation of the Institutional Strategic Plan (2018-2028). She
leads efforts to spearhead the use of analytics and business intelligence
to foster a culture of data-informed decision-making, and support a
number of planning-related initiatives.

She was a director of International Affairs of PolyU, Dr. LLOYD oversaw
the strategic development and coordination of international partnerships,
international recruitment, mobility opportunities, and institutional
relations. As Director of Institutional Research and Planning of PolyU,
she steered strategic planning, performance monitoring, university
rankings, business intelligence, and analytics.

Prior to joining academia, she worked in management consultancy in
Hong Kong. Her previously consulting engagements cover strategy,
business process review and improvement, performance management
frameworks and change management for both private and public sector
organizations in Hong Kong and Asia. Currently, Dr. LLOYD serves on
a number of advisory boards and steering committees pertaining to
international higher education.
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The Board is dedicated to maintaining the highest standard of corporate
governance within a sensible and practical framework. The Board
firmly believes that the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence are essential towards upholding the interests of all
stakeholders and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance. It is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. The Board has adopted the code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange as the
Corporate Governance Code of the Company.

During the year of 2021, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code save for the deviations from Code Provisions
B.2.2 and C.2.1, which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

BOARD
Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance and
reviews the corporate governance standards of the Company. It also
decides on matters relating to annual and interim results, notifiable
transactions, appointments or re-appointments of Directors, dividends
and accounting policies. The Directors, individually and collectively, are
committed to act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. Save for the power reserved by the Board or other
Board committees, the strategies and plans as decided by the Board are
implemented by Management. Management assumes full accountability
to the Board for the day-to-day operation of the Group.
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EXRERBREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out below or it may delegate the responsibility to a committee or
committees:

o Developing, reviewing and updating the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updates;

o Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

o Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report; and

° Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s process of disclosure,
including assessing and verifying the accuracy and materiality of
price-sensitive information and determine the form and content of
any required disclosure.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Composition

The Board currently comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Executive Directors.

The Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to
provide effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major
decisions of the Group. To assist in the discharge of their duties, the
Directors have free and direct access to both the Company’s internal
and external auditors and procedures are in place to allow the Directors
to obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise, skills
and experience that each Director brings individually, the Group
believes that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Board will regularly review its composition to maintain
a proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and experience to
ensure continued effective leadership and oversight of the Company’s
businesses. Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 20
to 25 of this annual report.

In accordance with good corporate governance principles, the Board
had established three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition, a
Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are also in
place to support the Board and the Board Committees. During the year
of 2021 and up to the date of this report, the composition of the Board,
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee are set out below. The Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee are discussed in the relevant sections of this
report.
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships with each other except that Dr. CHENG
Chi Kong serves on the board of directors of New World Group and
subsidiaries as executive director and serves on the board of directors
of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited as executive director; and Mr.
CHAN Sai Cheong serves on the board of directors of Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited as executive director.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles
and responsibilities.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee considers a range of diversity perspectives when assessing
potential candidates for the Board.

According to the Company’s Bye-Laws adopted on May 24, 2019 (the
“Bye-Laws”), any new Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing
Director) appointed by the Board is subject to retirement and re-election
by shareholders at the next general meeting of the Company (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM”) (in the case of an addition to their number)
following their appointment. At each AGM, one-third (or the number
nearest to, but not exceeding one-third) of the Directors (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director) will retire from office by rotation,
and every Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing Director)
including those appointed for a specific term is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The Bye-Laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

Code Provision B.2.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Non-executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term of three
years and will continue in office thereafter subject to termination by not
less than one month’s prior notice in writing by either the Non-executive
Director or the Company. In addition, all Non-executive Directors are
required to retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the AGM at least once every three years pursuant to the
Bye-Laws and Code Provision B.2.2.

In the opinion of the Board, stability and continuation are key factors to
the successful implementation of business plans. The Board believes
that it is beneficial to the Group that there is continuity in the role of the
Chairman and, therefore, the Board is of the view that the Chairman
should be exempt from this arrangement at the present time.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one Independent
Non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Although two of our Independent Non-executive Directors; namely,
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, have served as our
Board members for more than nine years and that may be relevant to the
determination of independence, it is well-recognized that an individual’s
independence cannot be determined solely on the basis of a set period
of time. In assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors, the Board and the Nomination Committee consider the
character and judgement demonstrated by the Directors’ commitment
and contribution to the Board during their years of service and other
relevant factors.

We believe that the Independent Non-executive Directors who have
served more than nine years; namely, Dr. BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG,
provide invaluable expertise, experience, continuity and stability to
the Board, despite their length of service, and does not affect their
exercises of independent judgement. The Company has benefited from
their contribution and the valuable insights derived from their in-depth
knowledge of the Company and from their work and experience outside
of the Company. Dr. BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG have expressed
objective views and given independent guidance to the Company over
the past years.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
all Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

Code Provision B.2.3 provides that if an independent non-executive
director serves more than nine years, his/her further appointment should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders.

Dr. BUTTIFANT has served as an Independent Non-executive Director
for more than nine years since March 3, 1995. To comply with Code
Provision B.2.3, Dr. BUTTIFANT retired voluntarily and was re-elected as
Director at the AGM held on May 24, 2019.

Mr. KWONG has served as an Independent Non-executive Director
for more than nine years since April 26, 2004. To comply with Code
Provision B.2.3, Mr. KWONG retired voluntarily and was re-elected as
Director at the AGM held on May 22, 2020.
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Board meetings

The Board holds four regular meetings a year while additional meetings
are held as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of
the Board meetings and each Director is invited to present any business
that they wish to discuss or propose at such meetings. Notices of
regular Board meetings are served to the Directors at least 14 days
before meetings. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given. Furthermore, all Directors have access to the
Company Secretary who is also the Group’s General Counsel for advice
and services to ensure that board procedures and applicable law, rules
and regulations are adhered to. Agenda and accompanying Board
papers are circulated to all Directors and other attendees not less than
three days before the Board or committee meetings to ensure timely
access to relevant information. Minutes of the Board meetings and
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection by all Directors.

Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board meeting may
participate electronically by conference call or via alternate arrangement
in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Moreover, pursuant to the Bye-
Laws, Board approval may also be obtained by way of circulation of a
resolution in writing on urgent matters when convening a Board meeting
is not practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory materials will be
provided to the Directors at the same time when a resolution in writing is
circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, four Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly operating updates and discuss the
Group’s strategies, policies and budgets going forward, as well as other
business. In addition, eight sets of resolutions in writing were passed.
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

Attendances of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and the
AGM during the year ended December 31, 2021 are as follows:

LR/ EERY

Attendance/Number of Meetings

EZe8E ENZEESE RAZE0EE FMZEeed RRAEXE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
EENZ Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
BIES Executive Directors
fEREET Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(LEFITHHEF) (Chairman and Chief Executive) 4/4 TEANA 1 1/1 1/1
Re&EtT Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 4/4 THEAN/A TEEN/A TEANA 11
BEXEE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND 4/4 TEANA TEAN/A TERN/A 1/1
FYTESE Non-executive Directors
BEEEL Dr. CHENG Chi Kong up 4/4 TEAN/A TEANA TERN/A 11
Bt S s Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong 4/4 TEANA TEANA TEAN/A 11
BUkHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
2HRAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
BEESRE ops o Mr. KWONG Ki Chi @8s, J» 4/4 2/2 TERANA TERN/A 11
et Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 3/4 2/2 0/1 11 11
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD f&1  Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD 4/4 2/2 11 TEAN/A 11

ATEREERRANTHES  BUERTEST
REIER AR B NE T RETH -

BEEE

ARFEBAAESELERBEEXBRRAERTE
MME 2B EIREE - NRABABRFREINES
RHUHEZEOMEERXXNG  BEZFEFAODAL
HEREFMBENMERE -

AAAFBHERAEEEGHEDRBERET
HRME - ARRETHMESER ETRA .
FEAEANRHMEEHE ORI EDRER -
BREREERERFCAREERTORTER
MAEER -
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In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the Independent
Non-executive Directors may also meet without the presence of the
Executive Directors from time-to-time.

Training for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package to each newly
appointed Director to ensure that they are sufficiently aware of their
responsibilities and obligations as director.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the Company
Secretary reports from time-to-time the latest changes and development
of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other
regulatory regime to the Directors with reading materials relating to the
latest development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.
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During the year of 2021, all Directors participated in the following
trainings:

HERBERER
BIEEEE N E ESRECHR
MR ER WHE aE

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
Reading conferences relevant

regulatory to the business or
EEHRE Name of Directors updates directors’ duties
BITES Executive Directors
2 EE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter v/ X

(FRFITEARH) (Chairman and Chief Executive)

PREEIET Dr. CHAN Ka Wai v X
BB Mr. Mark Alan LOYND V4 x
FHITES Non-executive Directors
EEMIE L up Dr. CHENG Chi Kong P v X
PR it & S A Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong v/ X
BAFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
2B L Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT v X
BE LA 6Bs, uP Mr. KWONG Ki Chi @as, Jp v X
=B Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) v X
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD &+ Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD v/ X
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Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance in line with the CG Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently, Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. Such practice deviates from Code Provision C.2.1
which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the industry and deep
understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive in Dr. LAU
provides the Group with strong leadership, allowing for more effective
planning and execution of long term business strategies and enhances
efficiency in decision-making.
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The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure appropriate for its circumstances in
place to ensure effective oversight of Management. The main elements
of this structure include:

° Having Non-executive Directors comprise six of nine of the Board;

° Including all Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

o Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors and independent professional advice where necessary;
and

° Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially report
to the Internal Audit Department any suspected acts of fraud or
gross misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive. Details about the “whistle-blowing”
mechanism are discussed under the section “Risk Management
and Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to rigorously
supervise the Group’s management and effectively control key issues
relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes are necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and controls.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process and discussing with the external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit. It is also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
information, overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing the interim and
final results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval. To this end, the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
both the Company’s internal and external auditors. Its terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchange
and Clearing Limited (the “HKEX”).
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review financial
reporting and risk management and internal control matters. The
Director of Group Finance, the chairman of the Risk Management
Committee, who is also the Company Secretary, the Internal Audit
Department together with the Internal Audit Advisor, SHINEWING
Risk Services Limited (“SHINEWING”) (collectively the “IA team”), and
representatives of the external auditor of the Company are expected to
attend the meetings. At the discretion of the Committee, other members
of management may also be invited to attend its meetings.

In 2021, the Audit Committee held two meetings. During the meetings,
the Audit Committee alongside the external auditor reviewed the audit
strategy summary, the final results for the year ended December 31,
2020 and the interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2021.
The Audit Committee also reviewed the activities of the IA team and
its internal audit report, and discussed with Management the report’s
findings and recommendations on the Group’s business operations.
Furthermore, it also evaluated, together with Management, the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems to ensure its
effectiveness, with particular attention to the adequacy of resources, the
qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting staff, as well as their training programs and budget.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
continuing connected transactions of the Group which took place during
the year.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor during the year under review.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee comprising of four
Board members, the majority of which are Independent Non-executive
Directors, and is chaired by Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, the Chairman of
the Board.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, on a regular basis, and to identify individuals
qualified to become Board members. It is also responsible for assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are
then put forward for consideration and where appropriate, adoption by
the Board. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the HKEX.
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In 2021, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the
board diversity policy, to review the structure, size, composition and
skills matrix of the Board, to recommend the rotation list of Directors
to the Board and to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

he Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company will also take into consideration
its own business model and specific needs from time-to-time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. In view of this,
a board diversity policy has been adopted by the Board in 2013, the
Nomination Committee has set measurable objectives based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including, but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate(s) will bring to the Board.

Nomination Policy

In view of the amendments to the CG Code which took effect from
January 1, 2019, on November 8, 2018, the Nomination Committee has
adopted a nomination policy which sets out the selection criteria and
nomination procedures and process when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as Directors.

In the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee will follow the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria as follows:

° Reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board composition in line with the Company’s strategic
objectives;

° Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee
shall consider suitability of a candidate pursuant to the Listing
Rules, the nomination policy and Board diversity policy, and the
independence of an individual for the position of independent non-
executive director; and

° Selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Board members taking into
account the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.
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The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy from time-
to-time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant time.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of three Board members,
the majority of which are Independent Non-executive Directors, and is
chaired by Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu).

The Company adopted Code Provision E.1.2(c)(i) out of the two models
suggested by the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for reviewing and determining the remuneration, compensation and
benefits of Directors and senior management. When the remuneration
package of an individual Director is under review, the Director in question
is required to abstain from voting to avoid any conflict of interest. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the HKEX.

In 2021, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting to review and
approve the remuneration of the Chairman and Chief Executive and to
review and approve the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. No member of Remuneration
Committee should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Remuneration Policy

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining
and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the Company works to
ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligned with the Company’s
objectives and performance. The Company takes into consideration
a number of relevant factors in determining its remuneration
policy, including the salaries paid by comparable companies, job
responsibilities, duties and scope, employment conditions in the Group,
market practices and the financial and non-financial performance of the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as the fees paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, the responsibilities and likely
workload of the relevant Directors and other employment conditions in
the Company to ensure that the Independent Non-executive Directors
and the Non-executive Directors are appropriately paid for their time and
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, (including the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors), is composed
of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable cash
incentives, long-term incentives and retirement schemes, as discussed
below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s basic salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Basic salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position, taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual’s
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits are
regularly reviewed and determined largely on the basis of local standards
and practices.

Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based on
their performance at the Group, business unit and individual levels. The
bonuses awarded to the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive
Directors and senior management are reviewed and approved by the
Remuneration Committee. In addition, the Company operates sales and
business-related incentive schemes to motivate certain staff such as
front-line sales associates to achieve specific sales or other business
targets of the Company.

The Company also operates share option schemes to provide long-term
incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management team. The
details of the schemes, together with information on options exercised
and outstanding in respect of the Directors and employees as at
December 31, 2021 under the schemes, are set out in the Share Option
Information section of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in a MPF scheme registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments are set out in
Note 10 to the financial statements on pages 121 to 123 of this annual
report.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily operations
of the Group’s businesses to the Management Committee. The
Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and comprises
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors together
with one senior management representative.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective control of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, particularly
in respect of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, and, as such, monitors the effectiveness on an
ongoing basis.

Appropriate policies and procedures have been put in place to safeguard
the assets against unauthorized use or disposition; control over capital
expenditure; maintain proper and accurate accounting records and
enhance the reliability of financial reporting; and to ensure efficiency and
effectiveness of operations and compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Such policies and procedures are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
loss, error or fraud, and to manage and minimize rather than eliminate
the risk of failure in the Group’s operational systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework includes
the following major components:

o An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

° Systems and procedures of financial control, risk management and
internal control to identify and measure risks and conduct biannual
risk assessment to monitor the progress of risk mitigation;

° Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting systems for
performance measurement, including regular variance analysis
against budgets and plans, and setting key business performance
targets with appropriate measures to rectify deficiencies;

° Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and
approval of significant contracts, major capital and recurrent
expenditures;

° A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff
to anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the Chairman
and Chief Executive, to the Internal Audit Department which will
refer the report to the chairman of the Audit Committee for further
action; and

° Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.
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The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and the review
of its effectiveness to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk
Management Committee currently comprises four members, including
the General Counsel, the Director of Group Finance, the Associate
Director of Internal Control and senior management representative.
During the year, the Company has engaged SHINEWING, an external
professional firm, as our Internal Audit Advisor to assist the internal audit
function of the Company. The Committee reviews all material controls in
accordance with the Code Provisions on risk management and internal
control systems of the CG Code, and reports to the Board twice a year.
The Risk Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board
for providing assurance on managing and monitoring the systems of
risk management and internal controls. The Committee has evaluated
and was satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function as well as their training programmes and budget for the year,
and reported to the Board that in all material respects the systems of risk
management and internal control over risks associated with the Group’s
operations was sufficient, appropriate and operated effectively on a
continuing basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the IA
team plays a major role in monitoring the risk management and internal
controls of the Group.

The keys tasks of IA team include:

° Unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s key
activities, risk management, control and governance processes;

° Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the units and
subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

° Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee;

° Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and other
Group policy violations; and

° Oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Adopting a risk-based approach, IA team implements the audit plan
approved by the Audit Committee and Management, which is based
on a risk assessment methodology. It furnishes independent and
objective evaluations and recommendations in the form of an internal
audit report to Management. Both in-house IA team and Internal Audit
Advisor reports directly to the Audit Committee twice a year on major
findings, corrective actions and responses from Management. The Audit
Committee has free and direct access to IA team without reference from
the Chairman or Management.

During the year of 2021, both in-house IA team and Internal Audit
Advisor issued the internal audit reports to the Audit Committee and
Management, which covered significant business processes and
activities of the Group. It worked with Management to establish action
plans to address any identified control weaknesses. Post-audit reviews
were performed to ensure those agreed actions have been implemented
as intended.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions”). This is on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, and has been updated from time-to-time. Having
made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout the year
ended December 31, 2021.

In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Specified Employees, which governs the securities
transactions of those employees who may possess or have access to
inside information. The said code covers areas such as prohibitions and
conduct in the dealing of the Company’s securities, avoidance of conflict
of interests and confidentiality of the Company’s information, etc. All
the specified employees are reminded of the compliance of the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions by Specified Employees every six
months.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group, its financial performance
and cash flows for that period. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently, and that where judgment has been
applied and estimates made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the external auditor of the Group,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 60 to 68 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(U BB TRENN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
IEZRE (BREBAHKER Non-audit services
ETETERERENEMBRRE) (included tax-related matters,
certain agreed-upon procedures work
and other reporting services) 1 1
JETE B Statutory audit 5 5
BE Total 6 6

NAEMWE
BEYHEAEB2013FIARETARIWE - BINA
AEEREREEIEPE - BAEBERBER
ROTRBEMERSENESZSRHEER - TLH
BEMMTEMREEER -

R HERER R 2021 F BT ETRAIES. 295 E
BSOS 7 IR R -
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND has been the Company Secretary since
September 2013. He is also an employee and the General Counsel of
the Group. Mr. LOYND is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and Chief Executive on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr. LOYND confirmed that he has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules and received not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in 2021.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Bye-Laws during the year. If any
amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the relevant law
governing the Company, the Company will propose the amendment for
shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the Company.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the major
emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations. The Group’s
senior management keeps a constant and open dialogue with the
investment community through company visits, conference calls,
information sessions and participation in major investor conferences to
communicate clearly the Company’s business strategies, developments
and prospects. About 7 meetings with institutional investors and
research analysts were held in 2021.

The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company proactively
utilizes internet and other forms of electronic communication to deliver
information in a timely and transparent manner. To strike a balance
between keeping shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance
on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results
on the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial results.
Instead, the Company publishes operations updates for the first three
and nine month periods on the websites of the Company and HKEX.
Annual and interim reports, Stock Exchange filings, press releases and
other materials are also accessible on the Company’s website.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
will regularly review this policy to ensure its effectiveness to enhance
shareholders’ relationship with the Company and to comply with the
relevant rules and corporate governance code.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the
Group, and encourages their attendance at shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they may have with the Board or
Management directly. The Company’s AGM is an especially important
forum. In order to encourage and facilitate shareholder attendance at its
AGM, the Company gives at least 20 clear business days’ prior notice.
To ensure clear communication, each substantially separate issue is
proposed under a separate resolution.
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Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so by
contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
listed on pages 169 and 170 of this annual report.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision F.1.5, the Company has adopted a policy
with regard to the declaration of dividends on November 8, 2018. Such
policy aims to allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Company intends to return surplus cash to the shareholders through
the payment of dividends, which is subject to the Company’s capacity
to pay from accumulated and future earnings, cash availability and future
commitments at the time of declaration of dividend.

The Company may also consider declaring special dividends from time-
to-time, in addition to the semi-annual dividends.

The Company’s income and its ability to pay dividends are dependent
upon, among other things, the dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries, which, in turn, would depend on such subsidiaries’
distributable profits, operating results, financial condition, capital
expenditure plans and other factors. The payment of dividend is also
subject to any restrictions under the Bermuda law and the Bye-Laws.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay dividends, subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, where applicable.
Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the form,
frequency and amount will depend upon the operations and earnings,
capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions and other factors of and affecting the Group.

Dividend Policy reflects the Company’s view on the financial and cash
flow position of the Group prevailing at the time of its adoption. The
Board will review the policy from time-to-time and may adopt changes as
appropriate at the relevant time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary or at the registered office of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the Company’s registered office and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong as set out in the “Corporate Information” section
of this annual report for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Procedures for Shareholders to make a proposal at a
general meeting

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth (1/20)
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposal must be deposited at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th Floor, Tin On
Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

Hong Kong, March 10, 2022
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s, women’s
and children’s fashion apparel under Giordano and Giordano Junior,
Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands.
Although targeting different market segments, the brands all strive to
deliver excellent quality, value and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by geography and by brand for
the year ended December 31, 2021 is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 7 to 19 of this annual report.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
can be found throughout this annual report, particularly in Note 3 to
the financial statements. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the financial year under review. The outlook
of the Group’s business is discussed in the Management Discussion
and Analysis section on page 19 of this annual report. Certain financial
key performance indicators which complement and supplement our
financial disclosures are set out on pages 69 to 159 as well as in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section. An account of the
Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders and discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are included in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages ESG.1 to
ESG.62 of this annual report.

The above sections form part of the Directors’ Report.

Compliance with the applicable laws and regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to
the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group. The
Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
with the support and assistance of the legal and company secretarial
department.
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The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) as well as their subsidiary legislation,
codes and guidelines are the principal sources of our compliance
obligations. Laws in other jurisdictions may also apply to our non-Hong
Kong operations, and both in Hong Kong and elsewhere, we rely on the
assistance of external law firms and professional advisers to manage our
legal and compliance risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in laws
and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also regularly
remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the
financial position of the Company and of the Group as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 159 of
this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 6.5 HK cents per share was paid to shareholders
of the Company on September 17, 2021.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 10.0 HK cents per share
for the year ended December 31, 2021. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend
will be payable on June 17, 2022 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on June 2, 2022.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2021, the retained profits of the Company together
with the contributed surplus available for distribution amounted to
HK$533 million (2020: HK$551 million).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31,
2021 are set out in Note 39 to the financial statements.
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in Note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against having such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed under
Share Option Information in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 39%
Five largest suppliers combined 65%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 10% during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers and customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$204,000 (2020: HK$20,000).

BANK LOANS

Details of the bank loans for the year are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statement.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND

Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong up
Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, upP
Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Mark Alan
LOYND, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG Ki Chi shall retire
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM. Mr. Mark Alan LOYND and Dr. Barry
John BUTTIFANT being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election
while Mr. KWONG Ki Chi who being eligible but does not offer himself for
re-election thereat.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 20 to 25 of this annual report.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of our Directors since the report date of the interim report of

the Company for the period ended June 30, 2021 are set out below:

BEEHA EREH
Name of Director Changes in information
PREEE L M2022F1 A - METHARMNGFTHAEE %éﬁ% o

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

WEMEL
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong

Dr. CHAN became a fellow member of the CPA

Australia in January 2022.

R20215F107 @ BETERER/RBARESERARZIFRTESTREIR

Dr. CHENG was appointed as a non-executive director and the chairman of Arta TechFin

Corporation Limited in October 2021.

PR S R2021F4 A -

Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong

RELBEZERARABUREEEERARIZESAKIE(PEAM)
Dr. CHAN was appointed as the managing director, Mainland China of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery

Group Limited in April 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the Directors’
biographical details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of 2021 interim report of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM do
not have any service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and their respective
close associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

RAEQXTRGREERD ZHFE
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
FrisERERHE
Number of ordinary shares held
PTET AR
(EBRE) BRERE S
PN (MeF122) (H15£3)
(Hie£1) Derivative Approximate
BEpng Personal interests a5t percentage of
Name of Directors interests  (share options) Total shareholding
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) (Note 3)
2| 57 #E 27,518,000 - 27,518,000 1.74%
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
PREaiE 600,000 8,700,000 9,300,000 0.59%
CHAN Ka Wai
BEX 236,000 9,064,000 9,300,000 0.59%
Mark Alan LOYND
HtaE - Notes:
(1) ZEER G EFIERBEREAANFFE N - (1) This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial owners.
2) PTAET A 2 HER G IR R A FRA 2 EREFZT (2 Derivative interests are share options granted to the Directors pursuant to the share

RPEFZHERE BHEHNBIRAFHREICOREE
1687

(38)  ER20214F12H31 AF 2 5B 877815 1,578,936,518/%
e

Br Eat RSN - 7A2021F12A31H ° A RalES
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@T&EEWEH@&(m%ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁﬂiﬂ%@u%‘
XVER) 2 B&1n - HERGO K EREBERERBLER
BHEMEERAEISERTET 2 itz #
mEOR R - SKBRBIEEST R MG AR F) KT
ZHERRBORE ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #

option schemes of the Company and details of which are set out on pages 160 to 168
of this annual report.

(3) Based on 1,678,936,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their close respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the continuing connected transactions and material related
party transactions are respectively disclosed under section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 56 to 58 and in Note 36
to the financial statements of this annual report.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under Share Option Information section on pages
160 to 168 to this annual report, at no time during the year under review
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors is interested in any business, apart
from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, as
at December 31, 2021, the following persons (other than Directors and
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

SORBEIT - required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
REQXRRGRAEBERG ZHFR
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
BREREIL
RS EREE (HisF2)
Number of Approximate
TERRER 54 ordinary percentage of
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares held shareholding
(Note 2)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) ZEEHER 2 384,830,000 24.37%
Limited (#/atNote 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I1) ZEHER 2 384,830,000 24.37%
Limited (#inote 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Rt EE 2 384,830,000 24.37%
(HfztNote 1) Interest of controlled corporation
BRREER)ARAG([EAREBZER]) RPEEE 2 384,830,000 24.37%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(“CTF?) (Hfitnote 1)
FAREBREAERAR(TAKRBRIEAL XEWEEZ#ER 384,830,000 24.37%
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(“CTFN") (KiiENote 1)
Sino Weallth International Limited BEREAA 384,830,000 24.37%

(“Sino Wealth”)

ikt -

(1)

@

R20214 124318 + Sino Wealth## £ 384,830,000/ 7
REIR Y - BABFAEREAZEHE  MEAXELEA
Rl B A B 12#) - Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited % Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited5 5ll#F 5 #749.0% K& 46.7 %
##25 - IChow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8l 5 B A 15 AL 1
F#181.0% 325 » Atk Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited * Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings ll) Limited -
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited « B A &AL K B A 15 (22
A #1823 5Sino Wealth #5282 Al (7 FE B s

20211231 H A R A2 #7717 1,678,936,5184%

B -
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Beneficial owner

Notes:

(1) As at December 31, 2021, 384,830,000 shares of the Company were held by
Sino Wealth which is a wholly-owned by CTFN, which in turn controlled by CTF.
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited respectively, which in turn held an approximately 81.0% interest in CTF and
accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings 1l) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, CTF and CTFN is deemed to
have an interest in the shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth.

2) Based on 1,678,936,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2021, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year, which do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following continuing
connected transactions, which are subject to the announcement
and reporting requirements, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the following continuing
connected transactions. When conducting the continuing connected
transactions during the year, the Company has followed the relevant
internal leasing evaluation policy.

(1) Pre-existing Agreements

Members of the Group and members of New World Department
Store China Limited (“NWDS”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“NWDS Group”) have in the past entered into leasing agreements
which include those that completed during the calendar year and
those that remain in force as immediately prior to the execution
of the master leasing agreement (“Master Leasing Agreement”)
on December 29, 2017 regarding the leasing of premises and/or
concessionaire counters in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) by members of the Group from members of the NWDS
Group (the “Pre-existing Leasing Agreements”). Most of the Pre-
existing Leasing Agreements comprise of short-term leases of one
year or less, and as all of the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements are
subject to ordinary and market rental terms based on calculation
of turnover rent, (which in turn is based on a percentage of the
respective monthly turnover), the monthly payable amount to be
made by the Group to NWDS Group will vary month by month.
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Renewed Master Leasing Agreement

On December 31, 2019, the Company and NWDS entered into a
renewed master leasing agreement (the “Renewed Master Leasing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties (i) recorded their mutual
understanding to enter into future lease agreements with respect
to the lease of premises and concessionaire counters in the PRC
from members of the NWDS Group; and (ii) set out the underlying
principles of such future leases for a term commencing from
January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2022.

The Renewed Master Leasing Agreement will expire on December
31, 2022 and will be automatically renewed for successive periods
of 3 years thereafter, subject to, among others, the Listing Rules,
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the Renewed Master
Leasing Agreement.

As Sino Wealth, a substantial shareholder of the Company, held
approximately 24.37% interest in the Company. Sino Wealth is
wholly-owned by CTFN, which is in turn controlled by CTF. Also,
NWDS is a subsidiary of New World Development Company
Limited (“NWD”) and Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is
a controlling shareholder of NWD as well as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CTF; and and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
Limited is a subsidiary of CTF; accordingly, the NWDS Group is
a connected person of the Company and the transactions under
the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements, all future and renewals of
the existing leasing agreements contemplated under the Renewal
of Master Leasing Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

For details of the Pre-existing Agreement and Master Leasing
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
December 29, 2017.

For details of the Renewed Master Leasing Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated December 31, 2019.

The annual caps in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the years ending December 31, 2019, 2020
and 2021 are HK$15 million, HK$5 million and HK$7 million,
respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the turnover rent paid or
payable to NWDS Group by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1.41 million, which is within the annual cap of HK$7 million.
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Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(@)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s independent auditor
was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions stated in the above paragraphs in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option schemes and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year are set out
on pages 160 to 168 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2021.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance so as to ensure better transparency and protection of
shareholders’ interests. Information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 26 to 47 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The employees of the Group are selected, remunerated and promoted
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Please refer
to Note 2 to the financial statements for details of the retirement benefits
provided to employees of the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market standards.
Particulars of the emoluments of Directors on a named basis for the year
are set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent auditor of the Company and
to authorize the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed for
approval at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 10, 2022
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To the members of
Giordano International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Giordano International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 69 to 159, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2021;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Goodwill impairment and valuation of put option liability
° Valuation of inventory

° Impairment of retail store assets

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BMNETNAERERETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEREREHAHESEENGE
Goodwill impairment and valuation of put
option liability

BRI EOII AN i 24 [ BE) - B7E31
f&ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁé ZETHE A I HTE2(]) ~ 2(s)
BEEZEA A F KA 9T 4(i) KX 4(v) -
Refer to note 24 “Gooawill”, note 31 “Put Option
Liability”, Accounting Policies notes 2(j), 2(s) and
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in
notes 4(ii) and 4(iv) to the consolidated financial
Statements.
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Goodwill of HK$541 million on the consolidated
balance sheet arose from the acquisitions of the
Giordano Gulf Cooperation Council businesses
(the “Gulf Cooperation Council Business”),
which has been allocated to a group of cash
generating units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of
goodwill impairment testing. In addition, put
options exist over the remaining interests held
by the non-controlling shareholders of the Gulf
Cooperation Council Business. The put option
liability is stated at fair value at each balance sheet
date, and as at December 31, 2021, amounted to
HK$81 million.

g g MR ABR A
Y [B] & %8 AT fih BE 7
BIFIR B M TE R A AR
AREH -

The assessments of the recoverable amount of
the goodwill and the put option liability valuation
for the Gulf Cooperation Council Business were
based on the same cash flow projections prepared
by management, using fair value less costs of
disposal calculations.

ER B REBMEHENA
E%%EFmﬁﬁﬂuaﬁF%
CWIRAARBEBEHEERK
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We focused on these balances because the

valuation models involve significant judgements

made by management about the future results of

the Gulf Cooperation Council Business.
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We evaluated management’s valuation models by assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology, the process and controls
by which the models were drawn up and compared the underlying
inputs to the latest Board approved budget. We also compared historic
actual results to those budgeted to assess the quality of management’s
forecasting.

BAEE@IFETRANERRREH A - FHlZ
We have focused on the key assumptions and mputs used in the
calculations, particularly:

. FRMERARFTREE  WREBBARMITERBERFENAL
ERNE R AEZETREETMG
the risk adjusted discount rates used, and assessed these against
the cost of capital of the relevant companies and industry and
country specific comparable entities;

. A FEHEERXERCEFETNRRERE  AREEAE
WRRSEMNAEARSFR B XBEENRREEHER - A
e 1875 S B R E AT R HIl AR BN T BT KA R WS ME
ER-Y %@?Eﬁm TTHE -
the projected annual sales growth rates and the terminal growth
rates for the CGUs, as these were considered to be the key drivers
of the valuation of the Gulf Cooperation Council Business. We
compared management’s assumptions of these against external
retail industry outlook reports and country specific economic
growth forecasts from different sources.
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FE

Valuation of inventory

BREEHBHRENF17[FE] - SFBEFL
Wiato(m) Rk EZ & athat RAE+ BIfiE4() -
Refer to note 17 “Inventories” and Accounting
Policies note 2(m) and Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements in note 4(i) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The net inventory balance at December 31, 2021
was HK$606 million. Inventory is carried in the
consolidated financial statements at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. It is difficult to
estimate the net realisable value of inventory in
the apparel industry which could be impacted
by changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates, as well as changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response
to changes in market conditions.

BT AR AR M IR EE R RS
LAEH FIE -

We focused on this area due to the judgement
in estimating the amount of inventory provisions
required.
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We reviewed management’s sensitivity analysis and performed our own
sensitivities, where we flexed the key assumptions within a reasonable
range, to determine at what level the headroom in the model would be
eliminated.

ENRAZEE  RARSEEERHERRKBOHEBNBRRERAFIRE
X e

We were satisfied that management’s judgements and assumptions
used in the valuation were supportable, based on the available evidence
obtained.

HMERTRERBEMATFREAZRFIELRTHECEFEFTRHME
MR RARRAR T -

We obtained an understanding of the key procedures implemented by
management in estimating the net realisable value of inventories and
periodic reviews of inventory obsolescence.

BIVARA TZFERRBRTAZTH L RNTFEEDN - NERFE S HREER
AR - W ARBREEAEMNTE T PR R fIE ERE o
We tested a sample of inventory items categorised into different
seasons of the year to gain comfort over the categorisation and ageing
of inventory and recalculated, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of the provision percentage applied.

BRSEERLFELSR  BMNEUEEEYENBZEFMNBRTERRKNE
AR ES - U D FEEEN BN - RMEKFERBE KRR
MREERIHEHEETIER U RFEEENS R -

We assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by challenging
management’s projections on current trends and demands for the
remaining inventories, with reference to historic sales experience.
We also assessed the reasonableness of the inventory provisions by
comparing a sample of inventory items to actual post year end sales.

BMRREEENMOGTFEERRRANRRER BEREX R
We found the assumptions made by management in respect of the
inventory provisions were supportable based on the available evidence.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

SEEREERE

Impairment of retail store assets

BRHE VI BRENF22[ W% - #EEREE] -
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Refer to note 22 “Property, plant and equipment”,
note 23 “Right-of-use assets” and Accounting
Policies notes 2(h), 2(k), 2(y) and Critical
Accounting Estimates and Judgements in note 4(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements.

EEEBRENERCERE(BEME  HBEKER
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The Group has material operational assets
(including property, plant and equipment of
HK$119 million and right-of-use assets of HK$686
million) which are subject to impairment tests in the
event of trading performance is below expectation.

EREEHHERBAETR  ZEEHEAMRRER
EEAAEACEREE  WEEETZEEREEN
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URERAEEECFREEES A BEBTR?
BEBTT -

Management prepared discounted cash flow
analysis on the retail stores with impairment
indicators. The recoverable amounts were
determined based on the value-in-use calculations
of these retail stores. These calculations involved
significant management judgement with respect
to the assumptions used including the annual
revenue growth rate, gross margin and discount
rate. Based on the impairment tests performed, net
impairment of property, furniture and equipment
and right-of-use assets amounted to HK$1
million and HK$2 million, respectively, and were
recognized for the year ended December 31,
2021.

Bz AR RMATEEMEEA KT S
RS R EE AT R AE -

We focused on this area because of the significant
judgement and estimates used in determining the
recoverable amount of the retail store assets.
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We obtained an understanding of the key procedures implemented by
management in identifying of relevant retail stores having impairment
indicators and the preparation of value-in-use calculations.

HPIRHE T ERERAZGETANEE N -
We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methodology used by
management.

BREZRFPEREELRITENMBLERBITITHEANTH  BEER
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We evaluated the key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
by applying our knowledge of the business and industry and our
understanding of latest market information and conditions, comparing
the cash flow forecasts with the historical actual performance of the
stores, performing market research and assessing the reasonableness of
discount rate adopted by management.

BMRAEERENHERRANBRERBEEERIS

We found the assumptions made by management in respect of the
impairment assessments to be supportable based on the available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor's report is Chan Ka Yee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 10, 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

& OF R B &

HE2021E12A318LEE

For the year ended December 31, 2021

(B EREF(EE)IN (In HK$ million, Wizt

KB EETAENM) except earnings (loss) per share) Note 2021 2020
SHE R Sales 5 3,380 3,122
HEXA Cost of sales 7 (1,450) (1,386)
EF Gross profit 1,930 1,736
HE A R EMWE - EEE Other income and other gains, net 6 118 183
HIHER Distribution expense 7 (1,604) (1,800)
THER Administrative expense 7 (181) (224)
LR (E18) Operating profit (loss) 7 263 (105)
BEER Finance expense 8 (29) (41)
JE(EE ERB) & F Share of profit of joint ventures 20 41 39
B BT 1S B A ) (E548) Profit (loss) before income taxes 5 275 (107)
Frig e Income taxes 11 (52) (1)
TEERABHRERERN (EE) Profit (loss) after income taxes for the year 223 (108)
&G - Attributable to:

RAFRRR Shareholders of the Company 190 (112)

FEVR A Non-controlling interests 33 4

223 (108)

KRR HEENZ Earnings (loss) per share attributable to

SRIREF (FE) shareholders of the Company 12

ERCGENM) Basic (HK cents) 12.0 (7.1)

BE OB1) Diluted (HK cents) 12.0 (7.1)
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EEERaE R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE2021F12A318LLFE
For the year ended December 31, 2021
Hiat
(UBEETREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2021 2020
REERAESHEERN(BE) Profit (loss) after income taxes for the year 223 (108)
Hiima s - Other comprehensive income:
Te&MHEEE=ECIEE ¢ Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
REAMERE W E’D\fcfﬁﬁﬁﬁ Fair value change on financial asset at fair value
ZEREERR through other comprehensive income 19 1 @)
KA EMDEEESR @EZIE B : Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
BINTB AT BEARIR Exchange adjustments on translation of overseas
DRBNRE € H A% subsidiaries, joint ventures and branches (31) 26
REEHRFEEWE(BR) Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 193 (84)
PB4k Attributable to:
EAN/NCTL S Shareholders of the Company 161 (83)
FEE I M RE A Non-controlling interests 32 (1)
193 (84)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A X EBAERLE
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EHEERER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

k23

(X BEETHEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2021 2020
BE ASSETS
REBEE Current assets
Be MIRTTERE Cash and bank balances 14 1,043 1,256
JFEE K2 B R % L i MR Trade and other receivables 16 411 395
FE Inventories 17 606 434
HeBIHE Rental prepayments 18 3 2
AT UL B FR 1S RS 3R Income tax recoverable 19 7
REEEHLE Total current assets 2,082 2,094
kRBEE Non-current assets
REMGARSEAREREZ CMEAE Financial asset at fair value through

other comprehensive income 19 4 3
REREREANEREZCREE Financial asset at fair value through

profit or loss 15 28 28
e & E b EIGR Deposits and other receivable 16 117 97
—MEE N e ER Interest in a joint venture 20 513 549
KEE Investment properties 21 22 23
M - e LB Property, plant and equipment 22 119 130
FREEE Right-of-use assets 23 686 822
GES Goodwill 24 541 541
BEETRIEE B Deferred tax assets 32 96 96
EREBEERT Total non-current assets 2,126 2,289
BEHSE Total assets 4,208 4,383
EERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
REBAE Current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 29 68 52
JEASTBR FR N EoAth FE AT 3R Trade and other payables 30 510 518
HEBE Lease liabilities 23 337 427
RORaHEEE Put option liabilities 31 81 81
FES PSR Income tax payables 126 100
nEBRERE Total current liabilities 1,122 1,178
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EHEEREXR(A)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

k23

(X BEETHEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2021 2020
ERBERS Non-current liabilities
RITENR Bank loans 29 100 100
HEAE Lease liabilities 23 300 340
BELEHIBAR Deferred tax liabilities 32 123 134
ERBEEHEEE Total non-current liabilities 523 574
BEAH Total liabilities 1,645 1,752
BARRHE Capital and reserves
& A Share capital 25 79 79
(] Reserves 28 2,165 2,282
BORAR B Proposed dividends 13 158 109
RN B IR R 2 Equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company 2,402 2,470
FEPE R Non-controlling interests 26 161 161
EREE Total equity 2,563 2,631
EEREEAE Total equity and liabilities 4,208 4,383
FBERBEE Net current assets 960 916
EEABERARBERE Total assets less current liabilities 3,086 3,205
2R =&
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
o EF
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHEERE R

HE2021F12A31ALLFE
For the year ended December 31, 2021
Htat

(X BEEBTRER) (In HK$ million) Note 2021 2020
R Operating activities:
BrET1S T AR (B1E) Profit (loss) before income taxes 275 (107)
. Adjustments for:
EfEEERERT Share of profit of joint ventures 20 (41) (39)
RIBRBFEEAAEEREEZ Fair value gain on financial asset at fair value

TRVEEZ AR BERE through profit or loss 6 = (1)
THE T8~ R IE 8 i Amortization of rental prepayments 18 1 4
FBIA Interest income 6 (12) (12)
M - R REER Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and

EMERE investment properties 7,21, 22 52 67
FREESEITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7, 23 442 542
HEYE - WEREHE Net loss on disposal of property, plant and

FEE equipment 6 1 1
MIEE - e NERIE 2 BBEEE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 7, 22 1 8
YIEE - WER IRRIE 2 R E R Reversal of impairment of property, plant and

equipment 7, 22 - )

FREEEZRERSE Impairment of right-of-use assets 7,23 13 79
ERREEEZRERE Reversal of impairment of right-of-use assets 7, 23 (11) (14)
REREERE Impairment of goodwill 24 - 5
ChEIEE) RETFEBEEN (Reversal of provision) provision for obsolete stock

TFE A and stock written off 7 (1) 9
FEU BR R BT 1R 1 f Change in loss allowance for trade receivables 16 (15) 33
BERESRA Share option expense 9 7 5
BEE M Finance expense 8 29 41
[E H K Exchange difference (3) 4
EEE® - FIER Operating cash inflow before changes in working

FISMER 2 KLERER capital, interest and income taxes 738 622
FEZ03Em)md (Increase) decrease in inventories (171) 105
JEUS BR 3R N E b e U 3R 2 3 N Increase in trade and other receivables (23) (38)
JE{~F BE 20 N ELAth FE AN 20 > 18 0 Increase in trade and other payables = 22
KE RS FIEA RS Cash generated from operations 544 711
BB Interest paid (29) (41)
DB ER Hong Kong profits tax paid (10) ©)
BEN LA Overseas tax paid (40) (45)
REEECHESRANEHE Net cash inflow from operating activities 465 616
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EHRERER(E)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

74

HZE2021F12A31H L FE
For the year ended December 31, 2021
Htat
(X BEEBTRER) (In HK$ million) Note 2021 2020
REXEK Investing activities:
BEEYE  MBERRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment 20 (42) (30)
HEWZE  HERREZ Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
FTiS k18 equipment 1 _
& N H b fE U R Z 18 0 Increase in deposits and other receivables (43) -
TS TE( FRIE 2 1800 Increase in rental prepayments 18 2) (1)
RITEBFR R Decrease in bank time deposits 14 23 227
EHE Interest received 12 12
SR E=XAYNEI S Dividends received from joint ventures 20 34 54
RELBZ2EHS(RAE)RAEEE Net cash (outflow) inflow from investing
activities (17) 262
REEL Financing activities:
e & E b EK G Zm D Decrease in deposits and other receivable 23 84
EREEEHEMNRK Leases payment for right-of-use assets (2 @)
HEBBZASED 2R Payment for principal elements of lease liabilities 35 (436) (489)
BA—ENBRARSBMHEZRZ Payment for acquisition of partial interest of
RIA a subsidiary - (23)
BT A5 50A Proceeds from issue of shares 2 -
1% {7 [21 B Share repurchase - (1)
A FEHR I MR RS A% B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (32) (5)
B AR B, Dividends paid (212) (118)
HIBRITER Addition of bank loans 35 81 153
BEERITER Repayment of bank loans 35 (65) (266)
BMEER RS R B FE Net cash outflow from financing activities (641) (667)
HeERBESEE2Z (D) &M (Decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents (193) 211
FURERRESEHEER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 1,194 970
ReRBESEENMNEER Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
BEoEE on cash and cash equivalents 3 13
FERBAER Cash and cash equivalents at the end
R&%EER of the year 1,004 1,194
RERASEELEFZDN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re RIRITETT Cash and bank balances 14 1,043 1,256
B TR EE=@EAMNU L Less: Bank deposits with maturity over
FHZ RITER three months, from date of deposit (39) (62)
1,004 1,194

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

T W E B AER LA
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EHEREED R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BZE2021F12A31BIEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2021

ARARRELRS
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

REfEARE
BAEREZ
SREERR
Financial asset FEHIE
EXREGRE ERERE at fair value %
i BARH Capital RikE Share EiGfE EfifE  through other it Non- g
(UBEATAEEL) Share  Contributed  redemption Share options  Exchange Other  comprehensive Retained At controlling Total
(In HKS millon) capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves  income reserve profits Total interests equity

Ro02151A18
At January 1, 2021 79 383 3 978 24 9 14 6) 859 2470 161 2,631

AERRAERLER
Profit after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - 190 190 33 223
Hivgraks
Other comprehensive income:
-REBGENERAL ERE SRER
DAfEng
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - 1 - 1 - 1
-EMBAA  —RAERARADAAE
ZELHE
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, a joint venture
and branches - - - - - (30) - - - (30) (1) (31)

Sy

g5alE
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (30) - 1 190 161 32 193

HHERRS
Transactions with shareholders:
REHEE
Transfer among reserves - - - - (U] - 1 - 7 1 - 1
B
Share option scheme
-BREER
Share option expense - - - - 7 - - - - 7 - 7
-RirieEREnETIRA
Share issue upon exercise of share options - - - 2 - - - - - 2 - 2
FERIERRS
Dividends to non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - (32) (32
Call option lapse - - - - - - (27 - - 27 - (21)
0NERFRE Wit 13p)
2020 final divicdend (Note 13(b)) - - - - - - - - (109) (109) - (109)
NNERFRE (Wit 130)
2021 interim dividend (Note 13a)) - - - - - - - - (103) (103) - (103)

ARARRLERARAAREARER
Total contributions by and distributions to
shareholders of the Company - - - 2 - - (26) - (205) (229) (32) (261)

ERRELSH
Total transactions with shareholders - - - 2 - - (26) - (205) (229) (32) (261)

R2021512831R
At December 31, 2021 19 383 3 980 % 21) 115 ) 844 2,402 161 2,563

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEZEBR(E)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

BE20215F12A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2021

ARAREELES
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

REMGERE
BRREREL
Financial asset JEiEI
ERELGR BhiERs atfair value s
e FARH Capital RIGEE Share EXEE Bt through other bty Non- EREE
(HBEETAENL) Share  Contributed  redemption Share options Exchange Other ~ comprehensive Retained 4 controling Total
(In HKS millon) capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves income reserve profits Total interests equity

202051817
At January 1, 2020 79 383 3 978 2 (22) 114 ) 1,089 2640 207 2847

RERRAEREER
Loss after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - (112) (112) 4 (108)
Hivgraks -
Other comprehensive income:
-RERGARERM BREZSREE
AR
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - 2 - v} - 2
-EIMBAT  AERRRARARE
LEREE
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and branches - - - - - 31 - - - 3 5) 26

E e
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 31 - 2 (112) (83) (1) (84)

ERERRS
Transactions with shareholders:
FEEREE
Transfer among reserves - - - - 1) - - - 1 - - -
Bzl
Share option scheme

-lEREER

Share option expense - - - - 5 - - - - 5 - 5

FEHIERRS
Dividends to non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - () ()
RE-SUB-BHEATBHEETEL,

L
Recognition of call option arisen from acquisition

of partial interest of a subsidliary - - - - - - 2 - - 21 - 27
RE-SUB-BRELTBNERNEE

259
Recognition arising from further acquisition of

partial interest of a subsidiary - - - - - - 22 - - 22 (40) (18)
EXiEE
Remeasurement - - - - - - (22) - - (22) - (22)
MI9ERERE (Wit 13p)
2019 finel dvidend (Nore 736) - - - - - - - - (69) (69 - (69
00ERERE Wi 138)
2020 interim dividend (Note 13(3)) - - - - - - - - (49) (49) - (49)
BEZIRM (Hit200)
Shares repurchased (Note 25(c)) - - - - - - - - ) ) - (1)

ARTRRHERAAR IR ARES
Total contributions by and distributions to
shareholders of the Company - - - - 4 - 27 - (118) 87) (45) (132)

ARFERS
Total transactions with shareholders - - - - 4 - 27 - (118) 87) (45) (132)

#20205128318
At December 31, 2020 I 383 3 978 24 9 14 (6) 859 2470 161 2,631

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) distribute and sell fashion apparel under the
brand names of Giordano and Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies,
BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands through an
extensive network with approximately 2,100 shops spanning over
30 countries and regions.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on March 3, 1995 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is 5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha
Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company has its primary
listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on
March 10, 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) measured at fair value.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

TESTHHE(E)

2.

(a)

(b)

(c)

mEEE(E)
HEEREBYHRELENREGBREK
BEERETEEG At - BHEE
Nk BERAARE 2 5 BRFED
H - BT HEREHE 085 RAEME
S B HVBERRBEATEZR
RAMAE RN 4R -

HERKETZERNEE
AREBEAUTESSHIIASERZ
LAEE] 2 4ER) » 202151 A1H K
2EAR AEBYIRFEER

- BEERTEREI BEMK
WEEANEAT BV BHREE
AIE75% - BEMBRELERF
BRBEMBREEAE165 2
ERT —FIREENE —FER2 -

HHRIN S ATE R R R R SRS
HE @ RE R EE RN RE
KED -

C 98 46 1B 1] R 4 % A9 i 18 R &
1E5T 2 2Rl

REE Y EIZATEAZFERMEEKR
RN FIE MR RT 2 Al » TRINFZF
RERITERA T & B AN 5 B 1O B 5 S A ik
MEBREATE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

Impact of new and amended standards

The Group has applied the following amended standards
issued by HKICPA which were effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on or after January 1, 2021:

- Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard
39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 -
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2.

The adoption of the above amendments to standards did
not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies or financial results or position.

New and amended standards issued, but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the new and amended
standards that have been issued but not yet effective. The
adoption of these are not expected to have a material impact
on the financial results or position of the Group.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FEETEHRE)

(d) MIEBLR

(i)

B Bt

MEARRAREEH 2 EE(E
REBILER)  EAEEH2HE
BEREHF PO HmATERR L
FHERNAREEEAHER B

T EZ L O WRET - BIESZE
- MEBAREEFREBEAR
SEZBEZHEAHARK - WEBA
BRI ARELEE6
NG

EBE G

AEBEERABEEBEBAHA
fR-BENBARMEBRENY
B RAMEZEE  HREES
MATBEAEENRE  RAK
BZTHBRAEENAAME T
BENHERENBHERIM
EENEMNEEMBENAAR
B - EEBKAHTDAEE A HR
MEENAEFAZENREBENREE
BE - BEARSEREBERHN

NAEAE -

7N SR % E Bl o 2 - TERR
8 B 7 O (L IRl M S o
WEE TR IR S R IR
MR YR TREA—
BRRKIZLAIEIEEIROFE
E ARAAENIEREERE
RmEEREET AR FEE
MR TR PIMETE o JFEH
MERES M P B H b ME A EB 0 1R IR
BHHMWAAERE  BRIFRE
B AR TE M RIA R A
BEEHE -
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202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021F12H318

December 31, 2021
2. FESTHEK(HE)

(d) MELQF (&)

(i)

a0t (#E)
REEO ()
WERRRARELR B -

HEBHEHDBEBOETT - WEA
BERNRBET HH 2 BHERR
WERBMZA AR EEERESE
Hatg o DAEHERLREZ
Yeas M B RIS 1B R O ERR -

Fresm eE ~ WAEE T (R IReE
1) 1 e i e o W O (] 3B A
RRUE B2 & Ao BB AT
BEEFEAARBZEZENER
BEIE - HEFTINEEZBR
T FrEELE  CHERIFES
MEELEFEZBERAER
PRAKEEN B AR 2 BEEFE
NAE - EREERRAHAER

SEARFZHENRS « B8R K
RHZREBRNGTIAEE - K
BRI TAEE - RIFZR
PRMRHEEZRERHIE
Bo-MBRARAZEMHRRERE
BRATEEERT - UREREAKRE
BFTER AN 2 R — B ©

TEZXELEFREYH B LT
Ex 2

SR G H B IR PR ) M s A AT
TEURKRELRBENRHARS
RER5—BEMAENRER
PBEESGNETHNRS » XM
TAEEN QA EEEREGM
WEMBARFEEREENE
BRIk AL - BB IR
B BE ST

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(i)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
Business combination (continued)

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interests in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired are recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interests recognized and previously held
interests measured are less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly
in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposal to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost,
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

()

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations each
investor have. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the senior decision-
makers. The senior decision-makers, who are responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified as the directors
and senior management that make strategic decisions.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

I[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s companies are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the company operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as at fair value through
other comprehensive income, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average rate is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case, income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rate on transaction
dates); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entities and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the
purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring
the asset into its existing use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives or lease term, as follows:

Freehold land is not amortized.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or lease term.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

- Plant and equipment 5 years

- Other property and equipment 3 - 5 years
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for
long term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or both.
It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents
the purchase price of the investment property and other
costs incurred to bring the property into its existing use.
Depreciation of investment property is calculated using
straight-line method to write off its cost over the unexpired
period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising from derecognized of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognized.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

(k)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of non-controlling
interests in the acquire and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquire over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognized immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial assets

(i)

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) or through profit or loss); and

- those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.
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At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortized cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortized cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognized directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains (losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognized
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
other gains (losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains (losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the income
statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognized
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains (losses) in the period in which it arises.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

(iv)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognized in other gains (losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of the receivables.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis. Cost of purchased goods is invoiced prices plus
procurement costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at which
inventories can be sold in the normal course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less loss
allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank loans in
current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(s)

(t)

Bank loans

Bank loans are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently stated at
amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
bank loans using the effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options issued
by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are
accounted for as financial liabilities when such options may
only be settled other than by exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or at the fair market value of the equity interest of the
investees. The amount that may become payable under the
option on exercise is initially recognized at amortized costs
with a corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put options,
determined as the excess of the fair value of the option
over any consideration received, as a financing cost. Such
options are subsequently re-measured at fair value as a
result of the change in the expected settlement amount
at each balance sheet date, with any resulting changes
recognized in the equity. In the event that the option
expires unexercised, the liability is derecognized with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Current and deferred tax

(i)

(i)

Current tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries and regions
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilized.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Current and deferred tax (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

(v) Employee benefits

0)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in
Taiwan, the Group operates defined contributions
schemes and, if applicable, participates in central
defined contribution provident fund schemes for all
qualified employees. The assets of the said schemes
are held by independently administered funds
separated from those of the Group. Contributions to
these schemes are made by both the employers and
employees at rates up to 20% on the employees’
salaries.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Pension obligations (continued)

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans and mandatory provident fund scheme are
expensed as incurred and, if applicable, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

The branch of wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in
Taiwan has a defined benefit scheme (“Old Scheme”)
governed by the Labor Standard Law and a defined
contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed by the
Labor Pension Act which became effective on July 1,
2005.

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an obligation
to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned for the service years of
all employees before the New Scheme was effective
and the subsequent service years of employees who
chose to continue to participate in the Old Scheme.
The branch currently contributes at 2% of the total
salaries of participating employees as determined and
approved by the relevant government authorities. The
assets of the Old Scheme are invested by the Bank of
Taiwan.

Under the New Scheme, the branch contributes each
month at 6% of the salary of employees, with a cap
of NTD9,000 who choose to participate in the New
Scheme into individual pension accounts at the Bureau
of Labor Insurance.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non- market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognizes the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement and a corresponding adjustment to equity
over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

(w) Provisions

(x)

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, rebates, returns
and value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products are sold
to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card. The recorded revenue is the gross amount
of sales, before netting off credit card fees payable for
the transactions. Such fees are included in distribution
costs. Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and
discounts.

Sales of goods — customer loyalty
programme (deferred revenue)

The Group operates a loyalty programme where
customers accumulate points for purchases made
which entitle them to discounts on future purchases.
A contract liability for the award points is recognized
at the time of sale. Revenue is recognized when the
points are redeemed or when they expire 24 months
after the initial sale.

A contract liabilities is recognized until the points are
redeemed or expired.

Sales of goods — wholesale

Sales of goods are recognized when products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method, taking into
account the principal amount outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

(y)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(vii) Rental and sub-lease rental income

Rental and sub-lease rental income is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

Leases (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate
take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

(z)

Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received;
° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 6). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet
based on their nature.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(aa) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognized in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial risks: (a)
(i) foreign exchange risk, (a)(ii) credit risk, (a)(iii) liquidity risk, (a)
(iv) cash flow interest rate risk, (b) capital risk management and
(c) fair value estimation. The Group’s overall risk management
program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to manage certain risk exposure when necessary.

(a) Financial risk factors

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of the Group
mainly arises from purchases from a Renminbi-based
supply chain and sales proceeds in local currencies
of the relevant group entities. Foreign exchange
risk arising from recognized assets and liabilities
is considered to be insignificant. This is due to the
balances denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity are
generally settled promptly leaving minimal outstanding
foreign currency position as at the balance sheet date.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in
the relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable
to balances with bank, trade and other receivables
and rental deposits. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets. The credit risk
on deposits with banks is limited as the Group mainly
places the deposits in banks with high credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, bank transfer,
through credit cards or through reputable and
dispersed department stores. The Group’s credit sales
are only made to wholesale and franchise customers,
with an appropriate credit history and on credit terms
of 30 to 90 days. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the major types of debtors of
the Group as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

(K BEEETAREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
HESPR Counterpart:
BEAT Department stores 134 134
InEERS Franchisees 82 67
Y A RERFK Credit card receivables 12 9
Hi Others 14 18
FEWERFR (I 7E16) Trade receivables

(Note 16) 242 228
E Landlords 166 188

408 416

JE I BR 56 Trade receivables
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B E 5 RUR S B IER B F
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B BRERERAREERR
FriEmo 4 -
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The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on share credit risk characteristics.

For the trade receivables, the counterparties primarily
are large corporation and have strong financial position
and management considers the credit risk is not
high. The Group maintains frequent communications
with these counterparties. Management has closely
monitored the credit qualities and the collectability
of these receivables and consider that the expected
credit risks of them are minimal in view of the history
of cooperation with them and forward looking
information.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

3. MHEAREERQIAEEE) 3.
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(ii) EERR (&) (i) Credit risk (continued)
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The directors of the Group consider the probability of
default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis during the year. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares risk of a default occurring on the assets as
at year end date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated.

° Actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
company’s ability to meet its obligations;

° Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the company;

o Significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the company, including changes
in the payment status of the third party.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than
30 days past due in making a contractual payment/
repayable demand.

A default on a financial asset when the counterparty
fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded within 365 days of when they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Over the term of the financial assets, the
Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for each
category of debtors, and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

As at December 31, 2020 and 2021, management
consider other receivables as low credit risk as
counterparties have a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The
Group has assessed that the expected credit losses
for other receivables and the loss allowance provision
recognized during the year for these balances is not
material.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient banking facilities and cash
and cash equivalents, which is generated from the
operating cash flow and financing cash flow.

As at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
all of the Group’s financial liabilities are due within one
year, except to note followings:

15#%
855 7 BaRE
After ReRE
1£R  oneyear S5ENE Total BEE
Within  but within Over contractual  Carrying
(NEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) oneyear fiveyears fiveyears cashflows  amount
R2021%E12A318 As at December 31, 2021
RAERGERE) Bank loans (non-current) 1 100 - 101 100
HERE Lease liabilities 354 306 5 665 637
355 406 5 766 737
R2020F 124318 As at December 31, 2020
BIERERY) Bank loans (non-current) 1 101 - 102 100
RERE Lease liabilities 452 348 8 808 767
453 449 8 910 867

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$1,043 million
(2020: HK$1,256 million) and bank loan of HK$168
million (2020: HK$152 million); the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The
bank balance and bank borrowings at floating rate
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which
is insignificant to the Group. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. Management does
not anticipate significant impact resulted from the
changes in interest rates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as well as
maximizing returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group’s capital structure consists of equity, cash and
bank balances and bank loans as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group may
raise long term debts, adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders and issue new
shares.

The Group monitors capital by maintaining a net cash
position throughout the year. Net cash positions is
calculated by cash and bank balances net of interest bearing
bank loans. As at December 31, 2021, the Group maintained
a net cash position of HK$875 million (2020: HK$1,104
million).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c)

Fair value estimation

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value are
disclosed by the level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:
Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the date of
the statement of financial position. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in Level 2. No financial instrument
is included in Level 2 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in Level
3.

The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI and FVPL measured at

fair value are included in Level 1 and Level 3 of the fair value
measurement hierarchy, respectively (Note 15 and 19).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (continued)

As at December 31, 2021, if there had been a 5% increase/
decrease in the fair value of financial asset at FVOCI and
financial asset at FVPL with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s equity would have increased/decreased by
HK$0.2 million (2020: HK$0.2 million) and net profit would
have increased/decreased by HK$1.4 million (2020: net loss
would have been decreased/increased by HK$1.4 million).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or,
except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognized no longer exists or may have decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment;
— Right-of-use assets;

— Interest in a joint venture; and
—  Goodwill.

The sources utilized to identify indications of impairment are
often subjective in nature and the Group is required to use
judgement in applying such information to its business. The
Group’s interpretation of this information has a direct impact
on whether an impairment assessment is performed as at the
end of any given reporting period.

If an indication of impairment is identified, such information
is further subject to an exercise that requires the Group to
estimate the recoverable amount, representing the greater
of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal or its value in
use. Depending on the Group’s assessment of the overall
materiality of the asset under review and complexity of
deriving a reasonable estimate of the recoverable amount,
the Group may perform such assessments utilizing internal
resources or the Group may engage external advisors to
counsel the Group. Regardless of the resources utilized,
the Group is required to make many assumptions to make
these assessments, including the utilization of such asset,
the cash flows to be generated, appropriate market discount
rates and the projected market and regulatory conditions.
Changes in any of these assumptions could result in a
material change to future estimates of the recoverable
amount of any asset.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if
there are material changes from previous estimates.

Fair value of written put option liabilities

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the equity of
subsidiary companies. The Group recorded such written put
option liabilities at their fair values which are determined in
accordance with the terms under those relevant agreements
and with reference to the estimated post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement is
required to determine key assumptions (such as growth
rate, margins and discount rate) adopted in the estimation of
post-acquisition performance of the acquired subsidiaries.
Changes to key assumptions can significantly affect the
amounts of future liabilities. Put option liabilities shall be re-
measured at their fair value resulting from events or factors
emerged after the acquisition date, with any resulting
changes recognized in the equity.

Recoverability of Trade Receivables

Provision for expected credit losses is made when the Group
does not expect to collect all amounts due. The provision is
determined by grouping together trade debtors with similar
risk characteristics and collectively or individually assessing
them for likelihood of recovery. The provision reflects
lifetime expected credit losses i.e. possible default events
over the expected life of the trade receivables, weighted
by the probability of that default occurring. Judgement
has been applied in determining the level of provision for
expected credit losses, taking into account the credit risk
characteristics of customers and the likelihood of recovery
assessed on a combination of collective and individual basis
as relevant. While the provision is considered appropriate,
changes in estimation basis or in economic conditions could
lead to a change in the level of provision recorded and
consequently on the charge or credit to profit or loss.
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2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

4.

ERERT AT RHE (&)

(vi) FREH

AEBMARZ ERAERBAEN -
FERPTSTHET 2 IRERRT ZERE
ERENHE - RAEXRBBETHE
ZREBMERKNBA LR S MAE -
SEEREELBIMEARIRIEA LG
AAMEREMN G ETHE Z8E ©
RZERHZBERRG/REAN L2
RTRA FHEZEBFEFLEEZ
HAfR Y AT 1S B SR AE R TR 24 -

ErTHERRRBRR

ERTEHEEDE TEEESEEME
BREESENBH - AITERTEHRE
BRTITERILEZER - EEAREA
BREERMERROAIANTELAIERETE
HERHRE R (IR LIE)E - TEREE
(R R IR R ElEE
HIRR A o B AR AR &R R AT
ERE AREEAEMTHESIE
RFAREL) -

IMRBEBAREMHEAREL - ML
SEARANZHEER - L HEE
1T »

EREHERSGBMEEERERBR
TR RE  AEEFRELEERNH
BEEBEREENEE U RHEERF
FOMERAE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Determination of lease term and discount rate

In determining the lease term, management considers all
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination
option. Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the Group has
enforceable right to extend the lease term and the lease
is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).
Potential future cash outflows have not been included in the
lease liability because it is not reasonably certain that the
leases will be extended (or not terminated).

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this
assessment and that is within the control of the lessee.

In determining the discount rate, the Group is required to
exercise considerable judgement in relation to determine
the discount rates by taking into account the nature of
the underlying assets and the terms and conditions of the
leases, at both the commencement date and the effective
date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
development strategies and operational control. There are two
major operating segments: Retail and Distribution and Wholesale
to Overseas Franchisees. Management manages the Retail and
Distribution operating segment geographically and by brand.

Geographically, the Retail and Distribution operating segment in
Mainland China and the Gulf Cooperation Council (the “GCC”)
comprise both direct-operated stores and franchised stores. Hong
Kong and Macau, Taiwan, Southeast Asia and Australia do not
have material local franchised stores. Group stores span most of
Southeast Asia and the GCC.

As for brands, the Group presently operates Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned
and licensed brands.

Adjusted EBITDA is profit (loss) before finance expense, income
taxes, impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment, depreciation and amortization, share of profit of joint
ventures and unallocated corporate items. Segment results are
before finance expense, share of profit of joint ventures, income
taxes and unallocated corporate items. This is the measurement
basis reported to management and the senior decision-makers for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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202112 /31H
December 31, 2021

5.

HERREESH(E) 5.
AEBEEDTHEBRELEHF(EIE)
RS 2 DATEAT o

(BB TREN) (In HK$ million)

HER Sales

4 AREBITDA Adjusted EBITDA

E R Depreciation and amortization
—FREEE - Right-of-use assets

—ME - BERRENRENE

- Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties

EAED Impairment

—FREEE - Right-of-use assets

— ¥ BERRE — Property, plant and equipment
AR Reversal of impairment
—ERREE - Right-of-use assets

DEEE Segment results

1BEDEAY Corporate functions

BMEER Finance expense

[EAE—RA S AR

Share of profit of a joint venture

B P15 51 AT A

Profit before income taxes

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
3 o BB R 2 7

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Analysis of sales and operating profit (loss) of the Group’s
operating segment by geographic regions is as follows.
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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5. HEEREESH(E) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
2020
o
M il Yl
BER RED BREE #E
b4l M ZE® Wholesale
REAEE  Hong Kong Southeast Gulf to
Mainland and A Asiaand Cooperation Overseas A%
(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) China Macau Taiwan Australia Council Franchisees Total
HER Sales 701 362 534 954 387 184 3,122
4CHREEBITDA Adjusted EBITDA 2) 80 127 259 107 9 580
WE R Depreciation and amortization
~EREEE - Right-of-use assets (57) (142) (60) (196) 87) - (542)
—ME - BERZENRENE - Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties (11) (5) 9) (29) (13) - (67)
UEAE! Impairment
-RREEE - Right-of-use assets 6) (51) - (18) (4 - (79)
—WE - HERR - Property, plant and equipment 0 (5) - @) - - ®)
AR Reversal of impairment
-ERRAE - Right-of-use assets 4 4 - 6 - - 14
¥ - BELEE - Property, plant and equipment 2 - - 1 - - 3
DEEE Segment results (71) (119) 58 21 3 9 (99)
Bt Corporate functions ®)
HEER Finance expense (1)
BHEEDREH Share of profit of joint ventures 39
BRATEHRAIER Loss before income taxes (107)

A
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December 31, 2021

5. SHEHEREESIH(EA) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
UmEE D 2 EERDHEEE L2 E—F Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution operating segment by
AHTEAT o brand is as follows.
2021 2020
(B#8)
Fd bkl
kil Operating
$HE% Operating HESR (loss)
(UBEETAER) (In HK$ milion) Sales profit Sales profit
TERDH Retail and Distribution
Giordano % Giordano Junior Gioraano and Giordano Junior 2,681 166 2,482 (108)
Giordano Ladlies Giordano Ladies 251 30 235 4
BSX BSX 24 - 45 (4)
it Others 230 27 176 -
3,186 223 2,938 (108)
RARHREE - EREERRBRM(BETE The Company has its domicile in Hong Kong. Sales to external
RHEHEE ) REEINEP 2HEBEA5.49 customers recorded in Hong Kong and Macau (including retail
BB TT (20204 : 5,468 0) « AR KRE and wholesale sales) are HK$549 million (2020: HK$546 million),
A7.661EET(20204F  7.01EET) : MR Mainland China HK$766 million (2020: HK$701 million) and
Hah B EINE P 2 8 E 5 A20.65E 8 T external customers from other markets HK$2,065 million (2020:
(20204 : 18.75f8/%7L) ° HK$1,875 million).
DEzBZEHEEF11EBT(20204F ¢ Inter-segment sales of HK$911 million (2020: HK$690 million) have
6.90EB L) E TE L - been eliminated upon consolidation.
116 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HERREEDI(EA)

B K BE 2 TSR & B A 4008 7% 7T (2020
F R R6008 B T) - BB KEMA
800& & 7T (20204 : ATSFIK&2,0008 8
JL) A A5008 %8 T (20204 © 900& /B
JC)  BEges BN A2,2008 7 7T (20204 -
1,0008787T) » MEEMNABRRAIELZE
® 43008 57T (20204 : FI5 R %2008
EIT) ©

AEB 2 EERWBE D 2T -

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Income taxes charged related to Mainland China was HK$4
million (2020: Income tax credit of HK$6 million), Hong Kong and
Macau HK$8 million (2020: Income tax credit of HK$20 million),
Taiwan was HK$5 million (2020: HK$9 million), Southeast Asia and
Australia HK$22 million (2020: HK$10 million) and the GCC HK$3
million (2020: Income tax credit of HK$2 million).

Analysis of the Group’s assets by geographic regions is as follows.

DEEE
Segment assets
(KBEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
DEEE Segment assets
R 3B SORM Southeast Asia and Australia 1,041 1,102
EMNNHEREIEZES Gulf Cooperation Council 923 918
B RRM Hong Kong and Macau 739 822
TN Mainland China 573 625
=y Taiwan 291 240
3,567 3,707
—HEEANTER Interest in a joint venture 513 549
REMGERERAREREL Financial asset at fair value through
TREE other comprehensive income 4 3
REREFEEAREREZ Financial asset at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 28 28
ELEFITREE Deferred tax assets 96 96
EEAE Total assets 4,208 4,383

ReMmITAREERBBEEN  REEBER
SR 2 IER B B E %8 A 2.0918 78 T (2020
F244EEBTL)  RHPEKRER1.01ES
JL(20204F  1.08BB L) : RREMTE A
16.88{2/8 7T (20204 : 18.10f&8 L) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong and Macau was
HK$209 million (2020: HK$244 million); Mainland China, HK$101
million (2020: HK$108 million); and other markets, HK$1,688
million (2020: HK$1,810 million).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

117



118

MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

6. HAREMWE  H F8

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET

(A BEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
BT 4 Government grants 38 102
S ON Royalty income 29 30
REFIEE(E Claims and compensation 16 -
FLEHA Interest income 12 12
HekoBKA Rental and sub-lease rental income 7 8
% B A Dividend income 3 3
RIBHRERARERECSRMEEY Fair value gain on financial asset at
DAk fair value through profit or loss = 1
HEWE - MR RERHFEE Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (1) (1)
b 5 (B8 ) W= F5E Net exchange (loss) gain (6) 11
HAh, Others 20 17
118 183

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA
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BB mRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)

Operating profit (loss) is after charging (crediting):

(X BEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
SHER A Cost of sales
FEIHEKA Cost of inventories sold 1,451 1,377
CrEBE ) RET SR E R T EME (Reversal of provision) provision for
obsolete stock and stock written
off ) 9
1,450 1,386
DHEEH Distribution expense
8 I Staff cost 579 574
WEZN Depreciation expenses
—(FREEE - Right-of-use assets 426 525
S /ER EE e — Property, plant and equipment 47 61
THREFCHEER Rentals in respect of land and
building
—HEAE T H - Minimum lease payments 63 66
— N RTELEMH — Contingent rent 147 147
MEETREE Building management fee,
BT FE & 2= A K government rent and rates and
UNSES S35 utilities 103 106
BEEE - #HER Advertising, promotion and
B E e incentives 93 81
B KB Packaging and deliveries 50 45
RITRERARKE Bank and credit card charges 23 20
NERED Impairment
—(ERAEEE - Right-of-use assets 13 79
— W5 - IS NERIE — Property, plant and equipment 1 8
BB E Reversal of impairment
—EREEE - Right-of-use assets (11) (14)
— W - IR R EE — Property, plant and equipment = (3)
JEW R B 1B R & Change in loss allowance for trade
receivables (9) 23
EHAth Others 79 82
1,604 1,800
THEHR Administrative expense
B IR A Staff cost 128 118
FEZN Depreciation expenses
—(TREEE — Right-of-use assets 16 17
S /ERR ST — Property, plant and equipment
A and investment properties 5 6
ERNEEER Legal and professional fee 9 25
% BRI BN Auditor's remuneration 6 6
E PSSR Computer and telecommunication 6 6
EIRE Travelling 2 2
B RAEMTIIE Business and other taxes 1 1
THRkEFZHEER Rentals in respect of land and
building
—&EMAE T H — Minimum lease payments = 1
R ER BB R E E F) Change in loss allowance for trade
receivables (6) 10
H A, Others 14 32
181 224
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2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

8. MEEHR 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
(K E&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
HESEFNE Interest on lease liabilities o7 39
IRITEF B Interest on bank loans 2 2
29 41
9. BEIMKAX 9. STAFF COSTS
(K EEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
FehI&A(BREESWE) Salaries and wages (including
Directors’ emoluments) 640 622
ElEER Share option expense 7 5
BIRE — R HKEE Pension cost —
defined contribution plans 60 65
707 692

KEFRN  KEERGEMAAREERM 2 During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the Group to
(20204 : 8 ) LURE M Z0KF « 720214 % reduce the level of contributions (2020: Nil). As at December 31, 2021
202012 A31 8 - B AR HEEF ARG  and 2020, no unvested benefits were available to be utilized in future
EEHER - years.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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10. EENFENER

B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021F12H31H8

December 31, 2021

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) EEM 2 (a) Directors’ emoluments
EY - RN Ex
WiEHRaC® RASHT
Performance- Employer's
based®  Eftli#* contribution
e #¢ Discretionarye®  Other to pension B3t
ESf? Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses  benefits* schemes  Total
BEFT BEFL BEFT  BETT BT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
2021
BB LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter®t - 3,676 6,368 1,753 - 11,797
Rk CHAN Ka Wai - 2,356 1,500 305 18 4,179
B2 Mark Alan LOYND? - 2,165 1,000 298 18 3,481
HERA CHENG Chi Kong” 200 - - - - 200
it 2 CHAN Sai Cheong” 200 - - - - 200
EHA Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 - - - - 420
BHF KWONG Ki Chi* 360 - - - - 360
B WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 370 - - - - 370
1,940 8,197 8,868 2,356 36 21,397
2020
BB et LAU Kwok Kuen, Petert - 3,216 - 1,859 5,075
RE& CHAN Ka Wai - 2,173 - 246 18 2437
B2 Mark Alan LOYND? - 2,002 - 253 18 2273
BERN CHENG Chi Kong? 200 - - - - 200
Rt S A CHAN Sai Cheong? 200 - - - = 200
Ly I Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 - - - - 420
BEE KWONG Ki Chi* 360 - - - - 360
B WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 370 - - - - 370
1,940 7,391 - 2,358 36 11,725
t FERITREBE i Chairman and Chief Executive
s HITES a Executive directors
» HHITES " Non-executive directors
* BUIERITES Independent non-executive directors
# Hith e BIERBHK - BRE  FEZR # Other benefits include insurance premium, share options, housing
A~ EfhEAL R E S ([E e ]) allowances, other allowances and benefits in kind (“Other Benefits”)
& EEFTE IR DB RFTRTE & Performance-based bonus is determined based on profit sharing ratio
oo WIBMIEAIRTESIRE 26 F B IREN X &&  Discretionary bonus is determined based on pre-determined
FRTE achievement rate of profit targets
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2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

10. EEMAEMNER (F) 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)
(a) EEM = (a) Directors’ emoluments
RAFER  MEFXNZMER%EN The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to Directors
™ of the Company during the year is as follows:
(BT TREr) (In HK$'000) 2021 2020
we Fees 1,940 1,940
Hitnfi & - Other emoluments:
EXFHe Rk Basic salaries and
HAb iz other benefits 10,553 9,749
RIRSET BN Contribution to pension
schemes 36 36
EETE BB L Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 8,868 -
21,397 11,725
(b) ENBEHFRHRE (b) Five highest paid individuals
RAFER  AEBRUSSHBE T The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
BIE3AL(20204F : 3L )EE - HE& the Group for the year include 3 (2020: 3) Directors whose
HIBEERNLEEE - KEER - 2 T2 emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
(7 (20204F : 27 ) Ex = E B B 7 e < B The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2020: 2)
0T individuals during the year are as follows:
(LB TF T /38 107) (In HK$°000) 2021 2020
EXFa &k Basic salaries and
E e other benefits 5,118 4,796
RN ET B Contribution to pension
schemes 93 61
EETE S RIBEMIEA Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 3,327 248
8,538 5,105
122 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. EENRNZMER (E)

(b) B EZEHRHE (H)
#HIEReFBERNESARRENT

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell
within the following bands:

AE

4 48 B Number of individuals
Emolument bands 2021 2020
BB

HK$

2,000,001-3,000,000 - 2
3,000,001-4,000,000 1 -
4,000,001-5,000,000 1 -

(c) EE - ZTZREEEEHMNE
AERBRZEENVBEEZIHIE
HHWER  EEXRNHEMARS
RABER K TFEURAGES
BHZEERIEHNEABRBREZS
ETAEENTRATSZAZER £
BEREEMR S  BEFREESEQFIE
B 55383(1)(d) 16 & 622G ZEE =5
EREE (20204 « &) -

11. FrBH
EBFEHRBEAFTE 2 s ERE R
1£16.5% (20204 : 16.5% ) 2 TRt E - &
7S LASINE B 2 FE G TS R Ty IR (8 Bl 8k i &
BAZRERTE -

(c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities for disclosure pursuant to section
383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
3 of 622G (2020: Nil).

11. INCOME TAXES

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Income
taxes on profits assessable outside Hong Kong are calculated at
the rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

(A BEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
KEEFMEH Current income taxes
BB Hong Kong 5 5
AN Outside Hong Kong 32 16
BAFEBEEE Over provision in prior years (3) @)
MEBiE Withholding taxes 20 21
54 39
EFEFTSH Deferred income taxes
CE M EE 2 HTAE REE Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (2) (38)
52 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

11. FREBI (&)
S B TNEERFEREAEE AR 2B/
1,3008 78 7T (20204 : 1,2008#87T) - &
BERERFP ZEEAERAREF TR Z A
EHRIEE 2 FTSHEHIR ©

BEBREMAE 2 % BRSNS
BEFTSH 2 FEIRIT ©

11.

INCOME TAXES (continued)

This charge excludes the share of joint ventures’ income taxes
of HK$13 million (2020: HK$12 million) for the year. The share
of profit of joint ventures in the consolidated income statement
is after income taxes accrued in the appropriate income tax
jurisdictions.

Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before income taxes at the tax
rate of Hong Kong to the income tax charges is as follows.

(A BEEBTRER) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
BTSSR S A (E518) Profit (loss) before income taxes
(T BIEELEERREA) (before share of profit of joint

ventures) 234 (146)
RETISHIE16.5% (20204 : 16.5%) 51 & Calculated at an income tax rate

of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) 39 (24)
HEMERTRABIE 2 Effect of different tax rates in

other regions (3) (6)
AR 2 H Expenses not deductible for tax

purposes 4 34
RERCBELEFIBEE Deferred tax assets not recognized 16 9
HERMZ A Income not subject to tax (18) (30)
FARAARBRER2HIE Utilization of previously unrecognized

tax losses 3) -
nEiE Withholding tax 20 21
BEFEBEEEE Over provision in prior years (3) @)
FriEdiH Income tax charges 52 1

12. BREF(EE)

ERERAREERF(ER) VBRAFEQR
% 58 & 1k BR AT 15 81 18 B F1.90 18 7% 7T (2020
F o EBEBIA2BBT)TE -

ERERERN(FEER) IR AFERNDETR
5 2 AN 19 A% #01,578,188,266 i% (2020
£ :1,578,073,660% )5t & -

HE2021F12A31HILFEMNE R EE
BRI FRNBETRG 2 NEFHRE
1,578,188,266 % 11 B && 1R 5 AN A &) B %
BEIRH A M ARITEERESEITE
i E1T,2 B0 2 hniE 39 A% £16,738,446/% 5

b

ﬁo

AT R AITHEEREMEENEEEE
TERGAGREEER  BIE2020F 124
1R BRI EEEESRARNSERS -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

12.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share are
based on the profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the year of HK$190 million (2020: loss of
HK$112 million).

The basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the weighted
average of 1,578,188,266 shares (2020: 1,578,073,660 shares) in
issue during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average of 1,578,188,266 shares in issue during the year
ended December 31, 2021 by the weighted average of 6,738,446
shares deemed to be issued if all outstanding share options
granted under the share option schemes of the Company had
been exercised.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2020 is
equal to the basic loss per share as the potential dilutive ordinary
shares arising from exercise of the outstanding share options
would be anti-dilutive.
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202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

13. K E 13. DIVIDENDS
(a) XREEREWT : (a) Dividends attributable to the year:
(X BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
BEIR 2T RS AF6.581L Interim dividend declared and
(20204 : TM&R3.1781L) paid of 6.5 HK cents per
share (2020: 3.1 HK cents
per share) 103 49
REFREEZZ AR EBER10.0/8(L Final dividend proposed after
(20204 : GR6.9781(0L) the balance sheet date of

10.0 HK cents per share
(2020: 6.9 HK cents per

share) 158 109

261 158
MR2022F 38108 F EBgEHEALR On March 10, 2022, the Board has recommended a final
B AETRR10.081 - AFREEARQT dividend of 10.0 HK cents per share and is subject to the
RRRBAF RS FESIRELE - tLTEER approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
KR EEAEEZE AL EERASAE - # annual general meeting. The proposed dividend has not
RS2 @BNERBER 2 ARFIR been recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date. The
BITRMEBEFE - amount of proposed dividend was based on the shares of

the Company in issue as at the reporting date.

(b) BRE—FE > UREXFER (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year,
EHERKENRE : approved and paid during the year:
(X BEEBTHREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
B0 ROR #2020 R EAM B R B K697l 2020 final dividend approved
(201945 : GR4.47(L) and paid of 6.9 HK cents

per share (2019: 4.4 HK

cents per share) 109 69
2020 R HARR B YL AR N A A20214F6 The payment for 2020 final dividend was based on the total
A3H Z B EBITRMBEURN © number of issued shares of the Company on June 3, 2021.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 125
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

14. BERBTEF 14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(KBEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
ReMReFE Cash and cash equivalents 1,004 1,194
FHABR=@EA R BITER Bank deposits with maturity over
three months from date of
deposits 39 62
1,043 1,256
AEENEZRERBRITEFBEESE.56 Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group were cash
BB (20204 : 2.86EB L) 2 AREIRE and bank balances totaling HK$156 million (2020: HK$286 million)
NMARITHAT © denominated in Renminbi.
AREBTFTHEFEZANEEIN X AT F1.8% The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group was 1.8%
(2020%F : 2.2%) * FARZEFRZ FHEIH (2020: 2.2%) per annum; these deposits have an average maturity
R AZR—EA - of more than 1 month as at year end.
15 RERZERLOAEEE 2E8EE 15 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
BER BHEN
Preference Forward &5
(G EETAEN) (In HK$ million) Shares contract Total
MR2020F1 A1R 2BV Z AR E Opening fair value at
January 1, 2020 28 200 228
& Disposal - (200) (200)
72020%12A31H  2021F151H & Closing fair value at December
2021F 12 A31B 2 IR AR 1B 31, 2020, January 1, 2021 and
December 31, 2021 28 - 28
52 AR Current portion - - -
RHIE D Non-current portion 28 - 28

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REZEZEAAEREEZERMEE
(#&)

MR2008F 6 A27H » REBEGI VY EE &
i & Placita Holdings Limited ([ Placita |)
21.0% s © RIEZ R - 6,055,4400% F 8
AR ANEBIF A H T30.0% 2 T2 RA
“AB B D 8 /56,055,4400%Placita Z 18 5t
AR (TEERR D) o toh - REE TR E TE 5%
% 2 2 oh B o
ZEAREREAREENEEZENAARE
HE - AAEEREFREE  MERER
CEBFFARAABUEEHERAREH TG -

R2019%F - AEBEE—FHEBEHRIEITEIL
—MmERAY - £ E2,6008ETT ° A
FIER2020F1 A7HE

RESREANBEREZSREEZARE
gEaRaprERCHEARMEA -

BEREARRBEERRANEREZERE
EAABEEREMRBRRSR  RENYZE
BEMEENTABEDS EREHEM (T
BREHA)  REFBVHREERF135HH
NAENBROBERE=R -

BREHANNNBEaRRARNEREZS
MEEZAABERREMSMAEA ZERE
o REFEMBEREENFISRZAAE
BRABRE— -
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15 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

On June 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest in Placita Holdings
Limited (“Placita”). As part of the agreement, 6,055,440
ordinary shares representing the Group’s remaining 30.0%
of the total issued share capital of Placita were redesignated
into 6,055,440 preference shares of Placita (the “Preference
Shares”). Furthermore, the Group was granted a put option on the
Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are measured
at FVPL. The fair value has been and will be re-assessed by an
independent professional valuation firm at year end and the end of
each subsequent period.

In 2019, the Group entered into a forward contract with a principal
banker approximately USD26 million. The contract had been
settled on January 7, 2020.

Changes in the fair values of financial asset at FVPL are recorded
in other income in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of the financial asset at FVPL in respect of
Preference Shares are determined based on discounted cash
flow, using inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under the
fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

The fair value of the financial asset at FVPL in respect of forward
contract is determined using its market exchange rate, which is
categorized as Level 1 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 13.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

16. MU AR R K A fth FE WK

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(K E&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
JE Uk BR 3R Trade receivables 242 228
o R Less: Loss allowance (45) (60)
eI BR FUFE Trade receivables, net 197 168
Hi B - BiEEI& Rk Other receivables, including

BT FRIR deposits and prepayments 214 227
JrE LA R SR % At E U R Trade and other receivables 411 395
2o [ H R Deposits and other receivables 117 97

MR R EEREMBER  RELERHLA
ERRIZZEERA - AEBELEBR T4
FI0EQREEH o FEURRTR I H b FE UK
ZHREERERAERE -

(a) BRER DT
WEBEZHFEMBREERE ZBRE DT

Trade receivables mainly comprise amounts due from franchisees,
licensees and retail proceeds due from department stores. The
Group normally allows a credit period of 30-90 days. The carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are stated approximately at
their fair values.

(a) Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis from the invoice date net of loss allowance is

R as follows:

(U B &ErTAEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
0&30H 0 - 30 days 144 162
31E60H 31 - 60 days 33 6
61%90H 61 - 90 days 13 -
#190H Over 90 days 7 -

197 168

AARKEZEED BN RS - A
RUKERT ERT 2 EERR -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group has a large number of internationally
dispersed customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. RUERF R b U =k (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

AR 2 A7 ()

202112 A31H » BEE I &EFE
2 JEUWBR FX &3,7008 7 7T (20204 :
5008%7L) - mETAEBREFPERD
WEIZERAC 6 - RIBFDHI R 81D 2 ERER
DT -

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)

As at December 31, 2021, trade receivables of HK$37 million
(2020: HK$5 million) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of customers for whom there has been no
recent history of default. Their ageing analysis from the due
date is as follows:

(U B &EETRENN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
0£30H 0 - 30 days 21 5
#30H Over 30 days 16 -
37 5
R EE R (b) Loss allowance of trade receivables

FEMBR SRR B 1B B - TOABBIR P A
R BRIEAEERAREERRAE RIS
i LB T - BREFSERER
o BR SR AR 8 o

AERERBEE 2 (BREEELE
BERTD)WT ¢

Loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the loss
allowance is written off against trade receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

(KB ZEETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
M1A1H At January 1 60 27
S iE B o Reversal of provision for

loss allowance (17) -
RF R Provision for the year 2 33
MW12A318 At December 31 45 60

&1 51 FE Uk B 3R 2 s 18 B4 38 I B3R B R
HEMEF @ KELBTEEER AUk
B 505 FEUBR R - EIt R AR TR
B REBBRRZIFELHT00E BT
(20204 : 800& B L) iR -

B IERE EL A UK IR ) B AR
KA B R4,3008 8T - HIRR B2
FYAHAEERBLTEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #

(c)

The individually loss allowance for receivables relate to
customers that are in financial difficulties and management
assesses that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts were recognized. The Group holds a
collateral amounted approximately of HK$7 million (2020:
HK$8 million) over the balances.

Included in non-current other receivables was an interest
bearing and secured receivables of HK$43 million with a
term of 2 years and extension at the discretion of the Group.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

17. BE INVENTORIES
(A BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
UK Finished goods 606 434

FEECHRABRYCEEHEEKRAFT A
14 518748 7T (20204 : 13. 77188 7T) °

18. HEFMNRIE

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included in cost
of goods sold amounted to HK$1,451 million (2020: HK$1,377
million).

RENTAL PREPAYMENTS

(ABEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
M ATE ZEREHEE Net book value at January 1 2 11

BEEE Translation difference - (1)
e Additions 4 1

e Disposal (2) -
B Transfer out - (5)
ZNCTES: it Amortization for the year 1) (4)
W12 A31 A 2 BREFE Net book value at December 31 3 2

19. REMGESRERDIANEREZS
BMEE

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(A BEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
M ATBZBYIZ ARE Opening fair value at January 1 3 5
DB EFEEA Change in fair value

REMGBERZEARBEREZ transferred to financial asset

TREERE at FVOCI reserve 1 @)
M12A81BZBRARE Closing fair value at December 31 4 3

R2021512 A31H K2020F12A31H » R
HMFEeREZ AT EREECSRMEERR
ARFRIERAR AR ([REIREK])3.21%
i o ZEBERNWEITEFHE - AERERH
ERKREEER  RASENETEHERZ

M2021F12 4310 » REMEREWEIZAR
BEREZEMEEZ AR ERBREH I
HoBREETE  BREEBMBREERZE3
WX ARNBEEREIERE— -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

As at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, financial asset
at FVOCI represented 3.21% interests in Speedy Global Holdings
Limited (“Speedy”) and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Speedy is engaged in garment manufacturing business and is one
of the key suppliers of the Group.

As at December 31, 2021, the fair value of the financial asset
at FVOCI is determined using its quoted price on the Stock
Exchange, which is categorized as Level 1 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATElVIENTS (contlnued)

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

—BEeEATIREDR 20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
TX#HEHzE *é NBEIZIAZ BB The joint venture listed below has share capital consisting solely
B EFTELRAT AT of ordinary shares, particulars of the unlisted joint venture is as
follows:
BERTRESHERAK
FRL T A i B FEMER
LBATEE Place of BERABOLE Issued and fully
Name of incorporation Percentage of paid share capital or FE
joint venture and operation equity holding registered capital Principal activities
2021 2020
Giordano Corporation RERE 48.5 48.5 5,150,000,0008 8 KETEREREBAR
Limited* Republic of Korea KRW5,150,000,000 Retail of apparel and
accessories
* —KEEREZEENA] * A joint venture held indirectly
et - 720206 8H AEEHEEREREERR AR Note: In August, 2020, the Group disposed of its entire 49.0% equity interest in
22 EB49.0% %1  IRE (B A98,000/4 T ° Cheong Yiu Enterprises Limited for a cash consideration of HK$98,000.
(A BEEBTRENL) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
M®1A1H At January 1 549 538
FEAE 5 T Share of profit 41 39
S e /NEI ¥= Dividends received from joint
ventures (34) (54)
"mE=E Translation difference (43) 26
MW12A31H At December 31 513 549

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

20. " EEELAIER(E)
BEDTAIZHBEREE

TXHINALERR 2 EERFHEE -

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Summarized financial information for joint

ventures

Set out below is the summarized financial information for joint

ventures

EEEEBERE® Summarized balance sheet
(K BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
B Current
RENHESEEET Cash and cash equivalents 51 76
Hi B &&= Other current assets 739 864
MENE AR Total current assets 790 940
HitmehafE Other current liabilities (159) (178)
mENBELREE Total current liabilities (159) (178)
IEFRE Non-current
BE Assets 494 492
BE Liabilities (69) (122)
BEFE Net assets 1,056 1,132

= A (I 34 Summarized statement of comprehensive income
FmeEWmRER
(U BEETREL) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
& Revenue 1,234 1,157
e R Depreciation and amortization (112) (114)
& Expense (1,011) (937)
B BT 5 %50 AL s ) Profit before income taxes 111 106
Frig#t Income taxes (26) (26)
FREr S L 1& 5 ) Profit after income taxes 85 80
H iR & Was Other comprehensive income (91) 54
iz (BR)kaE Total comprehensive (loss) income (6) 134

132 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. —EEEQATESE(E)
BEERBEEAGR
AUARBREBEYMEERBERGE -

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Reconciliation of summarized financial information

Reconciliation of the summarized financial information presented
to the carrying amount of the interest in joint ventures.

(K BEETRENN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
1A1REEFE Opening net assets at January 1 1,132 1,108
KEZHF Profit for the year 85 80
RE Dividends (70) (110)
hEZER Translation difference (91) 54
12A31REEFEAE Closing net assets at December 31 1,056 1,132
EE—HeERaER Share of interest in a joint venture 513 549
TS HE Lease commitments = 5

REBFFBAEZ - HAERBIZERLIRE
BRIEFARARABERENAE Mm% —HE
EBRAERNGTEEANABBREAASE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #

There are no material contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in a joint venture,
and the joint venture have no contingent liabilities and capital

commitments themselves.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

21.

REYE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REBFBYEERRIMA - The Group had properties which held for long-term rental yields.
(K BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
B Cost

®1A18 At January 1 64 60
BmE R Translation difference 2 4
M®12A318 At December 31 66 64
2ERINE Accumulated depreciation

M1 A1H At January 1 41 37
BmEER Translation difference 1 2
e Depreciation 2 2
W12A318 At December 31 44 41
A12A831 B ZEREFE Net book value at December 31 22 23

ZIREWENR2021F12A31BZ A A EH
B HEZHEEQARE - MAETRE RS
BRERE  BBRANARIMEER SR
HEMEBITREENT KMBAEZME LN
BEARLE  HERARBEEE DT
BERE - HEMRANBETMSEESE2ZE
B Y E TN E b v] 8 bt /9 ¥ 230 BR RO R 75 AR
Se R2021F12A31H - ZW¥E(BEHE
T MEFED) 2B RAERSL00EE T
(20204 : 3,5008%7T) - EAHFIERFAE
BEEEMEZHASWAB4108E7T(2020
& 1 33088 7T) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

The fair value of the investment properties at December 31, 2021
was assessed by an independent professional valuation firm.
Valuation was based on income capitalization method which is
based on the capitalization of the net income and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate capitalization rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.
The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings, within the subject properties and
other comparable properties. The total fair value of the properties,
including leasehold land and the building portion, was HK$34
million (2020: HK$35 million) as at December 31, 2021. In
the consolidated income statement, rental income relating to
investment properties of HK$4.1 million (2020: HK$3.3 million) was
included.
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21. REWE(E)

WEETMEZRAAER  WDEZES KR

EREERERK MG

BB EMER BRI AT ERINE

HELXH  HEHR

BF HEHR AT ZNE0F
(ABREERE)

BREMEZREFEINNOT

MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

<

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight- line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold Land Over the term of the lease
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or no
more than 50 years.

The net book value of the investment properties is analyzed as
follows:

(U EaE&TREN) (In HK$ millions) 2021 2020
EEBUINES Outside Hong Kong, held on lease
10 E50F 4 of between 10 and 50 years 22 23

BREMENRAERRBEOBIEER A
BRMS EBRGSHER(TABERBA) 1R
BEEBMBREERNFEISRNIAENER

DERE=R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 #

#

The fair value of the investment properties was based on inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBmEKE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021%12H31H

December 31, 2021

22. ¥k - BERRHE

(W EEETAES) (In HK$ millon)

RAE Cost

R202151 418 At January 1, 2021

BEEE Translation difference

RE Additions

mE Disposals

20215124318 At December 31, 2021

ERAERAE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

R2021F1A1R At January 1, 2021

BEES Translation difference

HiE Impairment

TEENE Depreciation charge for the year

nE Disposals

20215127318 At December 31, 2021

#2021512/31R Net book value at
ZEAFE December 31, 2021

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= R E R AR

n

=

22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

22 ¥ MERFZE(E) 22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
HEME
KAFR 2 Rk
pas: BATRE
REF Leasshold
Freghold WERRE improvements, HE
land & EF Plant & furniture & office Motor Rt
(W EEETEEN) (In HK$ million) buildings Buildings  equipment equipment  vehicles Total
AR Cost
202061418 At January 1, 2020 56 12 50 1,113 21 1,252
HhEER Translation difference 2 - 1 29 - 32
NE Additions - - - 30 - 30
HE Disposals - - (1) (113) (1) (115)
20206124318 At December 31, 2020 58 12 50 1,069 0 1,19
ERAERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
202051 A1H At January 1, 2020 16 3 49 996 17 1,081
hEER Translation difference 1 - 1 30 i} P
i Impairment - - - 8 - 8
HERE Reversal of impairment - - - () - (3)
TEERE Depreciation charge for the year 1 1 - 62 1 65
HE Disposals - - (1) (112) (1) (114)
2020123318 At December 31,2020 18 4 19 %81 7 1089
R2020512A31A 2 Net book value at
BEEE December 31, 2020 40 8 1 78 3 130
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

23. EAREEREERRE

BERBBEREIINTHHEERBENEHE

LIABILITIES

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

FRHEESE . Right-of-use assets
(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
RAE Cost
MW1A1H At January 1 1,910 1,908
hEZEE Translation difference (4) 22
EEN Transfer in = 5
E Additions 124 134
HEBENR Lease modifications 186 5
e Disposals (227) (164)
W12 A31H At December 31 1,989 1,910
Z2BIE Accumulated depreciation
kiBE and impairment
W1 AR At January 1 1,088 629
BREZEE Translation difference 2 16
BE Impairment 13 79
B Reversal of impairment (11) (14)
REEWE Depreciation charge for the year 442 542
e Disposals (227) (164)
W12 A31H At December 31 1,303 1,088
M12A31A 2 REFE Net book value at December 31 686 822
2021 2020
HEEE: Lease liabilities:
TED Current 337 427
IERE Non-current 300 340
637 767

HEHIR IR H AT R6.7588 7T (20205 :

744188 TT) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

38 s s nmmrsRrR LA

The total cash outflow for leases was HK$675 million (2020:

HK$744 million)
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. EAREERMEEAE(H)

NEFEBESRBRHAE  HELH  BE -
TEFHMNRE HEAR—RETA1ER
50%F -

HEFRERBERNBRHEETH - EF
BETRMGERMGET - BT HEARED
HEEETHERFREZI - HEBZETIEN
EEMER - HEBEETNSBIEEERR

HoMERERSHEPIMIELHEEEEY
Z A B FIER - HRERIFAT c &m A B
100% K8 & 1+ F2 25 ] & 58 & FUE K
BT BOoLEEAEEEMN10.0%-27.5%
(2020%F :8.0%-30.5%) ° {# F3 A] & {5 K
MNERBEZE  SREAETZPITHET
A - IRIBEHERETNAEHENK - &
FEZETRGEH R EBAALERRR T AR

e

AEENZENEHER SRR IR IER
- ZERRDARNEERSERAEEE
ENHNKEERN - A KM ITEH
R IDEZEERAARETE - mAFH
BRALBEATTEE
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202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group leases various properties, including offices, leasehold
land, warehouses and retail stores. Rental contracts are made for
periods of 1 to 50 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are
linked to sales generated from a store. For individual stores, up
to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of variable payment
terms with percentages ranging from 10.0% to 27.5% (2020: 8.0%
to 30.5%) of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety
of reasons, including minimizing the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales
are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the condition
that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximize
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

140

HE2020F12A31HILFE - ARHNENE
BERIEIL  BEFES008 B T EA G
ARDEER -

BEMNAERAIEZESHENEEE D
=g EMRERGIEZEESEEDES
B NEEETERNEERERERSEER
BPNREEARE BEZAUKBDESETD
BERAARBRLEKRANGTE - FIERIER
A EBEEGFTOEARTEREIETERNT
BHEE(FE=H—RBWE3c) - ZEFFE A
FENEREILE 2 SFEMISTEE T ERAT
RenE EREREBATSEMNAER
AEZESERMEYMBER CTEHRE
EEE - RMBEMNABEREGIEZES -
TEMHE EEMEFHFHEHEEREERA
5.7% (20204 : 12.0%) o 5F HifE LA 12 2 1]
EME - R RBBREETFI% (2020
T 3%)EE - PETR A S 28 R B (T Pt
wHl) ERRBEMER ZHATMIIREA
9.8% (20204 : 10.3%)  Hith &/ 15 =
REEZEgEAERZHAIRIREHE
B10.5%%11.5% (20204 : 11.5%%12.9%)
MERMERBEE DI HFTRR

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

24. BHE 24, GOODWILL
(U B E&E T AEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
M1A18 At January 1 5441 546
RIE Impairment - (5)
M12A318 At December 31 541 541
(SRR Impairment test for goodwill

During the year ended December 31, 2020, goodwill impairment
of HK$ 5 million has been recognized in the consolidated income
statement due to the cessation of direct-operated business in
India.

The GCC goodwill has been allocated to the GCC operating
segment, which represents the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored internally. The recoverable amount of goodwill is
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal, using
inputs for the fair value estimation that may include unobservable
market data (Level 3 — see Note 3(c)). These calculations use pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. Management
determines the financial budgets of the GCC business based on
past performance and its expectations of market development.
The weighted average annual sales growth rate in the forecast
period is estimated to be 5.7% (2020: 12.0%). Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated terminal
growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%) per annum. The pre-tax discount
rate used for United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) as a tax-free zone is
9.8% (2020: 10.3%) while other GCC region use pre-tax discount
rates ranging from 10.5% to 11.5% (2020: 11.5% to 12.9%) which
reflect specific risks relating to the current market assessment of
risks specific to such assets.
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25.

B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

e (&) 24. GOODWILL (continued)
EFTRAN2021 4 K2020F 12 A31 B /§ & The Directors are of the opinion that there was no impairment of
AR EIEZ E @@ W EEERAE - the GCC goodwill as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
AEBRTHRBEFERENRWBEREKRE The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
ETHRESN - AREERERNHZ B assumptions used for the annual impairment test for the GCC
BENBEEESHHEISEGENARRE goodwill. A reasonably possible change in key assumptions
EZBemEzReELE T2 AR used in the impairment test for goodwill would not cause any of
BEAWESE - RESEMARRAE the carrying amount of the GCC CGUs to exceed its respective
ZEeMENTEGLTHEEREEEK26ET recoverable amount. If the GCC’s forecasted annual sales
SBE(20204F : 1.01A A 9D BY) sk F pTEL IR =12 growth rate had been lower by 2.6 percentage points (2020:
540 B8 92 (2020%F - 1.6HEEDE) © LA 1.0 percentage points), or the pre-tax discount rate had been
PR EEEAE o Al EEmS higher by 4.0 percentage points (2020: 1.6 percentage points)
FEHEAE o with all changes taken in isolation, the recoverable amount would
approximate its carrying amount.
Bz 7 25. SHARE CAPITAL
ROEE ;&N
(In HK$ million, except number Number of Share
(BRI E B SN - X FEETTBEN) of shares) shares capital
ZESKREMBESEBWZEER : Authorized ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each:
M2020F1 H18 - At January 1, 2020,
2020F12A8318 - December 31, 2020,
2021F1A1B & January 1, 2021,
2021512 A31H December 31, 2021 2,000,000,000 100
ERTRE2EBE - Issued and fully paid:
7202041 A1H At January 1, 2020 1,578,500,518 79
FREE REEHE RN Share repurchased and
cancelled during the year (870,000) -
202012 A31H & At December 31, 2020 and
2021F1H1H January 1, 2021 1,577,630,518 79
EITE AR M T 2 IR D Issue of shares pursuant to
exercise of share options 1,306,000 -
R2021F12H31H At December 31, 2021 1,578,936,518 79

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

141



142

B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

25. A (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BITR M

RIEARR 2 BRETE - AQFEM
BREZEA(BERFRITEEBERE
2 HEF))E£171,306,0000% (2020 ¢ 4 )%
LB FREESHEN - FAKRET
FERESE EBH R AFRE160
BEZ168HIZ@EA [EAREE A -

ARRBBEIT AN EBREARFE
HZEBAEMESTEAZFHEREE

N2
S o
I

(BRI 2 BEBERARBBERER
REFRZ BB FBEHNANFRF160
HZE168H °

L ACI gy

HZE2021F12HA31BIEEE - AAF]
BAERB TR A L@ G -

HZE2020F12A31HILFE @ RIEAX
ARRABRERNESEEREMN —RERE
AAE B R FTEEE 4 $£870,000%
ARAREBBERN  BREAB1008ES
T ZEEBERMEZEFEREAA
RIBRITRAEEZER G 2@ EY
W o

BRI N REN ZEEEARAT
ZRFRMN - HANSEHRDEE
ZAREEE RRTF 5 A B R A AR O]
e

—BEEERTMEBEENRG
A2021F12A31H » —EAE R TE
A XA 711,800,000 & 37 & & 15 (2020
£ 1 1,800,000 BALAD ) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Issue of shares

Pursuant to the share option schemes of the Company, the
Company issued 1,306,000 (2020: Nil) new ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company to option-
holders who exercised their rights attached to share options
during the year. Movements in the number of the outstanding
share options during the year is set out on pages 160 to
168 under the heading “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” of this
annual report.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company ranked
pari passu with the then existing shares of the Company in all
respects.

Share option information

Summary of the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” and details of
the movement in share options of the Company during the
year are set out on pages 160 to 168 of this annual report.

Repurchase of shares

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company
did not repurchase its ordinary shares on the Stock
Exchange.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, pursuant to
the general mandate granted by the shareholders of the
Company to the Board, the Company repurchased a total
of 870,000 of its ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange
at a total consideration of HK$1 million, these repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled and the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of
the cancelled shares accordingly.

The premium paid and payable on repurchase was charged
against the retained profits of the Company. An amount
equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled was
transferred from retained profits to the capital redemption
reserve.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2021, 1,800,000 ordinary shares (2020:
1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint venture.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ERFEHMES

HE2021F12A31 L 2R ERAER
1,618 7T (20204 : 1.61/887T) » EFHPT.
Giordano Indonesia([ Giordano Indonesial)
151.4618 8 7L (20204 : 145 L) * M
Textile and Garments Co. Ltd. ([ Giordano
KSAJ) 151,500 % 7T (20204F : 1,1008 %
7o) o HM AR 2 IFERERTERX o

20207 A17H - MEIFZEWEB QA
ER 3¢ P9 Fff /2 2 &) Giordano Indonesia # JE 22
MM R E 5T T W B & - DA UEE Giordano
Indonesia® 2 TR KD H15% + B E
R400EF KT - HHERKI2,3008 8T -
SERK 18 0 AN % E #5 % B Giordano Indonesia
52.06% B 1D - WHSHEEER AR RIMEE
HF2EMBRR  EUMBEEREESHE
REENTFEREF ©

ZIR B ARVEE 202067 A e 5 -

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

26. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The total non-controlling interests as at December 31, 2021 are
HK$161 million (2020: HK$161 million), of which HK$146 million
(2020: HK$145 million) is for PT. Giordano Indonesia (“Giordano
Indonesia”) and HK$15 million (2020: HK$11 million) is for Textile
and Garments Co. Ltd. (“Giordano KSA”). The non-controlling
interests in respect of the rest of the companies are not material.

On July 17, 2020, the indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary
entered into the acquisition agreement with the non-controlling
shareholder of our subsidiary, Giordano Indonesia to acquire
15% of the entire issued share of Giordano Indonesia, for a total
consideration of SGD4 million, equivalent to approximately HK$23
million. Upon completion, the Group will own Giordano Indonesia
as to 52.06% and will remain as an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and its financial results will continue to
be consolidated into the financial statements of the Group.

The acquisition is deemed to have been completed in July 2020.

EEEBEREH Summarized balance sheet

Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(U FEETHAEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020 2021 2020
E Current
BE Assets 322 280 101 100
A& Liabilities (109) (46) (53) (72)
MENFEERT Total current net assets 213 234 48 28
FERE Non-current
BE Assets 140 155 51 56
B8 Liabilities (40) (87) (5) (8)
EMENFEELRTE Total non-current net assets 100 68 46 48
FEE Net assets 313 302 94 76
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

143



B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

26. EXFEHMEER (&)

26. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

(continued)

meaWBEREE Summarized statement of comprehensive income
Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(X G EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020 2021 2020
N Revenue 516 380 249 205
R PS5 A a A (B 1R ) Profit (loss) before income taxes 85 9 17 8)
Fria®s Income taxes (17) 1 @) -
BRATBHRBER (E5E) Profit (loss) after income taxes 68 10 14 (8)
H b 4R & Uak Other comprehensive income (3) (4) - (1)
WA (F5E) Total comprehensive income
(loss) 65 6 14 (9)
FEIEHI MR IS 4B AR A W e Total comprehensive income
(fE518) (loss) allocated to non-
controlling interests 33 6 4 (1)
IR E MR E Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests 32 - - 5
RERBERBH Summarized cash flows
Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(U B BB TAENT) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020 2021 2020
CEEB RS RAFE Net cash inflow from
operating activities 169 78 69 40
EZER 7S CRE)RA  Net cash (outflow) inflow from
HER investing activities (100) 3 (11) (20)
BEHEB 2R F5E Net cash outflow from
financing activities (69) (38) (60) (15)
HERBELEE 2R )IE I (Decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents - 43 (2) 5
MATRZEE R Cash and cash equivalents at
REFBEET January 1 133 91 50 46
G [ R BB 2 R Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes (1) (1) 1 (1)
M2A31BZEBER Cash and cash equivalents at
HEZEEEE December 31 132 133 49 50

FRERRRAEB AR ZEEHRTH S

M s s mmmamaa=

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

eliminations.

The information above is the amount before inter-company
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AAEERERNESEHR

THE COMPANY

B 3% R M EE (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

27 BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

NEBEEEEEX Balance sheet of the Company
(X Ba&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
EE ASSETS
REBEE Current assets
W MIRTTET Cash and bank balances 118 253
7 LR BR 3 R H b B R Trade and other receivables 15 5
FEUFT1S TR Income tax receivable o 2
R ENGI R Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,887 1,821
2,020 2,081
ERBEE Non-current assets
REZEEAREREZ Financial asset at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 28 28
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 93 99
JE U BT B A &) kI8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 157 184
Sl EENEIE Interest in subsidiaries 816 816
1,094 1,127
EEASE Total assets 3,114 3,208
BERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
nBAE Current liabilities
JFEE 1T B SR R L A JE ST 3K Trade and other payables 7 6
JEBIE AR FIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,488 1,567
BEAE Total liabilities 1,495 1,573
B &S Capital and reserves
fi&% 7 Share capital 79 79
= Reserves 1,382 1,447
BRI B Proposed dividends 158 109
B Total equity 1,619 1,635
EEREEERH Total equity and liabilities 3,114 3,208
BERBEE Net current assets 525 508
BEABRRBERE Total assets less current
liabilities 1,619 1,635
2| E R RE#E
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
E E2
Director Director
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B %% R M AL (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

RAEERBERERERZSD R (H)

27 BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

NTRESEEE Equity movements of the Company
(ZitEE)
-1 BRE ity
REGfE B&  (Accumulated
R BABH Capital RiEE Share losses) i
Share  Contributed  redemption Share options retained Total
(HBEETAEL) (In HKS millon) capital surplus reserve premium reserve profits equity
R2021F1A1H At January 1, 2021 79 540 3 978 24 1 1,635
REERH Profit for the year - - - o o 187 187
it Yieny Total comprehensive income - - - - - 187 187
fElafiAeE Transfer among reserves - - - - m 7 -
g3 Share option schemes
-EREER - Share option expense - - - - 7 : 7
-RiERRER S - Share issue upon exercise of share - - - 2 - - 9
b options
0ERBRE Wit 1) 2020 final dividend (Nt 7315) - - - - - (109) (109)
NNERERE (Wi 13m) 2021 interim dividend Note 134) - - - - - (103) (103)
- - - 2 - (205) (203)
R2021E12A31H At December 31, 2021 79 540 3 980 24 1] 1,619
20205 Z LEEEF AT The comparative figures for 2020 are set out as follows:
‘ %ﬁﬁﬂ
EX BhE  (2HEE)
BURE fE Retained
e SRS Captal Rirag Share profits Engs
Share Contributed redemption Share options  (accumulated Total
(W GEETAEN) (In HKS millon) capial surplus reserve premium feserve losses) equity
#2020F1 518 At January 1, 2020 n 540 3 978 20 (383) 1,287
REERT Profit for the year - - - - - 511 511
ibsreYeey Total comprehensive income - - - - - 511 511
et Transfer among reserves - . - . (l 1 _
ERiETE Share option schemes
-BREER - Share option expense - - - . 5 B 5
19ERERE (it 13h) 2019 final cvidend (Note 130) - - - - - (69) (69)
N0FPHRE W 158) 2020 interim dividend (Note 13/3) - - - - - (49) (49)
- - - - 4 (1) (113
#2020 12A31H At December 31, 2020 79 540 3 978 24 1 1,635

o

A

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& o BB R
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

28. f##E RESERVES
R 20214F K& 2020F 12 A31H » NEE 2 f# The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are
BOWWT analyzed as follows:
(A BEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
AR Contributed surplus 383 383
BB B Capital redemption reserve 3 3
10 mE Share premium 980 978
A R R Share options reserve 24 24
bE S Exchange reserve (21) 9
H A Other reserves 115 141
REMEERRIEARBERELZ Financial asset at fair value
DRLEEME through other comprehensive

income reserve (5) (6)

EAT Retained profits 844 859
2,323 2,391

R EARR B (H12£13(a)) Proposed final dividends

(Note 13(a)) (158) (109)
B4R EE Total reserves 2,165 2,282

REBzHBABHRDERSEEANEE S
EIREE  MEBERTIIREMN199545 A 29
A5 2 imat8lm#EsT - IRIBE R iE1981
FREVE(EE]) - BABBADIR TR o

Hit B EBHBFIBNOT ¢

(@ REFEREERZEIZEMBIESR  +
BAEZ B AR EERBEES A
REmEEEBE(NE) RAEMZE
MEBAEZEAEE

(b) IRZBFRENE R BLED SRR %
R RERBEZEERREERE
Ho MHEMFEER ATAREE R R E
BREEEAR - MAABIER SR EIR
E

© RIRMEBEEERRDED] - PR 2 M

BRAIZEERBES  BRBIERE
SN ARMEDECZA ©

(d) RERGHEZERIBEEES 1008
B IT(20204F :8,1008 8 T) (MisE31) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #

The contributed surplus of the Group represents a credit arising
from a group reorganization pursuant to a scheme of arrangement
which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(@)

According to the relevant laws and financial regulations,
the statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China are used to make up prior years’ losses, if any, and to
increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation
Law and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve
fund and other reserves of the joint venture in the Republic
of Korea may only be used to offset a future deficit or be
transferred to capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

According to the UAE Commercial Companies Law, the
statutory reserve fund of the subsidiary in the UAE is not
available for distribution except as provided in the Federal
Law.

Put option financial liability recognized of HK$81 million
(2020: HK$81 million) (Note 31).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

29. SRITER

29. BANK LOANS

(X BEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
RITERBIEUATEIE Bank loans comprise the following:
MHIRITER Short-term, unsecured 68 52
EHIRITER Long-term, unsecured 100 100
168 152
RITEFAENR T HBEE - The bank loans are repayable
as follows:
BIHAsk —F K On demand or within one year 68 52
MEERFAN Between two to five years 100 100
168 152

AEBEZRITEFATIEEE -

The Group's bank loans are denominated in the following

currencies:
(A BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
— AT - Hong Kong dollar 140 140
— ¥ b3 T — Singapore dollar 11 12
— Ak — New Taiwan dollar 17 -
168 152

MR2021F12A31H » AEBEZRITERNE

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank loans as
at December 31, 2021 was 1.1% (2020: 1.6%). The bank
loans bear interest at floating rate that are market dependent.

BRAIEE1.1% (20205 : 1.6%)  SRITERW
TEFEHREURAT I o

T B R A RS AV IRITE R AR K B
REMARERQEM -

The bank loan obtained by our subsidiaries are secured by the
corporate guarantees provided by the Group.
IRITERMEREEE AR BEEE - The carrying amounts of bank loans are stated approximately at
their fair values.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

48 L s mmmaem®aa
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30. B RRA R H b FE A K

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(U Ea&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
FEATBR K Trade payables 165 166

Hi I3 & Other payables and accrued
e & A expense 345 352
510 518

AT RIeBZ AT 2 BN RFREDIT :

The ageing analysis of trade payables from the invoice date is as

follows:
(U B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
0ZE30H 0-30 days 139 91
31Z60H 31-60 days 10 47
61%290H 61-90 days 5 15
#90H Over 90 days 11 13

165 166

ENEAREMEN R REERELR

& e
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The carrying amounts of trade payables and other payables are
stated approximately at their fair values.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBAERLIA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

31.

RURBEHHERE

2012 % -+ 7 £ @ 3t [ Giordano UAE K
Giordano KSAZ FE#5 A% A% 3 15 i 580l HR g -
NEEHERLERARIZBTEZ TAS
BFfEENYBEEMERAELN1.02E
PETT o FR IR AR B PO AN & B ST AN MLEE
Giordano UAE X Giordano KSAZ %1534 1%
BERS AT c MEEEIMBE - ZxEHKa
B IRE BN AER - BEFTERSE
MIRE - REREHEREaEUET(ET])
SHERSBREBEE -

R 20154 + Z< & & 5k M Giordano Fashions
Co. W.L. L.([ Giordano KW ) % GIO Fashions
W.L.L.([ Giordano QA ) Z JEIZR AR AR 5%
ROnHIE  UEEBEREE AR ZHT#
mPARBEMELANYBEEMERBELY
1,9008 87T  :ZI% L 2 h A AL B R
I B& Giordano KW X Giordano QA Z A& {734
%EERERI T MEBEDEAE - ZEYIB
BEVSEEBEERARER  EtEDS
HHRE - HHRLBAREaENETTER
P AEREAE

o

#2019 & + AN & @ H Giordano UAE -
Giordano KW K Giordano QA & 3F 1% A% i% &
Rl EATERULEE - LRED B
2,1008 % 7T ~ 1,100& % 7T & 5008 % 7T H
£ Giordano UAER20% &8 #E 25 ~ Giordano
KW #J 31% HY £ & # 7 & Giordano QA #Y
A1 %ML ERE 2R o 7R3 — P U Giordano
UAE - Giordano KW X Giordano QAZS & 25
KRS - EFTIR A RROh BRI M R A AE
RonHIE S EE AR -

ZEAREEEDSEENEEREEH
FRBFEUBRERNEZREAABZAR
MET  REREZEENSER R ATER
M EREMERCRAEBREA)  BRIES
B RELEREISRZAARENEBL DA
BE=R-

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

31.

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$102 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from the
put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of Giordano
UAE and Giordano KSA to sell their remaining interests in these
companies to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA and has no expiry date.
Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their amortized
costs, which is measure at the present value of the estimated
redemption amount. The put option liabilities are denominated
in United States dollars (“US$”) and are classified under current
liabilities.

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$19 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from the
put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of Giordano
Fashions Co. W.L.L. (“Giordano KW”) and GIO Fashions W.L.L.
(“Giordano QA”) to sell their remaining interests in these companies
to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time after 3
years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the shares
in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no expiry date. Such
financial liabilities are initially recognized at their amortized cost,
which is the present value of the estimated redemption amount.
The put option liabilities are denominated in U.S. dollars and are
classified under current liabilities.

In 2019, the Group entered into agreements with the non-
controlling shareholder of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW and
Giordano QA who exercised the put option to sell 20% economic
interests in Giordano UAE, 31% economic interest in Giordano
KW and 41% economic interest in Giordano QA at considerations
of approximately HK$21 million, HK$11 million and HK$5 million
respectively. The associated put option liabilities recognized
arising from the put option granted had been lapsed accordingly at
the time of further acquisition of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW and
Giordano QA economic interest.

The redemption amount of the put option liabilities is determined
at higher of fixed amount of cash or fair value of the equity
investment based on discounted cash flows, using inputs that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs), which
is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 13.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32.

BEREMERERAEEEINEEEERRE
RARNEBAER R EMIER SRS -

AEERFAZREERBEENABZE
(ER— B R 2 SR HAT ) T

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method at the rates applicable in the
respective jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year is as follows:

BEHEB(EE)ERS Deferred tax (assets) liabilities
EETNE RATKZ
Accelerated BERF
accounting  Unremitted Hith &%
(UBEFTAEN) (In HK$ million) depreciation profits Others Total
20211 A1H At January 1, 2021 (11) 124 (75) 38
MmEEE Translation difference 1 (9) (1) (9)
RAERS (EE)7X (Credited) charged to income
(Krat11) statement (Note 11) (8) 1 5 2
F2021412A31H At December 31, 2021 (18) 116 (71) 27
7202041 A1H At January 1, 2020 - 117 (46) 71
MEZR Translation difference - 5 - 5
RFERH (ER) 57X (Credited) charged to income
(Bfat11) statement (Note 11) (11) 2 (29) (38)
7202012 A31H At December 31, 2020 (11) 124 (75) 38

REBERERRLEREEET,908EE T
(20207 : 6,2008 8 70) T ERNIIE - b5
RIERELEFIEEEE F4,8008 %8 7L (2020
& 12,2008 70) 5 2021F12 431 HiE5
FRER - R N B EZHBRMN R EEWE

RAEZ ER ARSI

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 #
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The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of HK$79
million (2020: HK$62 million) arising mainly from tax losses. These
unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of HK$48 million
(2020: HK$22 million) will expire within 5 years from December
31, 2021. The remaining portion is mainly related to the losses of
subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which have no expiry date.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

151



MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

32. EXEBEAE(HE)
EEHE(EE)RE(HE)
FEOEERENFFAT - BREMFHRS RF—
MR EERAEER ERELEHRERE
BRI - TIHSBESAEBERER  ©
EHEEREBERANIEK -

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred tax (assets) liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

(A B EBTAEN:) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
RIERIA B B Deferred tax assets (96) (96)
R A E Deferred tax liabilities 123 134
27 38
33. HEAIE 33. LEASES COMMITMENTS

(a) 2021128318 XEEREE/L
i MAERERZTARAREHEZ
HENEENESERAN —FRNEH
#4586 41,9008 8 7T (20204 : 2,200
BB °

MEANBEETRBRGK  HEEM
W N AERE - HTPImcHEREEST
BESERBHSIAHERFEZHE
E(ABEERE) o LHAETIZRKE
REHSAE -

(b) F2021F12A31H - KAEEREETE
FMPEAE 2 ARG 2 2
ENFEREKHESERALT

(@)  As at December 31, 2021, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease charges payable under non-cancellable
leases in respect of retail shops, office premises and
warehouses which were due within one year amounted to
HK$19 million (2020: HK$22 million).

The leases contracts have varying terms, escalation clauses
and renewal rights. The lease rentals of certain outlets are
based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or a
sales level based rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has
been used to arrive at the above commitments.

(b)  As at December 31, 2021, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease income receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops and office
premises as set out below:

(XEEETTAENMN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020

1F R Within one year 7 8
1F & {E5F K After one year but within five

years 14 13

21 21

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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34.

35.

B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BAREE
M2021 4 2020512 A31H » AEE I &
EAERHEMEEE  REAEEHAE
7 BAREIE -

METDHEEZAEBEYE

I
axX

TRFALAEEXREREEFDNAEES
BRACRIIRESED - MEITDMELN
BEDRASREMB > IRKRSRES
AEEGEEVBRRP OB ABETDME
EHRERE -

34.

35.

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group had no material
capital commitment in respect of leasehold improvement, furniture
and fixtures.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

MEXBKAE
Liabilities from
financing activities

HEAE BITER

Lease Bank
(U BEFTAEN) (In HK$ million) liabilities loans
202061 18 2 &% Net debt as at January 1, 2020 1,108 265
BEBITER Repayment of bank loans - (266)
EIMRITER Addition of bank loans - 153
HEaBEzAED 2 F5%K Payment for principal element of lease
liabilities (489) -
HEBBEZFBED 2K Payment for interest element of lease
(REEHEBA) liabilities in operating activities (39) -
FREY Non-cash movements 187 =
FA2020512 A31 A 2 % &% Net debt as at December 31, 2020 767 152
BERRITER Repayment of bank loans - (65)
EIIRITER Addition of bank loans = 81
HEBEBEZ RS D 2R Payment for principal element of lease
liabilities (436) -
HEBBEZHEED 25K Payment for interest element of lease
(REEERBA) liabilities in operating activities (27) -
RS EE) Non-cash movements 333 -
R20215F12 831 B 2 FEH Net debt as at December 31, 2021 637 168

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

36. EERMALRS

BARE A T AR MEES S —7 - HE
EHM B REERRKH S - FITRERY
BHhz AL - KA AESIHEMAER
FENIANLNEREABAL -

(a) EHBEBALZXS
RAFER  ETHBARR-—KRKEA
EEBBRESEQRETERBRME
RARP - BEZERZFAT

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.

(a) Transactions with related parties

During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with joint
ventures in the ordinary and usual course of business
on normal commercial terms. Details relating to these
transactions are as follows:

(X BEETHRENL) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
HET—HAEAQNR Sales to a joint venture 152 155
KEAEE QR Purchases from
joint ventures 1 1
FERFREWA Royalty income from
SRl W/NE] a joint venture 26 24

(b) EERFEE AN 248k
W12 831 BEWER A L5708 ¢

(LB EETRENL)

(b) Balances with related party

Amount due from a related party at December 31 is:

(In HK$ million) 2021 2020

FEM —FE & & R R HIA

Amount due from a joint
venture 7 14

R2021512 831 8 » | it [iE Uk 2 B
T FRIE B RO E AR 3R % H A fE U
Koo EUGRIRS AEER - £ B REAR
EREFER ©

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

As at December 31, 2021, the above amount due from
related party is reflected in trade and other receivables. The
receivable is unsecured in nature, bear no interest and is
repayable on demand.
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37.

38.

MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

EEZEBALIRS (E) 36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c) EEEEE KN (c) Key management compensation
FIERTEEHUREATIEEEE K Executive Directors are considered as key management and
ZMMEE NIRRT 10AHKE - their emoluments have been disclosed in Note 10 to the
HEMFrZERERMNOMeET financial statements. The emoluments payable to other key

management are as follows:

(LGB T T /38 (T) (In HK$'000) 2021 2020

EXFHek Basic salaries and other
HAth Wz benefits 8,388 9,452

RIRSET B Contribution to pension
schemes 129 111

EEE RIE NI Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 3,727 248
12,244 9,811
EEEH 37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

MR20214 2020512 A31H » KREEIT &
BIREAEE -
oAREIE

REEABRE  UTHHEABEBRRUBR
KPR

38.

The Group did not pledge any assets as of December 31, 2021
and 2020.

CONTINGENCY

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in
the financial statement were as follows:

(KBEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2021 2020
REERYEZRS 2 Bank guarantees given in lieu of
RITER property rental deposits 9 13

RFEHREERD  EFTTREAREM
ZERERRMAKAARAQRGIRHZEAR o
It - IR 2021 F K% 202012 A31 H L 7%
LERREHEEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not consider
it is probable that a claim will be made against the Company under
any of the guarantees. No provision was therefore made in this
respect at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

8. AREE (&)

AAREER-—ZEITRE —FEHDEN
HOMEHRGTENFZRMFREERER -
MERFIHE  AQARBEZTERZRER
EEEZNNEREBNRBE  £XE Y
RERREREBES ETBREARE
S,/ REFURE - HE2021F 128318 1E
FE HHEEFELCHER  ARAEERE
MEEFRFNFPELRBF - ZRFD
WEERDE - Al - AR ETAEF B RS
SRFRMEARREMREFFELERNEEE
FMZETETEE M ERBTEER
FEEHENERKNRERE T2 HEBE
AEEENEAEEELEEETE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

38.

CONTINGENCY (continued)

The Company’s long-running dispute and arbitration against
one of its landlords relating to the lease of one of its shop
premises has been concluded satisfactorily. As previously
disclosed, the Company demanded/claimed for the refund of
various management fees and service overpayments from and
against the landlord, which demand/claim had been contested
by the landlord and countered with a counter-demand/claim by
the landlord. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the
arbitral proceedings have been concluded, and the Company has
prevailed largely with its claim and in its defence of the landlord’s
counterclaim, which has been dismissed entirely. As a result, the
Company expects to make a substantial recovery from the landlord
in respect of the claimed overpayments and the Company’s legal
costs incurred in the arbitration proceedings. Further, having
averted the risk of forfeiture of the lease posed by the landlord’s
counter-claim, there will be no negative impact on the carrying
value of the relevant right-of-use assets.
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39. TEMBE QT

RATA2021FE12A31H 2 T BB A A0

BB mRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

T as at December 31, 2021:

BERG 2 BRETR2BHERE/

EREIE TMER/ HEER

Effective Issued and fully paid TEX£#% /KLEHE
HEBLRRE Rt percentage of share capital/registered  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital place of operation

2021 2020

BElRARAAN 5 100 100 3,000,000 HREERRREHRAF
Bluestar Exchange Limited*  Hong Kong HK$3,000,000  EERRE/E%

Investment holding and provision
of company consultancy
services/Hong Kong

East Jean Limited* B5 100 100 1,000,000 KETERELEERR/ &2
Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Retail of apparel and
accessories/Taiwan
GIO Fashions W.L.L.* FER 49 49 200,000FERETH KETERER
State of Qatar QAR200,000  E#ASR/FER
Retail of apparel and
accessories/State of Qatar
GIOR Fashion Company HE 60 60 26,000,000,0008F/E KETERELEEER,/ W
Limited* Vietnam VND$26,000,000,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Vietnam
Giordano (Australia) BN 92.8 92.8 700,00087T QETERERERAR BN
Pty. Limited* Australia AUD700,000 Retail of apparel and
accessories/Australia
Giordano Fashions L.L.C.*  fig 100 49 3,000,000f s CETERER
UAE AED 3,000,000  ECHBAm/ T

Retail of apparel and

accessories/UAE
Giordano Fashions W.L.L*  RIE%H 49 49 300,000RIE S B M KETERER
State of Kuwait KWD300,000  E#BMS/FE

Retail of apparel and

accessories/State of Kuwait
ERRAERD A B 100 100 5,000,00087T LETERMERER
Giordano Limited* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000  E#AR/BE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 #
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Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/
Hong Kong
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2021412 H31H
December 31, 2021

39. TEMBAT(E) 39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RERHZ BRTR2EMRRE

ERES%R SMER/BEER

Effective Issued and fully paid T E%£%, SEHE
MEBAREHE R percentage of share capital/registered  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital place of operation

2021 2020
Giordano (Thai) Co., Ltd.*  ZE 100 100 10,000,000% 8 KETERZLEBAR/ FE
Thailand Baht10,000,000  Retail of apparel and

accessories/Thailand

Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd. BRAD 100 100 5000005k AESE [ETERER
Malaysia RM500,000  EBAR/ BRES
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Malaysia
ENRFER AR P! 100 100 50,00081% WETEREREHEAR,/ RN
Giordano (Macau) Limited*  Macau MOP50,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Macau
Giordano Middle East FZE* Pl — B 100 100 1,000,000ME AN  LEDHERERERAR/
Dubai - UAE AED1,000,000 BB Es — 15

Distribution of apparel and
accessories/Dubai - UAE

Giordano Originals N 100 100 1,900,002 MET  KETEREHRER
(Singapore) Private Singapore SGD1,900,002  ECHEFM/HINE
Limited Retailing and trading of apparel

and accessories/Singapore

Giordano Vietnam Limited* &% 60 60 802,000 WEER EE
Hong Kong USD802,000  Investment holding/Hong Kong
Giordano (Cambodia) RIBE 80 80 4,000,000k HEER LETERER
Enterprises Limited* Cambodia KHR$4,000,000  EHAR/ g%
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Cambodia
PT. Giordano Indonesia* 0 52 52 2,500,000,000808 8 HETERE  BHEARR
Indonesia IDR2,500,000,000  EBHER/HOE

Retail of apparel, accessories and
related products/Indonesia

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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39. TEMBAF (&)

B 3% R M EE (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202112 H31H
December 31, 2021

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FEkH 2 ERTR2BHERE/
ERES %R SMER/BEER
Effective Issued and fully paid T E%£% KEHE
MEBAREHE Rt percentage of share capital/registered  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital place of operation
2021 2020
MRRERBRAR REARLNE 100 100 210,100,000 AR REER - & RHEREK
Shenzhen Tiger People's Republic RMB210,100,000  E#AM,/HEAK
Garment Ltd.” # of China Investment holding,
manufacturing and retailing
of apparel and accessories/
Mainland China
REAEERRA B 100 100 60,001,000 HEER KKEHR
Tiger Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$60,001,000  REEZRE,HEKE
Investment holding, trading of
garment products and
provision of management
services/Mainland China
Textile and DRM AT E 75 75 27,000,000/ % 2% H2TERE
Garments Co. Ltd.* Kingdom of SR27,000,000  E#HAR/ /J\MTH ATE
Saudi Arabia Retail of apparel and
accessories/Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia
Walton International Ltd.*  FI2EE 100 100 102%T  HEEZEHE/EE
Cayman Islands USD102  Licensing of trademarks/
Hong Kong
et - Notes:

fONEEADRE
* AEREZMEBAR

40. B HR 2 HE

KRR N2022FE3A10H EEEEHE

JE ©
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#

# A foreign owned enterprise
*  Subsidiaries held indirectly

40. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board on March

10, 2022.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
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20125 22 B8 5]) (12011 F AR MR &) -
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(1) BEW
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BAERERZ BE R ERSEE -
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TEE) REIHEFZEE
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() EHBEGERZEMA: MEBRAS
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HFZRHAN K

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On June 9, 2011, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(as amended on May 22, 2012) (the “2011 Share Option Scheme”). No
options may be and have been granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme from June 9, 2021, the expiry date, but the options granted
before the expiry date continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the terms of issue. Subject to the aforesaid, the provisions of
the 2011 Share Option Scheme remained in full force and effect until
December 31, 2028, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme is as
follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible participants.

(2) Eligible participants
0 (a)

any Director or proposed Director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive Director), employee or proposed employee

(whether full time or part time) of, or

(b)  any individual for the time being seconded to work
for; any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder; or

(i)  any holder of any securities issued by any member of the

Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or
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(3)

i) ASSEET AL B o T (AR AR S ok e
R AR SR ) 2 AL 22 AR

(@ EAEBHEERAE - NEE -
AER - RERAK

(o) ERATHEEREEFE  BR
S H B SR AR A -
A - BREAMRE -

() EMEmKRFEER -
d EEEP %
e FAEXIFAFR(BEIEAR)

R - 5£2011 F A BT S - e ie —
5% {428 DA FE 12 3 18 2 5 P42
ZAERIAT] -

BREZETTFRTZROAR

HZzt 22 2021 F6 A9H @m » TE IR
B EARIE 2011 F BT BIIR T -

RITERBE2011 FHBREFELARFH
i B8 RO HE St 8 th B 1) RAT (R RO P B BB A
B A RAETHROBE NERBARAR
TEFE BTN B EHIB0% ©

MR20229F3 108  RIE2011 F IR EETE
B RITER A BT Al
EITEI AR 1D 48 81 5 149,208,0008% (HEZ A AR
NRIBBITIRG 2 #19.45%) °
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BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

(i) any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder of;

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services
to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,
(d) any customer of, or
(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the 2011 Share Option Scheme, shall
include any company controlled by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of eligible participants.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE UNDER THE SCHEME

No options may be and have been granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme from June 9, 2021, the expiry date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time-to-time.

As at March 10, 2022, a number of shares available for issue
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is 149,208,000 shares
(representing approximately 9.45% of the shares in issue) may be
issued upon exercise of all options which had been granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2011 Share Option Scheme.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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(6)

(7)
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(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE
PARTICIPANTS

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted or to be granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Company’s shares in issue unless the same is approved by the
Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

In addition, any share options to a substantial shareholder and/or
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, and where the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted or to
be granted to such person in any 12-month period exceed 0.1% of
the Company’s shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the shares on the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to the Company’s shareholders’ approval in
general meeting.

TIME OF EXERCISE OF OPTION

An option may be exercised under the terms of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such
date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
Board may determine in granting the option and expiring at the
close of business on such date as the directors may determine in
granting the option but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant.

THE MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE EXERCISED

As determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFERS

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.
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BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price is determined by the Board which shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date when an
option is offered;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date on which an option is
offered; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

THE REMAINING LIFE OF THE SCHEME

The 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption, and was expired on June 9, 2021.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

BREZEH MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS
RIE011E B IR 2 2 AR N E £2021412  Movements of share options under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
AS1HItFERNZEBEFINT : during the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out below:
2011 F B FEET &
2011 Share Option Scheme
2021 E gk
ROE  RERGRE  REATE  RERRN REREH 12831R ikl
1818248 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled k3 Exercise
AERAL Balance as during during during during  Balance as price FHAH TS
Eligible person at 2021/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  at 2021/12/31 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
BT (£/5/8) (£/5/8)
HKS  (YYYmuoD) YYmmoD)
Bz
Director
B 400,000 - - 400,000 - - 5200 20MAONT 201208022~ 2021/09/30
Chan Ka Wai 600,000 - - 600,000 - - 5.200 201111007 2013/03/01 - 2021/09/30
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - - 5200 201111007 2014102128 - 2021/09/30
100,000 - - - - 100,000 5.000 2014/03/24 2015/03/04 - 2024103123
150,000 - - - - 150,000 5.000 2014/03/24 2016/03/04 - 202410323
200,000 - - - - 200,000 5000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10-2024/03/23
260,000 - - - - 260,000 5.000 2014/03/24 2018/03/09- 2024/03/23
300,000 - - - - 300,000 5.000 2014/03/24 2019/03/08- 2024/03/23
1,366,000 - - - - 1,366,000 4180 2017/01/06 2017/08/11- 202512131
1,666,000 - - - - 1,666,000 4180 2017/01/06 2018/03/09- 202512131
1,668,000 - - - - 1,668,000 4180 2017/01/06 2018/08/10- 202512131
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1.390 2020/09/09 2021/0312- 2028112131
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1.390 2020/09/09 2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1.390 2020/09/09 2002/03/11 - 2028/12/31
10,700,000 - - 2000000 - 8700000
ESX 200,000 - - - - 200,000 5000 2014/03/24 201603004 2024/03/23
Mark Alan LOYND 300,000 - - - - 300,000 5.000 2014/03/24 2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
400,000 - - - - 400,000 5000 2014/03/24 2017/0310-2024/03/23
500,000 - - - - 500,000 5000 2014/03/24 2018/03/09- 2024/03/23
600,000 - - - - 600,000 5000 2014/03/24 2019/03/08- 2024/03/23
64,000 - - - - 64,000 3792 (04/09/2015 2017/0310-2025/03/31
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4180 2017/01/06 2017/08/1- 202512131
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4,180 2017/01/06 2018/03/09- 202512131
1,336,000 - - - - 1,336,000 4,180 2017/01/06 2018/0810- 202512131
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1.390 2020/09/09 2021/03/12- 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 202000909 2021/08/1-2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 202000909 2022/0311-2028/12/31
9,064,000 - - - - 9064000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2021 E gk

R0UE  RERTE  RERTE  REAXN  REREH 12R31A 8

181248 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled P33 Exercise
RERAL Balance as during during during during  Balance as price RiLAH 8
Eligible person at 2021/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  at 2021/12/31 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
A (£/6/8) (£/5/8)
HKS  (YYWMuoD) YYmmoD)
BEANES 2,440,000 - - 2,440,000 - - 5200 201140/07 - 2012/03/22 - 2021/09/30
Continuous 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 - - 5200 201140/07  2013/03/01 - 2021/09/30
Contract Employees 10,700,000 - - 10,700,000 - - 5200 20114007 2014/02/28 - 2021/09/30
392,000 - - - - 392,000 5380 2012/06/12  2013/03/01 - 2021/12/31
2,240,000 - - - - 2,240,000 7650 2013/04/10  2014/02/28 - 2022/03/31
3,692,000 - - 510,000 - 3,182,000 5.000 2014/03/24  2015/08/04 - 2024/03/23
5,512,000 - - 760,000 - 4,752,000 5000 2014/03/24  2016/08/04 - 2024/03/23
7,406,000 - - 1,020,000 - 6,386,000 5.000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
9,300,000 - - 1,280,000 - 8,020,000 5000 2014/03/24  2018/08/09 - 2024/03/23
11,120,000 - - 1,530,000 - 9,590,000 5.000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
3,246,000 - - 360,000 - 2,886,000 3792 2015/04/09  2016/03/04 - 2025/03/31
3,780,000 - - 444,000 - 3,336,000 3792 2015/04/09  2017/03/10 - 2025/03/31
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4,090 2015/07/10  2016/03/04 - 2025/06/30
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4,090 2015/07/10  2017/03/10 - 2025/06/30
942,000 - - - - 942,000 4340 2016/0919  2017/03/10 - 2026/06/30
946,000 - - - - 946,000 4340 2016/0919  2018/03/09 - 2026/06/30
10,668,000 - - 664,000 - 10,014,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
11,794,000 - - 742,000 - 11,052,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
14,738,000 - - 1,608,000 - 13,130,000 4,180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
2,758,000 - - 66,000 - 2,692,000 4050 2017/06/09  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
2,758,000 - - 66,000 - 2,692,000 4050 2017/06/09  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
2,184,000 - - 68,000 - 2,716,000 4,050 2017/06/09  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
21,034,000 - 778,000 792,000 430,000 19,034,000 1.390 2020/09/09  2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
21,034,000 - 528,000 444,000 892,000 19,170,000 1.390 2020/09/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
21,562,000 - - - 1,498,000 20,064,000 1.390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31

175,846,000 - 1306000 27,984,000 2,820,000 143,736,000
it - Remarks:

REZBIRIES G1TEABFZ R 10 104 FHK T ERERT.61

JEIT °
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date of the options was HK$1.61.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

T WE B AR

The weighted average closing price per shares immediately before the respective exercise

=
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2021 E gk
R0UE  RERTE  RERTE  REAXN  REREH 12R31R 8
181248 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled P33 Exercise
RERAL Balance as during during during during  Balance as price LA i
Eligible person at 2021/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  at 2021/12/31 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
A (£/6/8) (£/5/8)
HS  (mmmy) (YYYMMDD)
At 340,000 - - 340,000 - - 5.200 201110007 2012/03/22 - 2021/09/30
QOthers 720,000 - - 720,000 - - 5200 201710007 2013/08/01 - 2021/09/30
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 - - 5200 201710007 2014/02/28 - 2021/09/30
480,000 - - - - 480,000 5000 2014/03/24  2015/08/04 - 2024/03/23
714,000 - - - - 714,000 5000 2014/03/24 - 2016/08/04 - 2024/03/23
960,000 - - - - 960,000 5.000 2014/03/24 - 2017/08/10 - 2024/03/23
1,206,000 - - - - 1,206,000 5.000 2014/03/24  2018/08/09 - 2024/03/23
1,440,000 - - - - 1,440,000 5.000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
200,000 - - - - 200,000 4,180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2026/12/31
266,000 - - - - 266,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2026/12/31
436,000 - - - - 436,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2026/12/31
2,358,000 - - - - 2,358,000 1.390 2020/09/09  2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
2,358,000 - - - - 2,358,000 1.390 2020/09/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
2,394,000 - - - - 2,394,000 1.390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31
16,872,000 - - 406000 - 12812000
&t
Total 212,482,000 - 1,306,000 34,044,000 2,820,000 174,312,000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

166 1 m B B R A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #



2020F @R ER

ZZIR A AR BIRA (i) 20209 A9 B T3 /9 1% B I
WEZ A (iR 20218F 4 A21 B HZ/2020F & 3R
£ ([2020F %R |) R (i) #2021 49 A21 B TIZ M #

EaMm((EFERM])

ETFEENBRE

MR2020F9A9H » R ARIM21 A IEAEAR LN EEM
H A H#£16,872,00010 B - BEFEBEHRRT

N

X :

(a)

(b)

BErREAESR

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION TO 2020 ANNUAL
REPORT

Reference is made to (i) the grant of share option announcement
published on September 9, 2020, (ii) the 2020 annual report of the
Company published on April 21, 2021 (the “2020 Annual Report”) and (iii)

the supplemental announcement published on September 21, 2021 (the

“Supplemental Announcement”).

Share options granted to non-employees

below:

RELHEBERMETNER A (a)
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16 Dhruvesh Tank BINFFETIS B 5T
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18 HanKi INFRFC R ET
19 Shaheen Hartnick JIMS RS 255
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On September 9, 2020, an aggregate of 16,872,000 share options were
granted to 21 consultants of the Company, details of which are set out

Owners of the authorized dealers/franchisees

o N o OB~ W NN =

N — —4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 O
O O O N O O 0N -+ O

Name

Bi Xiuling

Bian Xiaobo
Chen Songyong
Ding Weidong
Han Zhigiang
Huang Zhishen
Pan Zhaogang
Wu Ditao

Xu Heping

Yang Lijuan

Yi Lianfen

Yi Shui

Zhang Yongxiong
Zhao Jia

Zhao Jianbo
Dhruvesh Tank
Roupesh Hematial
Han Ki

Shaheen Hartnick
Larry Lim

A legal consultant

21

Cheng Dawei

Services provided to the Group

Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in China
Franchise business in overseas market
Franchise business in overseas market
Franchise business in overseas market
Franchise business in overseas market
Franchise business in overseas market
Franchise business in overseas market

Provision of law, compliance and human
resources in China consultancy services in
the Mainland China

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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The Board considered that the grant of share options to owners
of the relevant authorized dealers and franchisees would not only
help reward their past contributions to the Group, it would also
help align their interests with that of the Group, and incentivize
them to be more proactive in their merchandising discipline
and marketing efforts. This would in turn increase the Group’s
market shares and development in the local markets. The Board
considered that one-off monetary payment to the Consultant
would not provide sufficient incentives for the Consultant to
continuously review and update the human resources policies
to ensure that they remain both cost-effective and compliant;
whereas the granting of share options would align the Consultant’s
interests with that of the Group and secure his long-term support
and commitment to the Group, and overall incentivize him to
optimize performance efficiency and quality.

None of the above consultants is a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or an associate (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them. None of the above
consultants holds share options entitling them to subscribe for
Shares exceeding 1% of the total issued Shares of the Company
as at the date of grant.

The above information is supplemental to and should be read in

conjunction with the 2020 Annual Report and the Supplemental
Announcement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 § #
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting

Final Dividend

Annual General Meeting
May 20, 2022

Dividends

Interim Dividend

Paid on

Proposed Final Dividend
Payable on

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange
Bloomberg
Reuters

May 16, 2022 to May 20, 2022
(both days inclusive)

May 31, 2022 to June 2, 2022
(both days inclusive)

6.5 HK cents per share
September 17, 2021
10.0 HK cents per share
June 17, 2022

709
709 HK
0709.HK

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

BE BB

ENRBERARAR

EENEE

R EBTTTIETTO

K THEKESE

B : (852) 2746 4668

BE : (852) 2370 8864

BTG investorrelations@giordano.com
48 4t

www.giordano.com

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2746 4668

Facsimile (852) 2370 8864

Email investorrelations@giordano.com
WEBSITE

www.giordano.com
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

BRI MBI G R AR ([EFHR]) #2021
FRE - HEREAWRS - AREARMER
FEE S ENSREEMNES - BthFTaE - &£
ERNEAL 2 9] - FAfIBIA DRAFRE ARHER
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BFE RS2 D @ IR AR — B AR A9t
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2

ERR—BUARBARK A —BAEEENEER
R ¥R2005FEARMAEXHERERRE
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BEEEBMAXZMBRAR (B RER
HURENERER  UREERDEHENQ
RERAEBRUBR ABETRRE T HMY
R HE@RERANBRRERER  BREIMAYEER
B FTER R E - ROV EIARF REH
MARABRPRHEEBEER KBRS - 1AFHR
MERNE TOEREB)EERA RERIE
STHTIERE - BRI - M EREENE
B BRHEREERAFARBENEZETER
FIEEDENIER -

Covid-19RMITMREC KT E T ERREET
EEET - b LR EIP e EIEE - BRI
RARLERBLBENESN - BZMENTRS TR
IR » Bt - R2021FERIR - g RER®
ERNREEREAMEAE  BRMAYITHER
REBORBAGEIDABRETS -

Welcome to the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance (the "ESG")
Report of Giordano International Limited (“Giordano”), which updates
our latest initiatives and achievements with respect to sustainability. As
you may be aware, 'World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano's credo
since its inception and reflects our vision to create a sense of familiarity,
regardless of ethnicity, nationality or culture, which transcends our
operations and management.

Giordano has long been committed to being a responsible corporate
citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social Responsibility policy
statement in 2005. Since then, we have continued to focus on “doing well
by doing good” in order to make a positive impact in the communities
where we do business, paying particular attention to stakeholder relations,
community involvement and environmental protection.

With the onset of enhanced compliance requirements set by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on ESG Reports
and growing demand for corporate disclosure from stakeholders in
general, this Report primarily addresses our approach and performance
against ESG metrics, including the impact that we are making on the
environment and communities, the way we deliver responsible products
and exceptional service to our customers in fairly and transparently, how
we invest in our employees’ development and foster an inclusive and
supportive working environment, as well as our framework to develop
strong governance, effective risk management systems and robust
controls.

The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic has affected many aspects
of Giordano's business, from the suspension of planned community
activities, through to our ability to leverage certain economies of scale,
and, it follows, enhance our efficiencies. Certain indicators in this 2021
ESG Report will, therefore, be somewhat distorted, but our long-term
commitment to our sustainability targets remains unwavering.
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GIORDANO

Reporting Standard, Principles and Scope

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and in compliance with the “comply or explain” provision thereof.
Detailed references to the ‘Stock Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide” have
been included at the back of this Report to aid readers and facilitate
greater transparency.

The content of the ESG Report is determined through the Group's
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment processes,
which include identifying ESG-related issues, collecting and reviewing
management and stakeholders’ opinions, assessing the relevance and
materiality of the issues, and preparing and validating the information
reported. The selection of material ESG factors are derived from
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessments.

Quantitative environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in the ESG
Report so that stakeholders can have a comprehensive understanding
of the Group’s ESG performance. Information on the standards,
methodologies, references and source of key emission and conversion
factors used on these KPls reporting are stated wherever appropriate.
To enhance and maintain the comparability of the ESG Reports
between years, the Group adopts consistent reporting and calculation
methodologies as far as practicable. In case of any changes in the
methodologies and specific standards, explanations have provided in
corresponding sections to facilitate information interpretation.

This ESG Report provides an annual update of Giordano's ESG
performance for the year of 2021, which covers our operations in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore (collectively, the
“Reporting Markets”), which contributed to 50.56% of Giordano’s sales in
2021 excluding shops operated by our franchisees and licensees. There
are no significant changes in the reporting scope of this Report from that
of the last one in 2020.

ESG

Effective ESG plays a definite role in driving the Group's pathway toward
sustainable development. To ensure proper implementation of ESG,
the Board has charged the Group's Risk Management Committee (the
“RM Committee”) with assisting the Audit Committee to oversee the
Company’s ESG development and execution, as well as to help determine
the ESG strategies and direction ahead, to keep track of potential
ESG-related risks. With the Board’s supervision, the management of the
Group formulates and executes ESG-related polices and strategies.
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Board Statement

The Group believes that sound ESG principles and practices will increase
investment value and provide long-term returns to stakeholders. In a
bid to ensure the establishment of appropriate and effective ESG risk
management measures and internal control systems, the RM Committee
and the Group's Internal Audit department are responsible for overseeing
the Group's ESG strategies and performance, as well as assessing and
identifying ESG-related risks.

In order to mitigate sustainability and ESG-related risks, as well as to keep
track of the Company’s ESG development, the RM Committee reviews the
Group's performances against industry leaders and peers of comparable
size to ensure the latest requirements and compliance status are met.
Timely adjustments will be made to cater for the emerging market trends
regarding ESG-related issues that may potentially impact the business
operations of the Group.

The RM Committee will also inform the Board of developments vis-a-vis
in ESG performances, visions and strategies through Board meetings,
dedicated reports and other communication channels on a regular basis.
The Group has established communication channels, between business
divisions and its stakeholders for better communication of ESG-related
issues. The communication channels are reviewed regularly to ensure
that effective communications are made between the Group and its
stakeholders. During the Reporting Period, the Board has assigned an
independent consulting firm to conduct a materiality assessment for
better identification of potential and material ESG issues relevant to
the business and its stakeholders. Stakeholder engagement has been
conducted to engage with relevant stakeholders for more precise
identification of the material issues that could internalise the opinions of
the stakeholders. The issues would be prioritised and those with higher
significance will be considered material. The Board would also review the
material issues regularly to ensure appropriate ESG management policies
are in place, so as to promote prompt responses to meet stakeholders’
expectations.

In an effort to enhance ESG performance, the Group endeavours to
review plans and performances regarding its operation and sustainable
development. The Board would keep track of ESG-related work execution
with respect to the proposed plans and targets, to formulate future plans
on the Group's ESG development. The quality and quantity of ESG-
related staff training are also monitored to ensure the Group’s message
on ESG-related issues and market trends are well conveyed.

GIORDANO
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Stakeholder Engagement & Materiality
Assessment

The Group believes that stakeholder engagement and support are
crucial to the Group’s business success. By understanding stakeholders’
expectations and concerns about sustainable development, the
Group can grasp a more comprehensive perspective for developing
the sustainable development goal and improving the sustainable
development strategy. The Group has established various communication
channels, including surveys with ESG-related questions, to receive
opinions and to promote expressions of suggestions from different
stakeholders across the entire business. Stakeholders’ expectations and
concerns will then be reflected and considered while evaluating the
Group's sustainable development goals and strategies.

For this year’s ESG Report, the Group has engaged an independent
third-party consulting firm to assist in the collection of stakeholders’
opinions regarding the Group’s ESG issues. Opinions are collected
via various communication channels, including questionnaires. Results
derived from quantitative and qualitative analysis of the stakeholders’
opinions are referenced to understand their expectations and needs, and
to improve the Group's management of ESG-related issues. Meanwhile,
the stakeholders’ opinions will also be incorporated into the materiality
assessment process to identify material ESG issues of the Group. By
acknowledging the importance of the values induced by the stakeholders’
opinions and suggestions, the Group will continue practising stakeholder
engagement for modification of sustainable development goals and
strategies.

HinE HE2EHK B E N E E S X
Stakeholders Expectations and Needs Means of Communication and Response
BB E S e BTERBE  ERER s EHER®mE
Government and o IRRE BEEAT s THIHE EMEEE
Regulators o« BIZEERSD o BB
//’/ e Compliance with national policies, laws and e Information reporting regularly
4 regulations * Meet the regulators regularly
* Pay taxes in full and on time e Examinations and inspections

e Ensure production safety

B&® LEIE=
Shareholders o SR
o RANAIEMA
E c FEEHMERED
e Returns

o TETHM - BEFEEBMAR UL
e Shareholders conferences

e Company’s announcements

GIORDANO

e Compliant operation
e Enhancement in company value

e Transparency in information and effective
communication

Email, telephone communication and
the Company's website



BFirs
Stakeholders

MESERE

Business Partners

REFMF/R

Expectations and Needs

e Operation with integrity
e Equal Rivalry
e Performance of contracts

e Mutual benefits and win-win results

BEMOES X

Means of Communication and Response

FEMHEER

%A R

2EESE

Review and appraisal meetings
Business communications

Engagement and cooperation

Customers

o S E MRS

o EEHZL S

s BITEH

° MRS

e QOutstanding products and services
e Health and safety

e Performance of contracts

e Operate with integrity

BEFERBH O N BRE
BPREHAE

HRBEEEFE

Customer service centre and hotlines
Customer feedback survey

Social Media Platforms

Environment

° BRI

o ERAEREE

o HRERGIRE

e Compliant emission

e Energy saving and emission reduction

® Ecosystem protection

ESG# &
ESG Reporting

o EVITEIRE
o HEENTHER
e Establishment of industry standards

e Drive industry development

ERTEN

2MiT¥ERE

Participation in industry forums

Employees

o [RERER

o BRI

o ZrbtE A

s MR

* AXFEIZ

® Protection of rights

e Occupational health

® Remunerations and benefits
e Career development

e Humanity cares

BIERgH
A AN R B A4
B T 48
ZIANAT A &
BTE®H

Employee communication meetings
House journal and intranet
Employee mailbox

Training and workshops

Employee activities

HEMAR
Community
and the Public

&

e Participation in charity

NSIEEN
NSIVNGH
Company's website

Company’s announcements

GIORDANO
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B

Environment

BIEE

Labour Practices

EBEER

Operating Practices

RREHEBAR
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In view of the relevance and validity of the ESG Report with the Group's
environmental and social performance, the Group has conducted a
materiality assessment to identify ESG issues that are material to the
business of the Group and its stakeholders. The assessment is based on
stakeholder surveys, materiality maps provided by well-known external
institutions’, the judgement from management, as well as professional
opinions from third-party ESG professionals. The material ESG issues
identified are as follows:

E XMIE Material Issues

EEmfR P Product Carbon Footprint
S HE B & R (R Emission Reduction and Resource Conservation

FEE R Employment Compliance
BE)EE Labour Management
B ERANZ 2 Occupational Health and Safety

B 5 # Operational Compliance

H 25 Quality Management

HIEHEE IR Supply Chain Management

® P IR7% %R Customer Service Management

B FEMIHEME S Responsible Sales and Marketing
R &5 Anti-corruption

Environmental Management and Objectives

The Group is committed to embracing green development, as well as to
minimising the environmental impacts from the daily business operations.
Understanding the importance of incorporating green measures and
practices into the business to achieve sustainable development, the
Group has developed a series of sustainable development strategies
together with a number of environmental targets to push forward the
Group's commitment to protecting the environment.

During the Year, the Group has set preliminary directional targets to
focus on mitigating (i) air and greenhouse gas emissions; (ii) energy and
water use; and (iii) waste generation during business operations and
development. The Group looks to gradually reduce power and water
consumption, as well as greenhouse gas emissions and waste generation,
through actively implementing measures on different environmental
aspects, such as power saving, water conservation, and paper use
reduction.

Apart from developing strategies and setting targets to promote
sustainable development, the Group is also obligated to strictly comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection, including
but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water Pollution
Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong, and the
Environmental Protection Act the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China. The Group reviews its operations regularly to
assure that the laws and regulations are complied with. During the Year,
the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance relevant to
environmental laws and regulations.

1. The materiality maps referenced in the materiality assessment include the ESG Industry Materiality
Map and the SASB Materiality Map produced respectively by MSCI and the Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board (“SASB").
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Environmental Aspect A1: Minimized Emissions through Green-Minded Operations

(1) EESR BARHIEREELSRRERE (1) At Giordano, we seek to ensure that our business operations are
2 R E®s P e —I8er - mitER environmentally friendly, making every effort to reduce waste
MAEEZREFINSE  HeR—J2 R and emissions from every aspect of our business activities, from
EEREYREER - production at our suppliers through to our business operations.

(2) FHMHEE - BENEETHNEELSERE (2) We believe that our business activities and the facilities of our
YA MEBERREESR - overall operations comply with the relevant laws and regulations on

environmental protection.

BRIRE@A2 : BHER

Environmental Aspect A2: Conserving Resources

(1) REBRZESBETHETERD [HRE D] (1) In active alignment with the Hong Kong governmental policy of

HE - BB hERERE RN EFE reducing “carbon footprint”, we are committed to reducing carbon
BER KB - BER KR EMEL - DU A Ak emissions and protecting and sustaining the environment through
W RERRBIRE - 10 efficient use of resources and reduced consumption of electrical
power, water, paper and raw materials by: o
o
o EEBHIT EMATFERNIRFER e incorporating sustainable environmental practices into our N
business principles; g
o MHEMEMMFERAEIR - Hlanp D E e  using resources wisely and efficiently, such as cutting the i
RAREMEREE volume of raw materials and packaging consumed; %
o HEEBHBEANBLEMHEE e reducing waste generation within our operations; B
5
e HEHBEHTEMZTIEREHEE - e promoting environmental protection, via supply chain .
ARERIR - K& management and smart shop operations; and g
o RBARPMEBSRBHEMIRRES - e promoting environmental awareness among our customers and Eg
business associates. 2
/A
Eid
&
i
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Energy-Saving Initiatives

IREA R4t
Lighting

EREL

Air-conditioning
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(2) Striving to create shareholders’ value, we are also concerned with
the conservation of ecological resources and driving environmental
protection. Based on the 5Rs principle — to Replace, Reduce, Reuse,
Recover and Recycle — Giordano spares no effort to cut down on
the use of resources, recycle materials, as well as to reduce the
generation of waste by implementing different practices internally:

e displaying notices and posters of water conservation at offices
and shops;

e  inspecting taps regularly and repairing any dripping promptly;

e promoting the concept of "paperless meetings” with the use of
electronic copies of documents;

e  pre-setting printers for double-sided and black-and-white
printing;

*  recycling used paper;
e reusing and recycling carton boxes;
®  reusing shop furniture; and

e  reusing plastic packaging bags as bin bags.

Saving Energy

As electricity consumption is the biggest contributor to our greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emissions, various energy saving and efficiency measures
have been undertaken in most of our office premises and shops:

H20084F i - &£EIEZERIE T /EHHE AR
A group-wide initiative to convert lighting in all shops to
energy-saving lights commenced since 2008
o  UAFAHBENDBAEFBMAKLZR RS

Replace chilled water air-conditioning with more efficient
split-type air-conditioners

o HERZERMAVERIER M

Shorten the operating time of air-conditioning
° HREATIERERE25-26T

Maintain an average indoor temperature of 25 - 26
o TEHBERETH  SERUERREAME

Maintain and repair air-conditioners regularly for better
performance
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Going Green at Work

Faced with the increasing threat to the environment over the years,
all of us undoubtedly owe a duty and responsibility to make Mother
Earth a cleaner and safer place to live in for ourselves and for future
generations. Acting in a socially and environmentally responsible way
is more than just a legal duty, and here at Giordano, we encourage
our staff to adopt environmentally responsible behaviour and
promote environmental protection in the workplace. The "Green
Team” set up in our Hong Kong Headquarters in 2010 is a vivid
example, which brings together representatives from different
departments to initiate programs for promoting low carbon living.
Moreover, to inspire and encourage staff’s green actions, we have
also launched the following initiatives:

(i)  “Tips for greening our workplace” and GREEN news posted at
office and Company’s Intranet

- guiding staff to create a low-carbon working environment.

REREERERER HMW G.Link & B 2018 F 12 AEMKIEZEETTEM

To strengthen green awareness, our G.Link Club started sharing GREEN news

from December 2018
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BERERNIBE Green Performance Overview

&1 Graph 1
TEEEERRERRSEITENRE  RET Below is a summary of our environmental performance with respect to our
SESRTISEIRS - MASFIAEEREE operations in shops, offices and warehouses in the Reporting Markets:
ﬁggﬂ!mmi GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS *2021 te#f 2020 BHHLEE) 2021 vs 2020 % Change
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Bk E VEHICLE FUEL CONSUMPTION * 2021 L2/ 2020 EHLLES 2021 vs 2020 % Change
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BEMEEEE PACKAGING MATERIAL CONSUMPTION

*2021 tE¥ 2020 B ELEE) 2021 vs 2020 % Change

BIIRE (AN
Price Tag (Tonne)
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Plastic Packaging Bag (Tonne)
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Carton Box (Tonne)
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B %EEE SHOPPING BAG CONSUMPTION
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1. REREHN

o EREBME ERTHORBHIANBREREAT
BEABCRREE RN E D RIRE -

e BERBHMNEBEER-_GLKEENTAZIARES .

L) o WARYE ¢

(i) BURRER RS

Notes:

GHG Emissions
CEER ¢ Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Reporting Markets are the GHG
emissions arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels.

GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent (in tonnes) and is computed with
reference to:
LEPIZ B g ([IPCCI)EM (20065 IPCC (i) the "2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories” issued by the
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(i)

(iii

(iv)

(v)

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC");

the international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute and the
World Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”;

the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition)”
issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental
Protection Department in Hong Kong;

the sustainability reports of the Hong Kong Electric Company Ltd, the China Light and Power
Company Ltd and the Companhia de Electricidade de Macau; and

the data published by the International Energy Agency.

In order to provide a more comprehensive view of our GHG impact, we have further classified
the GHG emissions of Giordano into 2 scopes (as below), which are defined in accordance with
the international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A

Co
(i)

(i)

rporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”:
“Scope 1" covers direct emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by the
Reporting Markets, arising mainly from fuel used by our own corporate vehicles (excluding the
vehicle fleets of our contractors);
“Scope 2" covers “energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation of purchased
electricity consumed within the Reporting Markets (excluding electricity consumed in some
retail outlets in departmental stores and/or shopping malls where electricity is not separately

charged).

In view of our business nature, Giordano is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous
waste.

Some retail stores operate in shopping malls and/or departmental stores where water supply and
discharge are controlled by the building management. Thus, the retrieval of the relevant data is not
feasible.

There is no issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the daily operations of the

Reporting Markets.

The amount of paper use is the amount of paper purchased to support the daily operation of the

Reporting Markets (excluding those of paper shopping bags and packaging material).

The amount of shopping bags consumed is the amount of paper and plastic shopping bags

purchased for store use in the Reporting Markets.
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Paper Reduction

The Group continues to encourage a paperless working environment
which not only reduces environmental damage but also fits commercial
goals, as it can save physical space, facilitate information sharing via IT
networks, and reduce complicated documentation procedures. In recent
years, the Group has implemented paperless internal human resources
processing such as employee timesheets, payrolls, leave applications,
surveys, assessment papers, inspection forms and many more. Moreover,
duplex printing and copying have become the norm within the Group,
greatly reducing paper consumption and saving costs. Usage data
of office printing machines are regularly collected and assessed for
monitoring the efficiency of the paperless environment.

Secure Printing with Tap & Print

The Group has adopted a “Secure Printing with Tap & Print” printing
solution in the office, helping the Group become more cost-efficient
through smarter printing. The print solution enables the Group to achieve
environmental objectives by reducing unclaimed printing, as printing is
released only upon presentation of a staff card from that particular staff
who gives the printing instruction.

Corporate Communications

The Company strongly recommends shareholders access its corporate
communications, including financial reports, through the websites of the
HKEX and the Company, instead of receiving printed form. By introducing
electronic means of corporate communications to shareholders, the
quantity of printed materials has been considerably reduced. This
paperless practice thus helps to protect the environment, as well as save
costs for printing and administrative charges, etc.

Giordano’s City Centre Deira Store Awarded
4-Stars in Green Star Awards for Environmental
Efforts and Sustainability

Giordano’s City Centre Deira store has been awarded 4 Stars in the Green
Star Awards ceremony, which was held at the vibrant INDOORS’ pop-
up space in City Centre Deira, Dubai. Green Star is modelled on the
United States ‘Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design’ standards
(LEED), the points-based rating standard that concerns the design,
construction, operation, and maintenance of green buildings, malls and
neighbourhoods.

~
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BEBEAS : BOHBREBRTEHRE - LIRETHERER
Environmental Aspect A3: Minimizing Impact on the Environment and Natural Resources
for Sustainable Development

ERBP+IBIRERTEBREIR - FM
BHRBRMRE - RO ELEEMEEBIZ
RERBEREEZE - &’
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o TEINERFRER - MRYH BIEMEEN
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HRNEBRE R - MEROPERE - Bt
EBERMINHERE - I gEEE
BRERUMNEZNERRERZ —
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mP o HP—EFFRERRGEREM
G-Warmer Z5 B BEXMWER —BF E K
D AigEREFERINCRE TR
fE - mMAxE2EW - EREBA - RMANS
i B &) B2 Silvermark by G-Motion#22017
4 5 94 £ 0 L A Teflon-EcoElite [ 8 7K
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GIORDANO
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Giordano places great emphasis on protecting the environment and
natural resources. We strive to improve our technical know-how to
minimize the negative impact on the environment during production
and operations. We:

e take into account the environmental impact of our activities and
decisions;

e continuously improve the environmental protection initiatives and
strengthen target and responsibility assessments, environmental
protection supervision and management; and

e strictly control environmental risks.

Giordano follows strict sustainable development practices
throughout its operations, and places environmental protection as
one of its top priorities in the process of supply chain management.
We are concerned with the environmental risk factors in production,
such as emissions and waste discharge. Thus, in the selection of our
suppliers, their measure of protecting the surrounding environment
is one of our key selection criteria.

Moreover, we introduce green elements into our products. For
example, we use polypropylene as one of the major components
of our G-Warmer thermal base layer collection. Polypropylene is
degradable when exposed to heat and UV radiation, and is also
fully recyclable. For our premium activewear brand, Silvermark by
G-Motion, we began using fabrics treated with Teflon-EcoElite
finishing since 2017, which is a non-fluorinated fabric treatment
for durable water repellency with 60% of its raw materials being
renewably sourced.

Furthermore, in support of environmental protection, we opted to
charge more per plastic shopping bag than that requested under
the Environmental Levy Scheme on Plastic Shopping Bags of the
Government of the HKSAR; that is, from HK$0.5 to HK$1, effective
from January 1, 2016, to discourage the use of plastic bags and to
encourage customers to bring their own bags.




BRREEBEAS : BHRES(L

Environmental Aspect A4: Responding to Climate Change

MFER - RIRZE(CEXRS—EAREE2HFEE -
TEHENEETHETH® - AREDRESR
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In recent years, climate change has become an extremely important
topic and is discussed across all facets of society. The Group has raised
its awareness of the risks and potential impacts of climate change
towards the Group. Understanding the potential impact that the Group
may face in terms of climate change, the Group has identified various
climate-related risks, such as the risk of increasing severity of extreme
weather events. Changes in precipitation and rain patterns and extreme
variability in weather patterns may alter customers’ preferences in apparel
products that could indirectly affect sales of the Company. In addition,
increasing operating costs and maintenance costs, such as transportation
and insurance premium costs of the Company, due to prolonged
extreme weather may add extra burden to the Company. The ongoing
enhancement of emissions-reporting obligations, and regulations of
existing products and services may also increase the overall operating
costs of the Company.

By acknowledging the increasing concern of climate change, the Group
has been proactively implementing various measures to address the
climate-related risks. The Group has identified, assessed, managed
and monitored climate-related risks on a regular basis. Risk assessment
was undertaken to evaluate the degree of vulnerability of the business
operations. While the Group's risk inventory was examined as well to
determine any potentially overlooked areas of climate-related risks.
Moreover, appropriate staff are assigned to handle the execution
of climate-related operational activities, which are delegated by the
Board and the RM Committee. Furthermore, the Group may potentially
increase the insurance premiums on assets since operational facilities
may be damaged, while the health and safety of the workforce may
also be impacted. In order to mitigate such risks, the Group maintains
comprehensive insurance coverage for assets that are prone to damage
by extreme weather conditions, minimising the potential maintenance
and repair costs required. In case of emergency due to extreme climate
events, the Group also adopts special work arrangements to notify
employees and safeguard the health and safety of the workforce under
unusual weather conditions.
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for our employees

AREHMNE L

itEEmEBT - EE
Social Aspect B1: Employment

(1) ERBBRUENRESER  EAARNEEH (1) As an international apparel retailer, Giordano'’s retail network spans

WERBHGAAMN - BZ=2021F12A318 + & five continents operating through approximately 2,056 points of sales
4B 2,0561EE S - BRMEMEHR as of December 31, 2021, which enables us to deliver our "World
BEMEL DRAEMREANERINES - BE Without Strangers’ credo globally. For the Reporting Markets, our
202112 A31H  ZMEERMISANNE headcount reached 2,905 talents as of December 31, 2021, with a
T AEE#ER|2,905A @ £2020 (3,122)%F ~ 6.95% decrease from 2020 (3,122):

#£6.95% :

(2) EFPAEE - BEGBREXY - 2REEEN (2) Giordano believes that its long-term success depends on the
B-uKENER - Bt - ESFRARF contribution of each and every individual in the organization. As
REEMEEHFET - ZMEE - BHE such, Giordano is committed to treating its staff with fairness and
B EF—OMEBERBRES R BRERR respect. We believe in cooperation, teamwork and trust as the
o RBMETERBERSEEHENNE foundation of Giordano. We hire based on ability and merit, reward
B WRRE T EARERE MR and promote based on performance.

o
Eip Graph 2

ERTHAHS IS TALENT DISTRIBUTION BY THE REPORTING MARKETS

A B g3t Mainland China
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

2,535 2,431 2,017 1,515 1,427

&% Taiwan
2017 2018 2019
1,178 1,116 1,114

E#B K EPFI Hong Kong & Macau
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
1,003 907 923 537 527

F 103K Singapore
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
300 270 218 177 149

GIORDANO




BEMERSTIL

BRMRBRLB S & —EZ TN THERE - A
ERTERMNETHES :
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3

ERER 2 1

Employment Type Distribution

2B Full-time

B / &% Part-time / Contract

2017 | 3,598 (71.70%)
2018 | 3,391 (70.80%)
2019 | 3,011 (70.50%

Respecting and Reflecting Diversity

We believe in diversity and endeavour to safeguard a diverse working
environment, which is reflected in the composition of our staff as
demonstrated below:

Graph 3

FiRDH
Age Distribution

2017 | 2,588 (51.6%)
2018 | 2,265 (47.3%)
2019 | 1,878 (44.0%)
2020 | 1,017 (32.6%)

BrETI{hLE
Staff Composition by Gender

IR 30 5%
< 30 years old

%EI

2021

8 2 9(28.54%)

)
2020 | 2,626 (84.11%)

2021 | 2, 295(79.00%)

(€)

2017 | 1,418 (28.30%)

2018 | 1,396 (29.20%)
2019 | 1,261 (29.50%)
2020 | 496 (15.89%)

2021 | 61 021.00%)

ERRE—ZRIEREER - BTFMMT
A - AEREMHEIAIUE—ERAFRA
IERYIRE T T - R MR A M A2 2 2

RIE
(i)

(if)

(iii)

B
BTFMm

ENRERETHRBS AR - 85
MEBTITHE —RREALC - wANX
BHFWMANBEATNTEMMANTE S
o MR - BEE - R RH% - F
e~ MEERIA - BOA B SKIE AR AT
FE -MABIHARKETIFM -

aEeaS il

ENRBAESE  EENAFREER
MEE  TERMBEAREER I
DEER - Bt LRTAINELE
EREITHEERMEEBEETNE
A EmEBRBABRTRSHEBM
EEEEFE  URMEBRBHENE
PHEE  EEBIHEER -

R BB
BEE-EAR  FHARHIE

RS EEIRMEST  HMA—ER
BERRBNEE  RFEIRHE

g8 - YW EEMSRER R ER
BRRETRESE - BWRHRBER
SEBELER -

©)

2019 | 218 (5.1%)
2020 | 193 (6.2%)

B M Male 2zt Female

2017 | 2,238 (44.6%) 22.0% 2017 78.0%

30-50 years old
2018 | 2,305 (48.2%) 21.4% 2018 78.6%

oy 2021
2019 | 2,176 (50.9%) 205% 2019 78.0%
2020 | 1,912 (61.2%) 1,8824.78%)
: 19.6% 2020 80.4%

2017 | 190 3.8%) (i 50 & 556 2021 2,349

> 50 years old (19.14%) (80.86%)
2018 | 217 (4.5%)

2021

194 s.c8%)

A series of policies, handbooks and protocols are in place in
Giordano to help build a workplace where our staff are treated fairly
and equally, with their rights and interests being protected. These
include:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Staff Handbook

Giordano strictly complies with relevant labour laws and
regulations. All staff are treated equally, and their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their social
identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion,
age, sexual orientation, political faction or marital status. All
staff are required to acknowledge receipt of the staff handbook.

Code of Conduct

Giordano believes that honesty, integrity and fairness are
important values, and are crucial to our long-term development
and success. Thus, the Code of Conduct has been established
to convey our expected standards of conduct and practices to
all staff, who are required to adhere to the highest standards of
business and professional ethics so that we can earn the trust of
our business partners and customers and grow our business.

Whistle-Blowing Policy

To create an open, transparent and safe working environment
where staff can speak up, we have a longstanding whistle-
blowing policy in place that allows them to raise concerns and
for Giordano to follow up cases in a systematic yet protective
setting. The Company regularly updates the whistle-blowing
policy.
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INEHFFEREE  ENEFMME
BHE ) TEMAEER A RIRF
M TIERIR - EBBEMFEA
7 MRS ESREIER S -
(i) RERSEEREE
(a) S _FHIEFR]
RIF#A2EE T EMFETIE
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(4)

The following people management arrangements are in place in
Giordano to provide our staff with a better environment to work.

(i)  Remuneration

Giordano offers competitive remuneration packages, share
options and generous goal-oriented or performance-based
bonuses tailored to different levels of staff, in order to reward
and retain a high-calibre leadership team.

(i) Increasing Annual Leave Entitlement

In 2017, we largely increased the annual leave entitlement of
staff in the Hong Kong and Macau markets. This not only allows
them to have a better work-life balance and work performance,
but also helps retain and recruit talent as well as enhance
Giordano's competitiveness.

(iii)  Family-Friendly Employment Practices

(a) Flexi-Time Arrangement at Work

We want our staff to both enjoy and succeed at work and
at home. This is one of the keys to both retaining high-
quality staff and allowing them to thrive. That is why we
strive to create a working environment which that caters
for the needs of our staff and their families, with the
introduction of flexitime work arrangements for office staff
in Hong Kong and Taiwan from 2016. Concurrently, for
our shop operations, we also adjust the front-line staff's
working hours to attract certain targeted manpower, e.g.
homemakers and retirees.

(b) Working from home

During the Covid-19 pandemic and for the sake of the
health of our colleagues, the Company has encouraged
staff to arrange more work from home, to reduce the need
for going out and, thereby, reduce the risk of infection.
At the height of the pandemic, we also introduced other
measures to counteract the risks associated with Covid-19
and to protect our staff, better described in Social Aspect
B2: Occupational Health and Safety below.

(c) Supporting Breastfeeding

In support of our working mothers’ needs of pumping milk
in the workplace, we have specially designated private
space in the office of our Hong Kong Headquarters for
breast milk extraction.




(d) EEHBTHERZ14FER
PREFEW B BIEELHE
ESEH2018F 10 H23H#E » K4 EF
TR Z14FBEFERKE KA
FEEEFIERFIAR A R
EBEHEE -

(e) EKILMITEXIFER
B2 [ B - B520184F 11 A13H
BB B PIth SE 5 BB B e F L
B TR BEISKMFER » B
BRI TE o

() HREEGXTIEER(HFEAE
BIES Ti#—EHTFBLT
B & BB B A SR 2018
FOAWMH BN ETFXTIEHE
B4 K2 — /g (BT 9:00 a.m. to
5:00 p.m.) A BRE N - BER
20184F 10 5 8% Bk A B9 #5 3
LmBETIAAREZFZ -

EANPERESFHEERABLR
&

EFR(FEDERT (S EEMRBEE K-
2021 BB NEBRAEG —[ B CEL RAEHS
BE ) 2 MEREIB N 2021 F6 A8 RAE L/BETT - £
RRASBERERMASRAFNL T TS
71 M RRERBELITERORGE - BER
REMOMNHRES T REMEF - FPERREEE
SEERL - BLCEL - AFNTERZEN &
48R BEDERT - AA16RERREULIKE
BEREREER -

(d) Early Introduction of 14-Week Extended Maternity Leave

In advance of government enforcement, our Hong Kong
Headquarters implemented an extended 14-week paid
maternity leave policy from October 23, 2018, taking care
of the needs of parents working in our Hong Kong offices
and on the front-line to look after their newborn babies.

(e) Early Introduction of 5-Day Paternity Leave

Meanwhile, effective from November 13, 2018, we also
took an early lead in introducing the 5-day paternity leave
for our male staff in Hong Kong, which is far ahead of the
local legislation.

(f)  Shortened Daily Working Hours (Office)

To further address staff’'s work-life balance needs, a trial
program first introduced in August 2018 to reduce working
hours in the office of Hong Kong Headquarters by 1-hour
per working day (i.e. from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) has been
made permanent to fulfil individual employees’ personal
and professional goals, effective from October 2018.

Giordano China Receives Model Enterprise in
Labour Management Award

The Mainland China operations of Giordano were honoured with
the ‘Model Enterprise in Labour Management’ Award (the “Award”),
organized and awarded by GaiaWorks. The award presentation
ceremony took place on 8th June 2021 at Shanghai, as part of the
'‘Digital Transformation and New Organizational Dynamics — 2021
Workforce Management Conference’. Awards were presented to industry
trailblazers in recognition of their efforts to encourage innovation in their
labour management frameworks and systems. Selection criteria include
continuous optimization, digital transformation, innovation and industry
influence, and of 148 participant companies, only 16 model companies
were selected to receive the Award, including Giordano.
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(iv) FFFETL (iv)
(a) B ILziriER)tEl

o EHER

BRTEHEZXFEBEINESR
I RPIB BB B 2016F9
B#INER B T Rarigmst
g LEBERGETIELE
EHMRRR KBEBEEEHHE
T -BFHMEEREHEL
SRAGHRBMNET  £F
ZEBEEISRBERETEER
BE % URERE -

SEEY) » HEPKEP Giordano » BERALEEIS » BHRE LTHERMY
BIERRET

AR A T Sandra ISTEEHEPIN > Sandra REITHFRE > T 5—
IR TERMAE - RRKBAER » BEBHRABREXNTBRREAE

HERMARIRE » R E ST U ST B
RETRZRY > ARRRAE  B—EAZRT > SHHHEXIBERET
183 RERMTE!

HEFMERIEMRIBERAITRE > TN BEERMARIRER - R
PO (R BT KR BT ROEFARARME > RORSHNLE!
f-)

N TR R PR SA  FREE
'4 AR FIAEEECIBT » S BN -

Thanks for her service!

Acknowledging Our Staff

(a)

Staff Commendation Award Scheme

e Commended cases:

Not only do we circulate commendations from our
customers who acknowledged our staff’'s good
performance, but our Hong Kong Headquarters has also
additionally implemented a “Staff Commendation Award
Scheme” since September 2016 to encourage and award
staff with outstanding performance and/or significant
contributions. Outstanding staff will be nominated
every quarter and the winners will be awarded a Staff
Commendation Certificate and a cash coupon as a token
of our appreciation.

A% Joanna Lam ﬁ"
’
K v
K e
A A SEGE{RD EitiZ
= = WEIRENEI >
HIBHRPISDE Sandra FLERAVERTS ©

SHKHERRBRIR - AERBEAMR
BB HRSEIIA -
MREAREANEIRRPRH SR |

Peter TN #8E L E % Sandra % _E5E >
i HEENZRRBIRANR »
l

4B & Giordano means service fIARHSIEH ©

GIORDANO

BEFRARA
SRFIERTIBIKESRES EHE TSze Tingo
AISRACBEEBEMRBR o MMER—IFEER
®E > MASRBIFEAOARMNRANBES > iR
REiL o TR HEBRRIBIR © MATRBRERE
RERRY) > Sze Ting#B & TMHIMBIABKRIER - MEIKM
HIAYEHR > thEBMEMRRAAE 0 ERREREE
RBEBIE  SRIFHRA !

Sze Ting EUHMIARES 31 TH3 » SR RELBER
ABVFEIME » ANRTES - AERROFBHT
TEIER] > SABGRRR !

EFAda Ko
REBEEEH

AUBBAE
| am writing to give my compliments to two of your highly capable
staffs at the Tai Wai MTR branch, Peggy and Po Kam.

I shopped in MTR branch this morning, both of them were very
helpful and delivered the services in an efficient and pleasant
manners. Please accept my sincere appreciation for having staffs
like Peggy and Po Kam.

BEABIE :
SRKIERABATKEAE Peggy fl Po Kam MAIIFHARESIH

BITHE - RSRT LEAESERY » tFIFEREREA - EUE
HERMRI SR EIRTS © HIPeggy F Po Kam FLHAIES

&

FA% Patricia Tse




(b)

RLBFBETHE

ERREBRSRITR EBHES
ETHREREIHELTHLE
R ZIRE TERRHERDN
BT AREFHEMASRES
MITHERR SEARBTE
N o

B A Covid-19 R 1T HE B 75 2k
TIRZHE - BT IRERE A
RAE AR 7 AR A
BRANER - EMmERMPIESR
BRERREMHE TI R
FRERETINEME M
H NS A

e Employee Recognition Online Ceremonies

The Employee Recognition Ceremonies were introduced
to recognize employees that have gone above and
beyond the call of duty at work during these challenging
times. The event allows the Group’s executive
management to publicly acknowledge the staff that has
exceeded expectations, as well as to foster a greater
sense of belonging among Giordano employees.

While the Covid-19 pandemic has indeed forced us to
better manage our expenses, it has also allowed us to
take a more innovative approach towards assessing and
allocating our human resources, allowing us to identify
our best performers and incentivize them accordingly
with enhanced responsibilities, promotions and better
remuneration.

Region: Australia

(EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION CEREMONY 2021

Presentation Date: 31** March 2021
i

||||||||,|....

(EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION CEREMONY 2021)

Reglon: Malaysia Presentation Date: 19% March 2021
i

RER 52

RTRGERBAMRYMRBH
BHBFENETL HMEFH
SHEERIMBET £ 2 RRS
MAF - TER=TFZEL -
EhEREIENRRBERE
MO+ AR - RIPIER KA
RAN BB ER

(b)

Long Service Award

In recognition of the loyalty and commitment of our long-
serving staff at Hong Kong Headquarters, we present
Long Service Awards annually to staff who have served the
Company for 5 years, 10 years and 30 years, respectively.
There was a staff who worked in Giordano for around 40
years. Her loyalty and contribution will always be valued
and remembered.

GIORDANO
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(v) BIEF (v)  Staff Activities

BINEE THEN N EBXREM To reinforce the staff's sense of belonging to Giordano with
MEBRESEN TEMETER a healthy work-life balance, we arrange a wide range of staff
BPSGEHLHET —RINELESY - activities every year. This year, we organized various interest
SE - RMAK TS BEEB/NAE group activities for staff to participate in.

BEEIZM-

88T Taiwan Market

E Lt EFE Mountaineering Club activities

140434 953 L2oe
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F#E&™HHE Hong Kong Market

ERANSAREAEFRESERTE - RNKEZE
Giordano WWS Charity activity — Lau Shui Heung Reservoir Trip
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ERANEAREALFRESERTE -ERERE
Giordano WWS Charity activity — Zentangle Class
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HEEEB2 : REXBRERZ(RER)
Social Aspect B2: Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)

) BRRREANEBELZEERNERIHD -
BETESMALRENZ2RKRE—RE
EMEHNEE « BT ELIEANERER
RO - BAAE2021 FEFEIRBE - EER
BRI - PASR(E R B S AR T B R A0 B
ZHRRA - BE—F  ENPORBERER
HBZEAENERSEMN

R0 EEE - EHEISTREEOEHR
mT -

BEEETERH

Mm

OHS is a crucial component of Giordano's overall safety framework,
and reducing health and safety risks in the workplace is an important
and constant objective. In addition to a long history of no-smoking
policy at the workplace, we continued to reinforce our strong
leadership, management system and training programs in 2021, so
as to strengthen our safety culture and enhance our overall OHS
performance. As of last year, Giordano is not aware of any non-
compliant cases relating to OHS.

Information related to work-related fatalities and injuries cases
during 2021 are as follows:

BEISTR2 Work-related fatalities and injuries
BERERATITERNAR

Number of work-related fatalities occurred

ATEEEBRAMTIERE

Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries

2) REER—AZEHIERE B :

(i)

(i)

(iii)

REZEFI - ARSEINLEZE

8L

THERTIEGHNEE  BFRIED

KRBT EEENEEERANABEE

B UWREMENSENZE2HIE

IRIE LR ERBRBRERZS

AN

EWMAE - BEMEHNTIIESAH

BRRITE - R THESETERE

EB o

(a) PAEMEHRE
EEBRBERAFTERENIES
BE AT ERBELTS -

)

(iii)

2021

Number of work-related injuries occurred

114

To ensure a safe working environment, we:

provide intensive training programs for our staff to improve their
safety awareness;

regularly monitor workplace safety, particularly with District
Supervisors allocated to supervise and monitor shop and
warehouse operations, to ensure each phase of which operates
safely by facilitating necessary tools with a safe working
environment; and

carry out workplace tidiness at our offices, warehouses and
shops to reduce workplace hazards.

(a) Office Inspection Report

Conduct regular office working environment inspection to
promote cleanliness, fire safety and work safety.

(b) REJABALRE [BFEL2R
[ ef-N=E N k-3~

(b) Hosting the webpage “Tips on Occupational Health &
Safety” on the Company'’s Intranet
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(ivy BEILmEERAE (iv) Staff Satisfaction Surveys

BF GNRHEETEIREESR Each year, Giordano conducts staff satisfaction surveys to
& RS ERAMLBE  ERFIFTA collect useful feedback as reference for improving our policies.

AIBREFNEE o

~

Covid-19 Surveys /< TEM:Giordano Limited 7 )

2020-07-21

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company has strived to
implement better corresponding measures, and conducted a series B““
of internal questionnaire surveys on the measures introduced in light
of the Covid-19 as well as the working environment of our offices to
collect everyone's opinions and feedback.

000..000..00:\- ................................................................................. urdaLii“EdemnTun
COVId-19§E§ {RiH® Covid-19 corporate
B N . . . arrangement survey Ff IR
EECovid-19RRITHMIRET - RAIEBHERBEEE - £1TT6H MRHBRAE
Covid-19 T — RIEKEH B IEA R B FETERFHNIEEHEAE - I ciiliesiobod ol
EARKNEEF o M
K ERARMERMREE \_ Y,
v BRTERIERBE SRS O (v) In addition to working from home and flexible working hours,
AHETTB) — K5I8 1 FE ¥ Covid-19.K the Company has implemented a series of measures in response
miT o B to the Covid-19 pandemic including:
REEBEZEMZED - BEES Providing alcohol sprays and wipes, hand sanitiser and face
BEOEE masks, etc.:
NAAEVURERE —SH/NEEE The Company distributes a small bottle of disinfectant to each
R IRERELERAECHIIERK colleague and reminds them to disinfect their workbench or
BRETES  WAAZFI MR E1R surrounding areas frequently. The Company also provides
HOSEHEMESHAE RERZE protective and sanitization equipment, such as masks for
REERER o frontline store colleagues to protect the health of colleagues
and customers.
a8 Y
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TR 7 RIER TIERIRR Covid-1982 1%
Al RETUNEL  EITRMBER
WLATR 3B 1 -

1. LA wARBREEHOS

2. LFHILAERPIEAL SR

3. TEEBRE2EH

Flexible lunch times:

Department heads can arrange flexi-lunch times for colleagues
to avoid crowds gathering in the pantry and other communal
areas.

Temperature measurement:

All people entering the office premises must have their
temperature taken at the door.

Strengthened disinfection and sanitization:

The Company has strengthened the cleaning of toilets and the
pantry, and regularly sprays and disinfects carpets.

Opening of meeting rooms:

The Company continues to open meeting rooms for colleagues
to dine in, thereby increasing the space and distancing between
members of staff.

Maintain air circulation in the office building:

Colleagues in the Company who sit near the windows are
required to open the windows every day when they go to work
to maintain indoor air circulation.

General Guidelines for all staff:
- Wear a mask when working

- Bring your own lunch or take out to the Company to eat, try
to minimize eating in restaurants

—  Temporarily avoid gatherings with friends or colleagues,
avoid going to crowded places, and try to stay at home in
your spare time

- Continue to maintain proper social distance

— Do not travel outside Hong Kong unless necessary

Notification mechanism

If a colleague, their family members or close contact is infected/
or is suspected of being infected/or has indirect contact with a
confirmed case, he or she must immediately report this to the
Company’s human resources department.

Resumption of work arrangements

If a colleague lives in a building with a confirmed case, he or she
may resume work after completing 7 days of working from home
and submitting a negative Covid-19 test result. After returning
to work, he or she must follow the following 3 measures:

1. During work, the colleague is required to wear a mask at all
times

2. When resuming work, the colleague is required to enter at
the front door and measure his/her body temperature

3. Lunch alone for two weeks
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Social Aspect B3: Talent Development and Retention Strategy

m
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MESAME °

(i) f£2014%F  HMIEEBLRBMEMTET
Bl WABEEKRIEARERS -
NRERLEESI —EAEE2NEIIL
B SEELRERGETIERE
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(TFTs)) r BN EBRERSERE
FEEMKFEMER R FAEEIRE
LA 2 A &) A% 30 P9 0B gk 19 B B B
e BN EENEXNEREET
—LEFENAR BEERMAENE
AR BT - AR HEEEI o

(i) M2017F  BRMEBEESEEXN
BRERBEREFEAM - BERM
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Giordano encourages learning and recognizes that values and
fairness, as well as opportunities for continuous professional and
personal development, are equally important drivers for high
achievers. As such, we invest heavily not only in comprehensive staff
training and development programs in sales and service, but also in
management, planning and leadership programs, to address staff’s
professional and personal development needs and to retain a skilled
and motivated workforce.

Pursuant to our 3E (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness) policy,
Giordano conducted a review of the team structure by department
heads in 2016 and identified talents for focused development in the
coming years. This remains ongoing.

Giordano has always placed a strong focus on cultivating talent with
an international perspective, insight into international practices and
strong competitiveness.

(i)  Ever since the 1990’s, Giordano has operated a Management
Trainee (the "MT") program to nurture retailing talents, with
satisfactory results.

(i) In 2014, we modified and upgraded our MT Scheme in the
Hong Kong Headquarters to ensure that participants received
a holistic and comprehensive training experience, such that
upon graduation, successful graduates could be placed directly
into mid-management roles. With the renaming of MTs as Fast-
Trackers (the "FTs"), this reform included a tightening in our
admission requirements in terms of academic results and a
restructuring of the syllabus to include real business tasks in
various departments and functions within Giordano. Successful
graduates have now taken on a number of important roles,
including product development and management as well as
brand management. Some of them have even been stationed in
overseas regions.

(iii) In 2017, we also extended this Hong Kong-style FT program to
our Mainland China market to cultivate more retailing talents for
our future growth.

Global Talent Development & Retention Initiative (“TDRI") is one of
our key strategic programmes in the coming years. Apart from hiring
FTs externally, we have turned to pinpoint and groom our existing
talents within the Group's business across all regions.

Further to the nomination by regional General Managers of between
1 to 3 talents with (i) proven contribution towards their business; and
(ii) potential to become a future member of senior management,
bespoke and role-specific 1-year development program involving
overseas events and short-term postings have been devised and
executed.
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Internship Programme

Giordano Saudi Arabia recently rolled-out its new internship
programme, in conjunction with the Jeddah Chapter of the
Entrepreneur Organization.

The innovative internship programme has been tailor-made for the
Saudi market, offering participants a full range of site visits and tours,
followed by work experience in both Giordano’s retail stores and in
their preferred functional departments at the Company’s regional
headquarters, taught sessions in the realms of sales and marketing
and visual merchandising, and culminating with a final assessment
and the issuance of a completion certificate.

The aim is to maximize the interaction between the Company and the
participants, striking a balance between conveying our core values
while allowing the interns to make decisions about their participation
early on, to identify potential talent for long term development.

Giordano's South China Command Centre (“Giordano South China”)
recently established a partnership programme with the Guangzhou
Vocational College of Foreign Languages (the “Vocational College”).
The programme involves the creation of a collaborative internship
scheme, where the most promising students of the Vocational
College are offered half-year internship placements at Giordano's
stores in Guangzhou or with Giordano's dynamic e-shop team at
Giordano South China’s headquarters.

Interviews were then arranged with 100 candidates, of which 22 were
ultimately offered internships — 16 young individuals were placed
in Giordano South China’s stores, while 6 received internships with
Giordano's e-shop team.

Giordano invests heavily in learning and development to maintain
its competitive edge. We believe that continuous updating of
professional skills and the sharing of knowledge will allow the
Company to grow with the times. We, therefore, allocate ample
resources to staff training and development with the aim of
sustaining a competent, professional and ethical staff force that
will contribute to the success of the Company. In 2021, we have
provided in-house training to our frontline staff and non-frontline
staff of the Reporting Markets for over 13,560 hours and 1,609 hours,
respectively. The total number of training hours delivered this year is
over 15,169 hours.
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FEFRE 2012 FRR2HEEEES BEIIBRPHA Giordano has participated in the Manpower Developer Award Scheme
A¥ERTTE - organized by Employees Retraining Board since 2012.

GIORDANO

ERE
RE=E e

Manpower Developer Award Scheme

EFHNBRAT) i
Giordano Limited AFEE (2012 -2022)

5 4 Graph 4

B I ESAENa RS

TOTAL IN-HOUSE TRAINING HOURS RECEIVED BY STAFF * 2021 H# 2020 B4 HES) 2021 vs 2020 % Change
£ r Lk SENMAT S
Year Frontline Staff Non-Frontline Staff U] Tiaieles Tralnlng

Hours Received
2017 48,774 /)\BF Hours 9,289 /"B Hours 58,063 /|\iF Hours
2018 35,608 /)\B§ Hours 7,909 /|\&F Hours 43,516 /|\BF Hours )
2019 20,137 /|\BF Hours 2,999 /|\EEF Hours 23,136 /|\BF Hours ;—-
2020 15,534 /"B Hours 4,288 /|\FF Hours 19,822 /]\FF Hours é
12,7 1%* -62.48%* -23.47%*

2021 13,560 /NEF Hours - {} 1,609 /NEF Hours {} 15,169 /]NEF Hours {}

BT Notes:

1. 20214 - RETHABIDNRIFERE IRIEAMEETEH S 1. The percentage of employees trained by employment in 2021 is 82.58% and 17.42% for frontline
£t DRI 582.58% K% 17.42% - staff and non-frontline staff, respectively.

2. 20215 - MRIEI SN EERLEREB L - HAlA 2. The percentage of employees trained by gender in 2021 is 15.13% and 84.87%, for men and
15.13%%284.87% women, respectively.

138 20214 - RMRIB S - BEBURZIEEBTRZIN TS 38 The average training hours completed per employee by gender category in 2021 are 5.81 hours
B85 Bl A5.81/NEF [28.48/\B o and 8.48 hours, for men and women, respectively.

4. H20214F - RIEB RIS - BRABRIEATRE TRKF 4. The average training hours completed per employee by employee category in 2021 is 8.94 hours
KIS EF 2R 5 Bl £58.94/)\FF [ 5.03/NEF © and 5.03 hours for frontline staff and non-frontline staff respectively.
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AANBX - BEKNEE ()  People-Oriented Staff Development

BASHHETANTHERE  THAR
18 i i 1) B T 88 9% 4 3B 55 9l S A B o
BRE > BRIEFE T ITHERRIN
TSI B FIEE - DR HE -

t (@) BT ABEESEE Induction Talk for New Staff }

HEAA :
B
s
He

ﬂ%ﬁu%h ®BEIES

RTE%M\MH%ETE&’A‘J?% LERSEH XHEE -
IRBLL T RIS L FAMHRE - MRBIRERIRAIRAEL -

202158 18 H (E#82)
11:30-13:00
DingTalk

2021518 - 202158 A
ZEERE

AT R L ERE -

FRAELE - FESRRIEA L&D -

&RPY e
Finance Amy Li
1A Irene Yiu
Junior Mandy Chiu
PBD Ha Wing Keung
GW Erika Tam
Ladies Pauline Wu

HEEH/EMMA DingTalk BARER

Based on our staff’s different needs, we regularly organize
internal training and on-job training for staff in different roles
— this not only improves our staff's work performance, but also
helps equip them with new skills to face new challenges.
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F#EHE Hong Kong Market

(b) #EEEEI Refresher Training
BT EEE THEATEN  BEHFIGEETAERINENNADN  WEBTRERERZSKTE -

In addition to strengthening the basic skills, we equip staff with the latest information and knowledge,
so that they could carry out their duties to the highest standards.

ERMMRE - 5SAE7R
Product Knowledge Courses — May to July

HHATREHBREEE

H# : 657/8/10/15/16/18H
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SRS : 0915-1015
e ]
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||||[|| I

AN - CIMELAD

FBRENTETE
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Resilience Psychology
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Internal Training

Other internal training programs are designed to help staff
develop their capabilities, advance their careers and enhance
their management and interpersonal skills.

One of the training course is "Resilience Psychology”, and it
mentions that encouragement and appreciation are one of the
ways to enhance individual and team resilience. In addition to
increasing personal well-being, creating positive momentum,
accelerating recovery, and continuing to meet challenges.

Learning and Development department (“Learning
Department”) follow-up with the frontline staff on colleagues is
"encouragement and appreciation” after the course, which is
voluntary.

Learning Department collected more than 500 compliments and
words of encouragement, which will be shared with colleagues
through different channels.

Learning Department recorded the encouraging words of
frontline staff to the teams and back office.
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RE T % - China Market

EFME West China district

Ml conofind SN L)

2021 ESHBRER - HESEPKE e e — h

Live stream contest — 2021 Products Knowledge and
Matching and Styling

Exaeo0 aEsEgannA
O 42~ BRTAERARA 1P, LINRNHRGHR AT B0,
O BEAURAREEE. FARREELOERLENIA—§_SERTHRE AT

\ D EAERASEATSIRE, RNRAAESARARIA. ARS. ARALE. WAMELAREAD AREWRLNGHRLS, /

ERREILME East and North China districts

EANERRELEEROSERMN R EXINMLE

(AR AR R AL S LI BB T — AR T A DA B3

BEAFRULE - B5%5 A 11 - EX0EDLHK A MIELRHEEHE
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REGETS YR P A
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EITRENBYESILE -

Giordano East China and North China Command

Centres Launch Collaborative “Hello, Summer"” Internal
Competition

The East China and the North China Command Centres launched an
innovative internal teambuilding competition centred around fashion
styling. Entitled “Hello, Summer”, the games involved teams from
both regions working hand-in-hand to curate a series of looks through
product mixing and styling.

The competition was designed to enhance team spirit as well as to
5 7 n . . ek < aFmms Fromure marel
enrich colleagues’ understanding of styling and product matching, as sa52 o 175 9210

S well as to facilitate transregional learning and communication.

B RtaETE) | 2021.07-05 15116 ( SHrte@eR1LR )

g The teams were then given time to showcase their looks and to e "
0 campaign and garner votes both internally and externally to their friends g —

3 and families through various online platforms. i m
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WAL Dongguan Design Centre

Ah%ER WEREE

Preventing Diseases and Caring for Health

SERRET OB FELT F ik B E (R E D 155 -
#6 B T 1 AT 4 19 55 2 SRR E R FAE It
Dongguan Design Centre organized the
training of “Preventing Diseases and
Caring for Health” to popularize the sub-
health diseases and first aid measures for
employees in recent years.

BiEm% Taiwan Market

41458 20

Strengthen modification skills

LB TR ITEIRE

Strengthen staff matching skills and services.

BtEEH A -CEpdhRTE

Intensive Seven-Part Course for new staff in Taoyuan District

BIEETIREFIREHVEE -
Strengthen the implementation of colleagues in
customer service
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#MnigH % Singapore Market

CHEERS!

TO YOUR SERVICE

Tan Leck Kim Is lian jle customer that becomes a friend that
visits every week 3-4 fimes and somefimes buy lood give
for me, her last purchase was worih $80.

‘Steven comes every day 1o ask me if | want fo drink lea or
coffee, this photo is him buying fruits also.

.

LIAN JIE * HGM

Nancy is my regular customer for almos! 10 years since |
work at AMK she somefimes visit me & buy bread, she like
to buy lees and Audrey pants.

GREXEHRERGRM B ERBE - LABEE INHE &5 NP IR

Weekly email on best service and bulk sales to follow up on upselling training
and customer service

- dh o8 L4Od3Y OS3 L2oe

T Df 5% D 0 %A 08 P

ESG GIORDANO




4 #4505 4 4 69 RS 4
B

RESZEIMNRLER  RMBFREHER
RAFETHFR 8 TIRH @ A& N[ EFST
FIELERE - HRBERNARBERFRRITH
Hf —ERERET %  REBEBRRZEEHRA
ROBBRERR  HECENAREELRAEY
WABEMSA - WEMERHBBENARER
AARBADBELEEBRNRLZER - BFIBIE
TR LERER - RANBTHAENEGHNA
BEBEFHHFEMER - BRNAETFEFNR
BRDLER20%(F—mAEGNBRE)BET
FREN%(F _WmBaNBRE)  ERENTET
EHFIGKE o

Fh BRI EZRRESRE2RZEA
RABER  TEESHAMEBTEERSNE
= WRRFHR2EAEKRMEHRARBEXN
i AERATBEAERE -

(i) ENREHEEBELE

ERRERRZFORLEER X
XEMEELRERMKRINER -
EXIRRTBAHIPEBTLEER
T EAREASTEEMREEND
B BELEENENBEKEOME
L HETHRZ2E - HMFER
BB AEMBXZANBREMANE
EN#E - AODEMAEEREZANX
FOERMNEIREREMSGS -

e-Learning course “Awareness Training on Phishing
- Giordano”

In order to improve the cybersecurity awareness of all our staff, we have
engaged a service provider to launch an e-Learning course "Awareness
Training on Phishing — Giordano” for our staff in the second half of the
year. Phishing is one of the most popular cybersecurity attacks. According
to the data provided by the International Security Institution, corporate
intrusion is often initiated by phishing emails. Strengthening our defence
against phishing attacks can greatly reduce the likelihood of security
incidents. It is noticed that our staff are more vigilant about the potential
phishing email after the e-Learning period. The percentage of clicks on
phishing emails has significantly dropped from 20% (1st round phishing
simulation) to 1% (2nd round phishing simulation), which is far below the
average of the retail industry.

In addition, the IT department has repeatedly reminded colleagues
to guard against hackers that may target the Company’s computers.
Colleagues should not open links and files in emails at will. If the Company
suffers losses due to the negligence of a computer user, the colleagues
may well be held liable.

(i) Giordano Corporate Management Guide

Giordano’s core values, corporate culture and accumulated
experience are all part of our success story. Led by our Chairman
and Chief Executive, Dr Lau Kwok Kuen, Peter, together with
the contribution of staff members from various departments,
we have summarized this information into four guide books
for staff’s handy reference. It is hoped that, by turning tacit
knowledge built on experiences, aptitudes and know-how into
explicit knowledge, our staff could benefit in the long term.

a
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(iv) [BBXi | ZEEMELLETER (iv) Online Learning Resources on the “Knowledge is Golden”
Webpage
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v) BE2ETI (v) Self-Learning Scheme
= 1999¢i BERENERBEEE Through the Self-Learning Scheme adopted since 1999 in
FTE BERESERS  S|8E Hong Kong Headquarters, we foster a continuous learning
ETERHR  BHIEE- atmosphere to promote staff’s individual initiative and

responsibility for development by self-learning.
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(i) EIIEkEERAE (vi) Survey on Training Needs

RMFEHETEINERBSHAE - Each year, we conduct a survey to understand our staff’s
] NTHREBRFETHEINIHEME expectations and needs for training, which aids in designing the
E T IR RE AR E BEAR useful and practical training programs for them in the following
& 2 ReRENERM - year.
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(vii) Training Subsidies

To further motivate our staff to continue developing their skills
and enhancing their knowledge, Giordano has different subsidy
schemes in place:

(a) Study Allowance Scheme

To encourage our staff to enhance their knowledge
and skills for personal growth, which benefits their work
performance and future career development, Hong Kong
Headquarters has set up a “Study Allowance Scheme” to
subsidize our staff in taking external work-related training
courses.

(b) Management Academic Assistance Scheme

The "Management Academic Assistance Scheme” has
been implemented since September 2016, which is
designed to develop existing and potential management
talent at Hong Kong Headquarters through financial
support to successful applicants who wish to pursue
higher education, such as studying undergraduate, or
postgraduate degrees or attainment of professional
qualifications or accreditation.

(vii) “Career Development Program” for Shop Staff

To provide our shop staff with more opportunities for
development opportunities and enhance their job satisfaction,
Hong Kong Headquarters has launched a “Career Development
Program”. It is tailored for those shop staff nominated by their
supervisors, aiming to equip staff with the skills they require to
develop their careers through additional training.

Social Aspect B4: Policies on Labour Standards and Human Rights
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20215 - HfVRBERETALEBIERMERD
BRAET - EETANTERIE  RERR
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Safeguarding the rights of employees and creating an environment of
respect, integrity and fairness for employees is of paramount importance
to the Group. Giordano prohibits the employment of child, forced
or compulsory labour in any of its operations, including at suppliers’
production facilities.

The Internal Audit, Quality Assurance and Human Resources departments
implement a comprehensive checking systems during the recruitment
process to ensure compliance with all the applicable laws and regulations
regarding employment and labour standards. If child or forced labour
is found in any place of production, the Group will warn the particular
supplier. If repeated violations occur, the Group will terminate all business
with the supplier concerned.

In 2021, we did not identify any operation or suppliers having significant
risks of child labour, workers exposed to hazardous works, or forced or
compulsory labour.
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for our suppliers
EREEHMOMER = =

EE@EBS BMHHEAETE
Social Aspect B5 : Efficient Supply Chain Management

ERRAOHEEEERIAMEBRRETE AKA At Giordano, supply chain management is based on the premise

B EETENGENEERE - oMM of satisfying customers’ needs, and better coordination among the
JE Bl B IMRXRERRE  c EEREEAR various functions of our business, such as the supplies, manufacturing,
MRS ERE - BFIBLAERER AN - FRERK warehousing and distribution through better planning and information
Kk o sharing. With more effective integration of resources, we thus reduce

costs and maximize efficiency.

HE2021F12A31H - EAREB 124K #LfE As of December 31, 2021, Giordano has a total of 124 suppliers, located in

7 S mEtREM different parts of the world:
Es Graph 5
2017 | 91(83.5%) "
B fi -
(qu ‘) 2018 | 97(80.8%) |
Pt 0 . [HFER | RIEREAREBBERER

FERAREMACH A R EER -

O RN E 2 REE A EEG KA
W EMETE °

. A PIE T AR RE - (858 F 48 0

CHINA 2019 | 93(81.6%)

(including Hc

2020 | 105(83.3%) 12 (9.68%)

2017 9(8.3%)

e HEENhES % AT ZREBEF100% «
2018  11(9.2%) Suppliers b

S SOUTHEAST Geo rapphical RZ ion
R ASIA 2019 11(9.7%) grap 9 Notes:
g 2020  9(7.1%) . “Supplier” refers to the manufacturers
= of apparel and accessories which are
g 2017 6(5.5%) directly engaged by Giordano.
ol —n s o . The geographical location of a
; M”‘H 2018 5(4.8%) 108 (67.1%) Supplier is based on the location
= EUROPE o of its production facilities and its
1 2019 3(2.6%) headquarters.
Xi 2020 7 (5.6%) . The respective figure may not add up
B hE(aEES) o to 100%, due to rounding.
R 2017 3(2.8%) CHINA (including Hong Kong) EUROPE
B
A H 7
4 REMME 2018 6(5.0%) m Eas RO
# REST of the 2019 7(6.1%) SOUTHEAST ASIA REST of the WORLD
5 WORLD

2020 5(4.0%)
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We have established a complete supplier quality assurance mechanism,
which covers the approval and evaluation of suppliers, quality inspection
and supervision, strategic supplier development and materials
procurement. Furthermore, we actively promote the sustainable
development of our supply chain and the joint fulfilment of corporate
social responsibility with our partners to provide the public with high-
quality products and services. As such, supply chain management is always
one of the key links in Giordano's quality control system.

(1) Ethical Sourcing

As supply chain management is critical for Giordano's success, we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our
quality, performance and not least labour standards. In particular,
we expect them to comply with the below “Core Ethical Sourcing
Requirements”:

only employs workers that are above the local legal minimum
age;

does not use forced or prison labour in any part or aspects of its
facilities;

does not, or threaten to, physically abuse its workers;
does not contravene local environmental laws and regulations;

provides a safe and healthy work environment for its workers;
and

is compliant with our various standards and committed to
following up on corrective actions.

We aim to do business with those suppliers sharing similar values and
principles, and intend to purchase from those who meet our above “Core
Ethical Sourcing Requirements” and have demonstrated a commitment to
improving their standards on labour, health and safety, and environmental
practices. Thus, prior to engagement, new suppliers are required to
complete and pass our “Ethical Audit Questionnaire”.

(2) Quality Assurance Mechanism

(i)

Giordano exercises a high level of scrutiny over the selection
of suppliers. Apart from eligibility checking, suppliers are also
subject to assessment and on-site audits on product quality as
well as suitability and quality consistency tests conducted by our
Quality Assurance Team. Only those who pass our audits and
assessments will be included in the "Qualified Supplier List” for
bulk purchases. Also, to ensure our product quality, we carry
out long-term quality monitoring and regular audits/reviews
on all suppliers. Should there be any significant change in a
supplier’s eligibility or any serious quality issue, we may suspend
its deliveries immediately and, if necessary, cancel its status as
our qualified supplier. Moreover, our unannounced inspections
from time-to-time will ensure our suppliers comply with our
various standards.
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(i) In order to mitigate environmental and social risks within our
supply chain, and to promote the sustainable development of
our suppliers, a "Quality Manual” which covers below guiding
documents is also distributed to our key suppliers:

e “Suppliers Code of Conduct”;
° “Workplace Standards”;

e "Product Safety and Regulated Substances Specification”;
and

e "Accepting and Offering Policy”
Enhancing Competitiveness by Technological Innovation

Giordano will carefully examine every detail of the production
process and raise any issues that may be discovered, to work with
its suppliers to identify possible areas for further improvement. By
optimizing the process, upgrading the technology and improving
the workmanship, our suppliers not only greatly improve their
production efficiency and product quality, but also help upgrade
their capabilities in response to more challenging markets and
enhance their competitiveness. This close-knit working relationship
between both sides allows the parties to maintain more stable and
mutually beneficial cooperation.

Inventory Control

() Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising efficiency
and remains a core competence of Giordano. However, due
to early merchandise receipts as a tactical precaution against
supply chain disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Inventory turnover on cost for the year ended December 31,
2021, increased by 38 days to 153 days. Most of the merchandise
is evergreen and in-season styles. Our inventory level remains
healthy.

(i) In addition to our own consolidated inventory, Giordano
responsibly monitors inventory held at our suppliers and the
franchisees in Mainland China to ensure that we do not build
up off-balance-sheet inventory that would jeopardize our
merchandising flexibility and wholesale business in future.
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for our customers
MEZHAMNEF

At Giordano, we continuously strive to provide our customers with the
most enlightening shopping experience. Giordano's straight-forward
mission, ‘To Make People FEEL GOOD and LOOK GREAT’, fully illustrates
our total commitment to superior service and outstanding quality

M

"Giordano Means Service” Campaign

Giordano's commitment to superior service stems from the
"Giordano Means Service” campaign which was first launched in
1989, at which time every staff wore a yellow badge bearing the
words “Giordano Means Service”. Since then, quality service has
become one of the tenets of Giordano.

To ensure every shop staff offers excellent customer service, we
conduct performance evaluations frequently at the store level, as
well as for frontline staff by mystery shoppers. Our efforts to provide
excellent customer service have been recognized by a long list of
service-related awards we have received over the years.

"Exceeding customers’ expectations” is a simple objective that
Giordano has upheld for many years, which we achieve through
“thinking one step ahead for customers’ needs” and “providing
tailor-made services”. Our frontline staff provide professional advice
and flexible and rapid response to customers, helping them choose
the right products in need. Meanwhile, to satisfy our customers, we
also allow them to return and exchange products after purchases.

Awards and Recognition
e 2019 Outstanding QTS Merchant & Service Staff Awards

Hosted by Hong Kong Tourism Board, to award the retailers
for their outstanding services and Giordano won a silver award.
Also, Giordano has continuously been recognized as a Quality
Merchant by the Hong Kong Tourism Board for 15 years.
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Giordano Website won Top 10 eCommerce Website Award

The Retail Asia Expo has awarded Giordano’s eCommerce
website as one of the “Top 10 eCommerce websites” for
2018. This "Top 10 eCommerce Website Award”, which
recognized and awards websites that have raised the bar for
user experience and achieved outstanding operation growth,
has acknowledged Giordano’s eCommerce website for
fostering and delivering continuous and exemplary e-commerce
standards as well as enhancing user experience with an
outstanding shopping platform.

Giordano's Legal Team at Hong Kong Headquarters named in
the GC Powerlist

Meanwhile, we are also delighted to announce that Giordano's
Legal Team at Hong Kong Headquarters has been named in
the "Team Powerlist” category of the GC Powerlist Hong Kong,
published by The Legal 500 — which carried out the research to
corroborate and validate our inclusion, in recognition of our in-
house legal team:

1. being instrumental in changing or forming opinions within
the company or industry;

2. developing technical solutions to complex issues;

3. creating innovative structures to ensure that the in-house
function is driving the business forward; and

4.  providing a business working model that other corporate
counsel should follow.

Giordano is a global fashion brand and clothing retailer with locations across 30 countries and 2,400 stores across Asia,
Australasia and the Middle East. It operates the brands Giordano, Giordano Ladies, Giordano Junior, BSX and Beau
Monde and is moving to expand into Europe and the Americas. Leading the legal team at the company is Mark Loynd,
who in his role of general counsel, company secretary and director of human resources, has been responsible for the
company's legal, compliance and regulatory affairs globally since 2013. The legal team under Loynd'’s direction has
facilitated the company’s recent rapid expansion and development which resulted in some of its highest growth since
thanks to work managed and completed by the legal team in the last five years. The team manages all of the legal affairs
of the company including its regulatory affairs relating to import and export tariffs, supply chain regulations, privacy and
IP, as well as employment matters. A truly multijurisdictional team, the Giordano legal department has recently overseen
the opening of another flagship store in Hong Kong, as well as the company’s completion of a business acquisition in

Vietnam and the opening of the first location in Mongolia. J

GIORDANO
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e  Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018 Parents’ Favorite Family
Brand”

Giordano Junior was awarded “2018 Parents’ Favorite Family Brand”
under the “Children Clothing” category in 2018. This Award was
presented by Baby Kingdom, a popular online parent-child platform
in Hong Kong. Further to the assessment by the members of Baby
Kingdom and a panel of professional judges, Giordano Junior stood
out from the other 3 finalists, being in recognition of its creative
designs and high-quality products.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not recall any products for
safety and health reasons. It did, however, receive 190 product and
service-related complaints in the reporting markets. All complaints have
been resolved by product exchange or communication. The Group
continues to provide training to new employees, senior sales and
supervisors, enabling them to better understand customer needs and
excel in their performance to meet customer’s expectations.

(2) Safety and Health

() In addition to professional customer service, a pleasant
shopping experience also requires a comfortable and safe
shopping environment. We are committed to (a) ensuring a
safe and healthy environment for our staff and customers, and
(b) eliminating preventable accidents and health hazards in our
business locations.

(i) As mentioned earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii), we have a Quality
Manual setting forth our standards and specification regarding
product quality and safety for our suppliers’ compliance.

(iii)  We demand our suppliers to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations on product safety, and regularly update them on
the hazardous substance and inhumane production processes
banned by Giordano, such as the “sandblasting” process and
the “live-plucking” goose down process.

(iv) The Group requires all suppliers and manufacturers of its
products and packaging to comply with the Group’s policy.
The Group keeps its sourcing protocols reviewed regularly
and up-to-date in order to maintain the high quality and safety
standards of its products and customer satisfaction. The Group
cooperates only with suppliers which can provide products of
high quality and checks if flaws are found to ensure the product
quality.

(v) We also engage independent and accredited third-party
laboratories to test our materials and products, to ensure
compliance with international safety standards.

(vi)  "We care because you care”

Much effort has been spent on product safety, which is one of
our core values. For instance, we make sure that all drawstrings
in our Giordano Junior clothing are fixed to the waistband
to avoid pulling out by children accidentally. We also will not
use metal zippers, which are however commonly used by our
counterparts.
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(vii) Giordano keeps up with the needs of customers of all ages

and backgrounds and puts product quality and safety first. Our
teams in product development, quality assurance, sourcing,
frontline sales and customer service go the extra mile to ensure
the quality and safety of each and every product we carry. Over
the past year, there are no incidents of product recall or non-
compliance due to safety or health issues.

(3) Protecting intellectual property rights

(i)

"IP Manager Training Program”

Nowadays, intellectual property (“IP”) is recognized as a key
element in business development and, here at Giordano,
protecting IP rights is one of our top priorities. To enhance
awareness of IP protection within Giordano and to proactively
protect our IP from infringement, two of our subsidiaries
participated in the IP Manager Scheme organized by the
Intellectual Property Department of Hong Kong in 2017. After
completion of its “IP Manager Training Program” by our staff,
we were awarded a Certificate of Commendation.

The Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (the "PDPO") Seminar

The Legal Manager of our global Legal and Company
Secretarial Department based in Hong Kong held two rounds
of Data Privacy Regulation in Asia seminar in English and
Cantonese via online lecture in June 2021, striving to train our
staff in various markets can understand the basic concepts of
the Ordinance, practical industry information and protection of
personal and customer privacy. All office and shop colleagues
must participate and complete a quiz.

HEAELELET 2RO TERBYE - TSRS EYFHAENES
B - EARRNERCEMN AT L —BEARE -

(BARHE (108 ) B6) 2EHEARSSERMEARSLBIEANZ— ;
BEASRPN T EREERRAN - REEEARRES D ?
ERBRARENT —HHBRE - RASTREFUR

B saas OEARE  REEARAZOME - EE0T

ENGLISH

MREQR CODE
MARMBE
(e 0

B 63170 (24M)- RN
58 1 0930-1030 (0915 K E 1E4718)

8 : Lesley Mo (1 FHNSEMEEFEAEIR)

HH# : ¢éF18H

G,Dmgﬁﬂkﬁﬁu

Data Protection Laws

4 Federal Privacy Act 1988 ¢ Australian Privacy Principles

B : _£4F11:00-12:00
R IEQR CodeflA

: 4 The Privacy Commissiones, under the Office of the Australian Information Commissioner (OAIC)
s the national data protection regulator responsible for Privacy Act oversight
4 NO general law on data protection as of teday’s date
4 Primary sources such as Government Regulation No.71 of 2019 regarding Provisions of
Electronic Systems and Transactions (Reg.71)

% No national data protection authority for data privacy in general

% Personal Data Protection Act 2010
ity : ® Personal Data Protection Commissioner
4 Personal Data Protection Act of 2012 (No. 26 of 2012)

4 Personal Data Protection (Amendment) Bill was passed in November 2020

t % Personal Data Protection Commission
4 Personal Data Protection Act

T maMPMmmmummmmwmumamuwm
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EEALEBANERE—EREPHAE  TR2
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MEBIIAEESN [BLBEREKERAE
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ERMNEHFBIER,LBE(ER) » #
DRBERBEPZE - Rz BIHEE
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RHEFDLHFESGDPRIEN - HFIITFA
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(5) FECOVID-192 T » EFHHE—H RZ 58 (5)
RERWBBHEFPIE -

1REDTRETEREH IO E

Cotton Anti-Pollution 6 Layer
Reusable Outdoor Face Mask

6) FERBRERS  EARmErImESNE (6)
BEANER THENEREBEINE
Ao

Ay Ay Ay dyds '
aqatadad -
ARRAARAS -
RRRALAIAL "

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

Customer privacy has become a hot topic that we cannot overlook.
In compliance with the local laws and the European Union’s General
Data Protection Regulations (effective from May 25, 2018, “GDPR"),
we have updated our Group-wide “Privacy Policy and Personal
Information Collection Statement” and “Privacy Notice” (both in
English and Chinese, as uploaded onto our official websites and/
or e-shops, where appropriate) for the public and customers’
reference. We invited an independent third-party global law firm to
audit our practices and confirmed our compliance with the GDPR.
Furthermore, staff are kept reminded to fully observe the policy from
time to time.

During COVID-19, Giordano has launched a series of antimicrobial
products to help customers fight the virus.

~
FHEBIRBEIEPOLOY
Men's High-Tech Cool Touch
Anti-bacteria Polo Shirt

J

During these trying times, Giordano remains totally customer
responsive and relentless in our efforts to protect both our staff and
our valued customers.
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(7) Z%COVIDJ??(}R%?EEE\%E?\EF Y B 8 (7) Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, customers have spent more time at

CERREET —HNENREFEDE home. Giordano produced a total of eight episodes of home sports
% WEHEEHFDZE ‘/FE BEHEAZMTRE specials and uploaded those videos to video-sharing channels for
Ho customers and members of the public to watch and enjoy.

Personal Trainer
Vinoti Fitne

GIORDANO G-MotionZ /& ZB) 15 (#/)1%)
GIORDANO G-Motion Home Sports Special (eight episodes)

(8) ECOVID-19ARITT r BEREATRE (8) Under the Covid-19 pandemic, customers and the public at large

EEEBIEIENBIRTT  AZERGEERIR citizens have not been able to leave Hong Kong for non-essential
IMTILEEFR &L » EREIET —H & travel. Most residents choose to go hiking in the suburbs for relaxing
WITILRS - W FHER R D =88 { tEE activities. Giordano has produced a total of six episodes of hiking
EmEEE - special and uploaded them to video-sharing channels for customers

and members of the public to watch and enjoy.
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GIORDANO G-MotionfTLLI#F 5 (#755)
GIORDANO G-Motion Hiking Special (six episodes)
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Social Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

Mm
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We adopt a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and corruption,
and our Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct (as uploaded onto
the Company’s Intranet) clearly inform our staff of Giordano’s
strict standards regarding anti-corruption, anti-bribery, conflicts of
interest, gift, procurement and whistle-blowing policies, as well as
our policies on dealings and investment in Giordano's shares.

To ensure that our staff comply with the requirements imposed and
uphold high ethical standards, all staff are required to complete and
submit a “Declaration of Interests” at least once a year. If there are
any cases of conflict of interest, the relevant staff are required to
update their declaration immediately.

We also proactively promote business integrity and ethics among our
staff by organizing seminars on anti-corruption regularly. These types
of seminars are compulsory to be attended at least once by each
Hong Kong Headquarters staff.

A series of training, including orientation training and refresher
training, are conducted regularly within the Group to support
adherence to various policies and practices including those related
to anti-corruption.

Our whistleblowing channels empower our employees to play an
active role in protecting our business. They can seek guidance and
report misconduct anonymously to their department heads or the
Audit Committee. All reports are handled with care and fairness to
ensure that whistleblowers are protected against unfair dismissal,
victimisation and unwarranted disciplinary actions.

Furthermore, our contracts with suppliers require their full
compliance with our Quality Manual, including “Advantage
Solicitation and Acceptance” as quoted in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)
(ii). In addition, we regularly issue reminders to all relevant staff,
business associates and suppliers reminding them of our Group
Policy on Accepting and Offering Advantages (i.e. twice a year,
before the Mid-Autumn Festival and Chinese Lunar New Year). We
are not aware of any incidents of noncompliance in relation to anti-
corruption in 2021.
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Social Aspect B8: Community Involvement
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GIORDANO

Contributing to our communities is a very important part of Giordano's
ethos. Acting on our belief in a "World Without Strangers’, Giordano
actively supports various charitable organizations and causes, especially
those associated with education, children and the underprivileged.
Giordano has engaged in a number of ongoing educational projects:

(1) In 2014, we launched the “"Do Not Read This” campaign in
conjunction with Room to Read, which raised funds for the non-profit
organization through selling limited-edition T-shirts in Giordano’s
shops. With Giordano’s donations, Room to Read published
15,000 copies of two children’s books in two Indian languages for
underprivileged children.

(2)  This focus on education for underprivileged children is also evident in
another Giordano's ongoing project, Project Hope, a public service
project organized by the China Youth Development Foundation.
Giordano has been a long-standing supporter of the project’s work in
providing children in poverty-stricken rural areas of Mainland China
with access to primary school education by funding the construction
of a number of Giordano Hope primary schools. As of the end of
2020, 22 Giordano primary schools of Hope have been completed.

(3)  We also donated to the Caring for Children Foundation in support of
children’s welfare in Mainland China.

(4) Hong Kong Daily News One of the children is books, in Hindi, was
published by Room to Read with Giordano’s donation.

(5) In 2018, Giordano Malaysia launched the “We Love Orangutans” and
“Amazing Ocean” campaigns revolving around wildlife conservation.

(6) In 2019, Giordano Taiwan had several community activities, including
second-hand clothing donations and beach cleaning activities.

(7)  In 2020, Giordano Thailand Volunteer Team participated in Prasingh
Temple Grounds Cleaning Day. A team of volunteers from Giordano
Thailand converged in the northern city of Chiangmai to take part
in a cleaning day for the local Prasingh temple. The 25-strong
team comprising the entire Chiangmai frontline staff and the area
supervisor of the Northern Region of Thailand cleaned lavatories and
the temple grounds of Prasingh Temple, keeping them safe for both
tourists and the resident monks.
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In 2021, Giordano held the following activities in different regions:

(a)

EFR(ENE)

R (ENJE ) B E e i) Aksi Cepat
Tanggap (ACT) EXEAEMER SR
PEEK YT [ RENe R Es 2l ]
([5t&81]) - BEfEBekasiflKarawang
WRAKEEREBEEES -

ERAR(HE) NEABREE
Instagramf) IR G FBHELES - B
HEOHMANBREOARBEEKLEXR
MERG A% KFR KYMEM

Giordano Singapore

A team of volunteers from Giordano Singapore took part in
a community event hosted by TOUCH Community Services,
a not-for-profit charity organisation in Singapore (“Touch”).
Giordano’s 20 strong volunteer team acted as Smart Phone
Trainers, helping to coach the elderly to use smartphone based
on lesson plans designed to customize the training catered to
seniors’ pace.

Moreover, a team of volunteers from Giordano Singapore took
part in the Meals on Wheels community event hosted by Touch.
The Meals on Wheels programme represents the second Touch
event that the Giordano Singapore team has participated in
since the beginning of 2021. Bento boxes were prepared in
the THC Centre, following which the eight volunteers from
Giordano delivered a total of 57 boxes to various homes of the
elderly.

Giordano Indonesia

Giordano Indonesia recently established the “Giordano Berbagi
Programme” with Aksi Cepat Tanggap (ACT) Indonesia, a
professional philanthropic institution, to raise funds for the
flood victims in the Bekasi and Karawang areas of Indonesia.

Funds were raised with the willing participation of Giordano
Indonesia’s customers during a live event on Instagram. The
entire 100% of donations were used to purchase groceries,
masks, hand sanitisers, clothing and other necessities for the
flood victims.
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Giordano Hong Kong
WWS Charitable Fund

The Giordano World Without Strangers Charitable Fund (the "WWS
Charitable Fund” or the “Fund”) has gone online, with the Fund’s
background information, mission, donation details and monthly
statements are available on the Company’s corporate website at
http://corp.giordano.com.hk/en/wws_charitable_fund.aspx.

The WWS Charitable Fund allocates funds raised to make a
difference for people in need. Past projects have ranged from
primary education initiatives involving the printing and distribution of
educational materials and stationery, helping remote villages in rural
China to achieve sustainable development, supporting local ethnic
minority students, meal tickets for the underprivileged, supporting
orphans and children with disabilities, all the way through to rapid
response to individuals who have found themselves in emergency
financial crisis for which other sources of help may not be available.
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TMREIEEBES BEZREFIMTLE
Fh R ZentangleBEZBRE - 5 HES2,100
BILER

2REFIER

ERRER DEEKEPIITEEATEN
BEESSE BEMUHEREBETHRALZSH
VAEE & 19h (R 25 FE o

ERREBREHMBRNERGZ B
BHBH : SEAABBETXATHH
EFSBHETFPENEMNEERE - Mg
BWER AR MR 3R L ERBR AR
R HRBRAMERAITENKRE -

FERENAFIE  EARBERE RS
MRERE - BRERE - ITUBMBEERE S
B8 BEFE BAR - 5TE RE - £
RO TEMN  XBEMEMET  LEE
IBEMBREERENEE  BERE
LFNBFED -

ERRERRRERTESFNLFEKE
BRI - REHBF I FERBHEERARS
EMBREEN S F L FRERERENE
ZEBR o

Besides, in the second half of 2021, the WWS Charity Fund organized
two employee self-funded activities, including charity outdoor hiking
activities and a Zentangle painting class, which raised a total of
HK$2,100.

Global Sports Programs

Giordano has traditionally chosen to work with sports organizations
in the markets it operates it, or aims to be in, engaging with local
communities and working together to make an actual difference.

Giordano’s sponsorship of apparel represents a win-win situation
for all stakeholders involved: the Group can showcase its brand and
quality apparel to customers or future customers in those markets
through an authentic and practical medium, while allowing the
sporting bodies to free up resources to invest in coaching, player
welfare and development initiatives.

Over the past few years, Giordano has worked with Rugby, Football,
Hiking and Trail running teams from all over the world, including
China, Japan, Uganda, Egypt, Zanzibar, Jamaica, the United States of
America and Serbia, from grassroots level all the way through to elite
national teams, in children’s, women’s and men's sports.

Giordano is currently the title apparel sponsor for the Kazakhstan
men's and women's national Rugby teams, the Tunisia men’s and
women's national Rugby teams, as well as the Malta Rugby League
men’s and women's national Rugby teams.
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(e)

1 FHR

ERREREEESZNBHEEZE(E

BEEERE|)BLAIERHTBE - %—iﬁ
EERAEST-ShirtfAE © T-ShitlBE R 2
HANARERT (ETEEERRYEEE
RE)NIESR @ WERAATA [FHIFED]
(Print-To-Order) RIS ENEGiordano Junior
RIT-Shirt £ : B - ENRITRAEZEZEE

EMBREE -

BN EFREAEESR O ([ REL])
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GIORDANO

(d)

Giordano China

Giordano South China established its official partnership with
Star Studios and Mobile Library. The first event organized under
the partnership was a charitable t-shirt auction involving artwork
designed by the village children, including special educational needs
children, printed onto Giordano Junior’s t-shirts using the Company’s
PTO (print-to-order) service, as well as a donation of books from
Giordano to Star Mobile Library.

Meanwhile, the North China Command Centre of Giordano
("Giordano North China”) commenced partnership with Peking
University's outdoor sports team and track racing team (the
“"Teams"). Under the partnership, Giordano North China will supply
the Company’s G-Motion apparel to the Teams as part of their official
team uniform and performance competition wear.
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(e)

Giordano Taiwan

Giordano Taiwan cooperated with Taitung Food Bank to carry out
both internal donations and external donations, including donations
of used clothing.
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

General Disclosure

B BUEIRAL
KPI A1.1
FRERAEMUIEIRAL2
KPI A1.2

BARARIRIEIRALS
KPIA1.3

B BUIEIRAL 4
KPI A1.4

BRI BUIEIRALS
KPI A1.5
B BUIEIRALLG
KPIA1.6

it

Description

A. I81§ Environmental

BEA1 - BEif#¥ Aspect A1: Emissions

ERBEROREREHN - KRS - AERBEERMNELSH -
(@) BE - I

(b) ETHBETABEAZENHBERRRIINER -

i BERENEEASLY WAt RkECRBEIERRRIRENTEY

REREBE A T SR - TRCEY - 2RICTESEACH -
BEREMERRBOIMAEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under national laws and

regulations.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,

perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

PR TE R AR BRI

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

HiEEED) RREE (BE2)RERENE (CAETE) R(WER)BE (MASES S -
R E) ©

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FESEEEEYEE (UEFE) R(MER)BE(MASEREN - 8EREHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

FESBEEFEEYEE (UEFE) R(MER)BE(MASERBEN - BEREHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

PRI M BE R E B IR R AERE L B EPAERERE P8 -

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

LA R EREN N « R AT S0 B IR B i o B SRR S -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of

reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

(20215 3RK it E
Elﬂﬁ%)}
2021 ESG Report

A2 [E1 Graph 1

A2 [E1 Graph 1

A2 @12
Note 2 of Graph 1

A2 [E1 Graph 1

B8 Page 8
A2
B8 Page 8
A2
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

General Disclosure

BASRAE UIEIRA2.1
KPI A2.1

FRERAEMUIEIRA2.2
KPI A2.2
FRERAEMUIEIRA2 3
KPI A2.3
R RUIEIRA2.4
KPI A2.4

FRERAEMUIEIRA2.S
KPI A2.5

e

Description

BHEA2 : |iF{ A Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BRERER(BIERR - KREAMRME) R -
i BRAARAEE  #fF EBW 2T BEFREF -

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings, electronic
equipment, etc.

EEREHNEE R/ FRIEER(NE
Bl - FERGHE) -

R ERBEATEATREFE)RZE(WAEEE

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BRKERZTE(WASEEEM - BEREHE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
AT AT S B REIRGE A A B AR R RE B iE L B ARFT IR 258 ©

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

it SRERE KR LRI B EARERE - A RFTET S8 ket B IR R RER B L B IR A 25K -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

SRMATAREMBNEE (ETE) R(WER) BEESULE -
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference

to per unit produced.
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A2 [El1 Graph 1

A2 [81 Graph 1

B8 Page 8
A2

E8 Page 8
A2 Kfi3F4 Note 4

A2 [E1 Graph 1

BEA3 : BRERXRFIR Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

KPI'A4.1

—RE RIEBITARRERRAAERENERTZEOEE - A3
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural resources.
R B MIEIRA3 R EBEHHREIRABERNEAFVERCENEEERAZENTY - A3
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and

the actions taken to manage them.

BEA4 - |IEE(L Aspect A4: Climate Change

—fRIKER BN EHEERATREEHBITAEEVENEARGAEBEENEER Ad
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
RS EIRAL N HRBERATREEHBITAEEYENEARGABEE - REHTH - A4

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may

impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

it

Description

B. it & Social
BB % ITHM Employment and Labour Practices

BmEB1 : {&{# Aspect B1: Employment

2021 B it E
REAEE)
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—RIEE BRGNS EE  BEREA - TERE - RY - TEES 20l REBAREMTBERER | B1
General Disclosure ) :
(a) B K
(b) BTHBRITAGERTENRBRZEZZRADNER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
RS UEIRBI. IR - BEEL (R RaRE) - FRAR KRB D RSB - B1E2%3
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part- time), age group and Graph 2 &3
geographical region.
R B MIEIRB1.2 IR - FIRAER RSN MEE MK E - B1E2%3
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Graph 2 & 3
[BEB2 : @REKRZ Aspect B2: Health and Safety
—RRIE ERRHLZ2TIFREMREREMEBENEEN - B2
General Disclosure (a) B - &
(b) ETHBETABEAZENABEERAOINER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
BB MIEIRB2.1 BE=ZF(BRERFE)EFRTITHOABRIELE - NEm
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years including the | N/A
reporting year.
RS UEIRB2.2 ATHBERATIFAH - B2(1)
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
BB MIEIRB2.3 FRPT RN B R R B I 2 240 1 - A RGBT RER A - B2(2)

KPIB2.3

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are

implemented and monitored.
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

e

Description

BEB3 : ®#ER A Aspect B3: Development and Training

20215 B -itE
RERERE)
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General Disclosure

B SR A MIEIEBS5.1
KPI B5.1

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

G B D HERHE -
Number of suppliers by geographical region.

—fRIREE ERRHEE BT TIEBE MM R BEERBER « #FINES - B3
General Disclosure o EIEERESY - UTREREEINENRIMERIE -

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by

the employer.

RAER 45 MEITB3.1 BURIREEFHN(NSRERE TREEBE)EINZIEEBDL B3
KPI'B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior

management, middle management).
PSR UEREB3.2 BURIREEERES  BEEETRZINTFHRE - B3
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.

[BEB4 : % T #A| Aspect B4: Labour Standards
MR E B IEE TR bIs T B4

General Disclosure (a) B - &

(b) ETHBETABEAZENABEEERROINER -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.
R B MIEIEBA R BB SIS AR R E T REHET - B4
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour.
BB M IEIEB4 .2 R ERER BN ER G RB R R SR - B4
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

EE1RH Operating Practices
[BEBS5 : #£fEGEE Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

—RRIE ERHERNRERA G RBBUR o B5

B5 [&5 Graph 5

N

§ R A NIEIEB5.2 A R A MEREAIED - mERTERENNHEREE - AREETRER X - B5(M&(2)
g KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices

- are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

m

Y

Q R A NIEIEB5.3 A SR M EE G EREORIR R GRARNED - URBERITRERE - B5(2)

o

— KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply chain,

1: and how they are implemented and monitored.

‘ R ENIEIEB5.4 HULTE SR B R R S ARRER RRBOED - U RMEBENTRERTE - B5(1)&(2)

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
#h
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Description

BEB6 : EREIE Aspect Bé: Product Responsibility

2021 BT it E
REAREE)
2021 ESG Report

KPI B7.3

—MRE BRFREERAREORREERZS BES  RELALBSEURBRIEN B6
General Disclosure (a) B &

(b) BFHETARERTZENEBERZERAOINER -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.
RAER 45 MHEIEB6.1 EESEEXEMEETRAL2BRFEEAMARKNBES L - N/A
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. TiEA
BRENIEIRB6.2 BEMNE @ LR HIFEE AR EE T - B&(1)
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with.
BRENIEIEB6.3 T3 B 4 7 N RPN EE R RO 71 o B4(2)
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.
BARENIEIEB6.4 Ml E BT BEREMEKER - B4(2)
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
BRENIEIEB6.S FHEEERHMRERALRBEE - ARBERITRERIE - B&(4)
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are implemented

and monitored.

[BEB7 : R®;5 Aspect B7: Anti- corruption

— R BRADTLFRARR - B3R - BRFFROER R - B7
General Disclosure (a) B R

(b) BFHBITABERVENBREERADNER -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
AR A IEIEBT 1 RERBAHETALERERDWEEENESHFARGOEE RFALER - N/A
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its TiEHA

employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
R ENIEIEBT.2 H g e M R R RIR T - URIBRRITRERE - B7
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are

implemented and monitored.
B ENIEIEBT.3 HtmESE RS TRENRESE B7

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

GIORDANO

14043y ©S3 Leoe

R




BE - —RHEER
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e
FRE N Ism BEEEE)

Aspects, General Description 2021 ESG Report
Disclosures and KPIs

it E Community

BEBS : itEHR B\ Aspect B8: Community Investment

—fRIKER BN RLSERTREENELRFEMNRREXKEDSEBULENEAEE - B8
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the

issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

B4R AE IS 2B, LIEREE(ORE  BEEE  BIE  BF - X BE) - B8(8)
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs, health,

culture, sport).
B AR 1EB8.2 ESREHD AR (NS FRI) - B8(8)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
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Giordano International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited Jiability)

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
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